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Established in 1982, the Vocational Training Council (VTC) is
a leading vocational and professional education and training
(VPET) provider in Hong Kong. Every year, our comprehensive

To be the leading provider of vocational ¢ To provide a valued choice to school- ¢ To serve with integrity
and professional education and training in leavers and working adults to acquire ¢ To be clientfocused

range of pre-employment and in-service programmes equips a
quarter of a million students with the valuable credentials and
qualifications they need to reach their potential.

Technological and Higher Education Institute of Hong Kong (THEI)
Institute of Professional Education And Knowledge (PEAK)
School for Higher and Professional Education (SHAPE)
Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education (IVE)

Hong Kong Design Institute (HKDI)

Hotel and Tourism Institute (HTI)

Chinese Culinary Institute (CCI)

International Culinary Institute (ICI)

Maritime Services Training Institute (MSTI)

Youth College

Pro-Act by VTC

Integrated Vocational Development Centre (IVDC)

Shine Skills Centre
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the region
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the values, knowledge and skills ¢ To strive for excellence

for lifelong learning and enhanced
employability

To provide valued support to industries
for their manpower development
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To be entrepreneurial
To forge partnerships with
stakeholders
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As a statutory body, the VTC is committed
to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. Our corporate structure is
well-defined and authority is delegated
within clearly defined parameters ensuring
efficiency in achieving our mission.

The VTC’s governance and management
operate at three levels:

(a) The Council, together with its
committees and boards, is the highest
authority and responsible for corporate
policy, strategies and management at a
macro level,

(b) The Executive Director, supported by
the Caucus and various committees,
is responsible for the execution of
the Council’s policy and day-to-day
management of the VTC; and

(c) The Vocational Education and Training
(VET) Advisory Committee, Higher
Education Advisory Committee and VET
Academic Board, together with various
committees and boards under their
purview, provide advice on academic

matters and oversee their management.

The Council is composed of 22 members,
including senior Government officials and
non-governmental representatives from
the industrial, commercial, service, labour
and educational sectors. The appointment
of all members is determined by the Chief
Executive of the HKSAR with the exception
of the Executive Director, who sits on the
Council as an ex-officio member.
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The Council is assisted by 21 Training
Boards and the five General Committees
whose membership consists of
stakeholders in nearly all major economic
sectors in Hong Kong. During the year,
Training Boards and General Committees
structure was rationalised and starting from
1 April 2017, a new structure comprising
25 Training Boards took effect, reflecting
the latest developments in the industries
of the Hong Kong economy. The Training
Boards are established to advise the VTC
on manpower demand of the industries they
represent, and to recommend initiatives to
meet the assessed manpower demand.
They also play an important advisory

role in setting out directions, strategic
development and quality assurance
mechanisms for VTC programmes.

The VTC’s day-to-day management comes

under the purview of the Executive Director,
who reports to the Council via its Chairman.

The Executive Director is supported by the
Caucus team, which guides and manages
the overall operation of the VTC’s services.
The Executive Director also chairs the
Quality Assurance Steering Committee and
Strategic Plan Implementation Steering
Group.

The VET Advisory Committee, chaired by

a prominent industry leader, consists of
members from industry, education and the
public sector. Its function is to advise the
Council on the broad direction and strategy
of the VTC’s academic development,

and its provision of quality VPET to meet
talent requirements. The VET Academic
Board, chaired by the Executive Director,
formulates major academic management
policies.
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Chairman’s
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VTC will continue working side-by-side with you all
to aspire to still greater peaks of excellence,
aiming to be seen as a pioneer of VPET that can
influence economic development in Hong Kong,
the region and beyond.
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Chairman’s Foreword

¥

EFE

12

Vocational and Professional Education and
Training (VPET) is an important engine of
economic growth and social development for any
country or region, not least for Hong Kong as a
leading international trade, financial and services
hub. To meet the demands and opportunities

of today's fast-changing, globalised economy,
especially in terms of new technologies,
continuous skills development is essential.
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| am pleased to see that the demand for
quality VPET is on the rise, and Vocational
Training Council (VTC), as a leading VPET
provider in Hong Kong is gaining increasing
global recognition. These are strong
indicators that our strategic directions are
on the right track.

A year ago, we launched our new strategic
plan, setting out the goals of the Council
for the next eight years, and declared our
intention to develop more skilled talent
through a holistic and effective system for
supporting the learning progression of VPET
students, so that they can help industry
create value and bring innovative ideas to
life.

This report titled ‘Skilling for the Future’
explains how we have put these plans into
action.

Building the right talent in
times of change

The world is beginning to see dramatic
socio-economic and structural changes due
to global integration and the rise of ‘Industry
4.0’ the application of automation and
artificial intelligence to manufacturing
processes. Some jobs will be disappearing
in the coming years while new ones will
emerge. The mission of educators is

to nurture future leaders and empower
them with the right skills and mindsets to
compete in this fast-changing world.

During 2016/17, the VTC continued to
provide high quality programmes and
flexible pathways for young people,

while investing in new initiatives and
infrastructure to meet these emerging
global trends. These included promoting
STEM (Science, Technology, Engineering

& Mathematics) education, and the
implementation of a dual-track strategy and
technology-enhanced teaching and learning.
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Strategic initiatives in action

Promoting STEM education and smart city
developments

In support of the Government policy
directions in technologijcal innovations, we
have stepped up our efforts to strengthen
STEM education and nurture information
and communications technology talent
through different channels — from hardware
development to curriculum enhancement.
STEM-related forums and cross-disciplinary
projects were also encouraged to enhance
students’ professional knowledge, as well
as critical thinking and problem solving
skills, producing the next generation

of innovators and a technology-savvy
workforce.

Dual-track for all

In 2014, referencing the best practices of
German and Swiss dual-track models, we
introduced the VTC Earn & Learn Scheme
for secondary school leavers with support
from the Government. The Scheme has
been positively received in society and
produced proven results. With extended
funding from the Government, it will have
benefited around 4,000 students by the
2017/18 academic year.

We are planning to further develop the
dual-track model to Degree level, ultimately
achieving the goal of dual-track learning

for all. In addition, we will launch a new
Vocational Baccalaureate programme in
2018, providing an alternative pathway

for secondary students gearing towards
skill-based training. These initiatives will
enable dualtrack VPET to take root in Hong
Kong and increase its impact on the city’s
manpower development.

Expanding our national and global footprint

The VTC continues to forge strong

links with leading VPET institutions and
enterprises in the Mainland, as well as
with countries around the world, adding
further opportunities for our staff and
students. These partnerships create
synergies in training and research, as well
as provide VTC students and staff with
enriched opportunities to make meaningful
contributions to knowledge building and the
advancement of society.

One such strategic initiative during the past
year was our partnership with the Warsash
Maritime Academy of Southampton

Solent University in the UK to launch a
Top-up Degree programme to groom the
next generation of top-notch maritime
professionals. This helps Hong Kong
reinforce its leading position as a maritime
hub for the Mainland and Asia, and enables
us to tap future opportunities arising from
regional economic development.
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Six fulfilling years

Year 2017 is a special one for both the
VTC and me; it marks 35 years of the
establishment of the VTC; and my final year
as VTC Chairman. It has been an honour
and a privilege to serve as Chairman of the
VTC since 2012 and to have contributed to
the VTC Council and Training Boards since
1989.

The six years of my Chairmanship have
been fulfilling ones, and | am proud of the
VTC’s many successes and achievements
over this period. Together, we have made
valuable progress in our mission of
nurturing talented people and elevated the
VTC to a place of prominence in the VPET
sector.
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I would like to thank my fellow council
members, senior management team and
the whole VTC family for their tireless
efforts, dedication and contribution to giving
the VTC the status it has today. | also want
to thank the Government, our industry
partners and other stakeholders without
whose strong support this success would
not have been possible.

| know the VTC will continue working side-
by-side with you all to aspire to still greater
peaks of excellence, aiming to be seen

as a pioneer of VPET that can influence
economic development in Hong Kong, the
region and beyond.

In the days to come, | shall continue to
watch the VTC’s development, and wish it
continued success. Keep up the good work!

il e

Dr Clement CHEN Cheng-jen, SBS, JP
Chairman
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Year 2017 is a doubly special one for us, as not only is
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| am pleased to report that over the past
12 months, the VTC has made important
progress towards realising its vision of
being a leading vocational and professional
education and training (VPET) provider in
the region. Guided by our third eightyear
strategic plan, we have continued to pursue
VPET excellence, so as to supply Hong Kong
with a pool of highly-skilled professionals
and contribute to the city’s betterment.

With technological developments and
globalisation rapidly changing traditional
working roles and practices, our goal is

to prepare the next generation for this
challenging new world of work and ensure
they have the skills and knowledge to excel
in their chosen fields.

To advance our students’ 21st century
core competencies, we continued to
reshape their learning experience during
the year, putting increased emphasis on
work-integrated learning, dualtrack and
multidisciplinary approaches.

Work-integrated learning has long been an
important teaching and learning approach
at the VTC. It gives our students valuable
workplace experience and make them
highly sought-after. A notable example is our
Technological and Higher Education Institute
of Hong Kong (THEi) Degree programmes,
with up to 480 hours of work-integrated
learning embedded into the curriculum,
resulting in about 95% employment rate for
its first cohort of graduates.

During the year, we also expanded the VTC
Earn & Learn Scheme with staunch support
from the Government and industry. This
dual-mode learning model helps young
professionals build industry knowledge
and practical skills, preparing them well
for future career success. A new scheme
for Medical Centre Operations has been
launched in academic year 2016/17,
complementing existing programmes for
the electrical and mechanical engineering,
construction, automobile and retail
industries.
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STEM (Science, Technology, Engineering and
Mathematics) education has likewise been
strengthened in the past year, with students
encouraged to explore multiple perspectives
by participating in joint projects and cross-
disciplinary activities. A shining example

is the sixth-generation solar-powered car,
SOPHIE for the 2017 World Solar Challenge
in Australia, which is built by a team of VTC
engineering students and teachers with

the body designed by Hong Kong Design
Institute (HKDI) alumni. In addition we offer
students rich opportunities to be exposed
to new skills, as well as gain global
mindsets and perspectives, through a wide
spectrum of extra-curricular programmes
including exchanges, internships, research
projects, and local and international

competitions and conferences.

Providing students with a dynamic learning
experience and a rich campus life requires
continued investment in hardware and

software. During the year, we took further
steps to develop our campuses and
enhance training facilities.

The new STEM Education Centres located
on the campuses of Hong Kong Institute
of Vocational Education (IVE) (Tsing

Yi and Chai Wan) and Youth College
(Kowloon Bay) are equipped with advanced
facilities making full use of virtual reality
and augmented reality technologies to
encourage students’ interest in STEM
subjects and cultivate innovative thinking.
The new HealthTech Centre at our IVE (Kwai
Chung) provides additional platform for
nurturing students’ multidisciplinary skill
sets, while the new Centre of Innovative
Material and Technology, Fashion Archive
and Media Lab at HKDI campus provide
interactive platforms for strengthening
students’ learning and research experience
in terms of design and media technology.
The Tsing Yi Halls of Residence were
officially opened in January 2017, adding
a further vibrant dimension to student life
and cultural exchanges.
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Major capital projects also made good
progress. Construction of the new THEi
campus in Chai Wan is now well under

way, with completion expected by the

end of 2017. Its state-of-the-art facilities
will facilitate professional knowledge
exchange, applied research development
and students’ learning outcomes. The
purpose-built International Culinary Institute
to be in operation in 2018, will produce
professionals ready for career entry or
advancement in the dynamic food, wine and
hospitality sectors.

We are delighted that the Government has
announced in the 2016 Policy Address

the identification of a suitable site for
development of a modern campus, further
promoting multidisciplinary fertilisation and
nurturing a new generation of talent. The
Government has also endorsed the building
of an Aircraft and Marine Engineering
Centre on the IVE (Tsing Yi) site to meet
ongoing talent demand in growing areas of
industry.
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Echoing the recommendations of the Task
Force on Promotion of Vocational Education,
endorsed by the Government in the 2016
Policy Address, we are actively promoting
VPET through continuous publicity campaign
and a diverse range of community outreach
activities including seminars, school

visits and career planning programmes.

A large-scale event to promote VPET and
skills excellence will be held in 2017.
Preparations for the VPET International
Conference and Worldskills Hong Kong
Competition and Carnival are under way.

In October 2017, a team of Hong Kong
young professionals will compete at

the WorldSkills Abu Dhabi 2017 against the
best in the world.
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To ensure that our graduates are well
equipped to thrive in today’s global
workplace, we put a strong focus on
internationalisation, taking a two-pronged
approach: opening doors to the world,
while providing exposure to international
practices and cultures at the home place.

In 2016/17, our Mainland and global
network continued to grow. A number of new
and renewed Memoranda of Understanding
were signed with local and overseas
partners at institutional or discipline levels
for joint programmes, exchanges or industry
attachments.

These strong partnerships with
counterparts from around the world,
including the Mainland, Singapore, Japan,
South Korea, Spain, France, the UK and the
US, enabled us to provide fruitful exchange
opportunities for students and staff. During
the year, over 7,000 students benefited
from outbound exchanges, study tours and
summer camps.

We also joined our regional partners in
organising various events in Hong Kong, a
prominent example being Worlddidac Asia
2016, which showcased the best of VPET in
Hong Kong through exhibitions of research
products and an international forum, at
which local VPET experts and industry
practitioners shared experience and best
practices with their overseas counterparts.
Other such events included Cumulus

Hong Kong, an international conference
organised by HKDI, which brought together
300 designers, design researchers,
educators, and students from 40 countries
to exchange insights on campus.
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The VTC is always keen to boost knowledge
transfer and provide local industries with
support for their manpower development,
which is much valued. During the year, we
continued to forge win-win partnerships
with industry players. By providing strategic
advice on curriculum development,
internship opportunities and scholarships
for students, these strategically important
partnerships have a far-reaching impact on
the economic development of Hong Kong,
the nation and the neighbouring region.

We are also appreciative of the generous
support and donations we receive from
industry, which greatly help us to nurture
all-round talent.

All successful organisations need a strong
and visionary leader, and in this regard it
has been a great privilege to work alongside
our retiring Chairman Dr Clement CHEN.

He has made enormous contributions to
the development of the VTC as well as
VPET over the past six years, laying a solid
foundation on which we can build and
progress further.

As we celebrated our 35th Anniversary
and the sound progress achieved by the
VTC over the past 35 years, let us not
forget the hard work and support of our
countless partners. In particular, | would
like to commend and thank our VTC
council members, all VTC staff, our local
and international partners, donors and the
Government for their great support — and
of course, our students and alumni.

| am confident that through the continued
efforts of the VTC team and staunch
support of our stakeholders, we shall be
able to take the VTC to new heights of
excellence for the benefit of our students,
Hong Kong and beyond.

Dr Carrie YAU, GBS, JP
Executive Director
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Calendar of Mgjor Events
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April @ B

The first cohort of students
graduating from the Diploma of
Foundation Studies programme
under the VTC Earn & Learn
Scheme for the retail industry
gathered in Hong Kong Institute
of Vocational Education (IVE)
(Haking Wong) to celebrate their
achievements.

T & 2 VTC Earn & Learn B 2 5t 2l
BEELEXEECREASEEHEER
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May & A

V The VTC Symphony Orchestra &
Chorus presented the ‘Romantic
Legends’ Concert to a full house
in the Hong Kong City Hall
Concert Hall.

VICREZZB L EBEBEREEAGEE

=23 BT RRCEIR-T S ¥

June <A

Worlddidac Asia 2016 co-
organised by the Vocational
Training Council (VTC) brought
policy makers and education
professionals from around the
world to Hong Kong to explore
‘The Next Shift" of the education
paradigm and chart the future

A Celebration of
‘apore Heritage Cuisine

of vocational and professional
education and training (VPET).
Several thousand visitors were
attracted to the three-day event.

VTIC #2016 s MB B BRE » &
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A gala dinner titled ‘A Celebration
of Singapore Heritage Cuisine’
was held at the VTC Pokfulam
Complex, where culinary students
from the Institute of Technical
Education of Singapore, Chinese
Culinary Institute (CCl) and

International Culinary Institute
joined hands to present an array
of Nyonya delicacies.

VICERSEHRMRIBRIT[F g 2
RITEBRE - MK IEHER -
hERESZRE(CC) BERFES
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V The WorldSkills Hong Kong
Competition 2016, jointly

organised by the VTC, the
Construction Industry Council
and the Clothing Industry
Training Authority, drew over 340
contestants, competing in 25
trades.

i

%,
world skills
Hong Kong
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July £ B

The VTC joined hands with Hong
Kong Federation of Youth Groups
to organise a Symposium and
Workshop tailored for HKDSE
students, offering a wealth of
professional development and
career advice to secondary
students and their parents.

VICEREBE EHEAM 128 o
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August /\ A

V Some 300 participants gathered
at the first-ever Insurance
Summit jointly organised by the
VTC Insurance Training Board
and Institute of Professional
Education And Knowledge to
discuss future development of
the insurance industry.

VICRBEXIIREZE GRS IEEE
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Launching Ceremuny of New

‘rnment Subsidised Prg
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September JLA

The VTC launched new
professional programmes for

the maritime industry under the
Engineering Training Subsidy
Scheme, as well as the first-

ever Top-up Degree programme

to be offered by Maritime
Services Training Institute in
collaboration with the prestigious
Warsash Maritime Academy of
Southampton Solent University of
the UK.
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October + B

VTC students and graduates
took home five prizes from the
Guangzhou/Hong Kong/Macao/
Chengdu Youth Skills Competition
2016 held in Guangzhou — a gold
award, three silvers and a merit
award.
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November +— A

Technological and Higher
Education Institute of Hong Kong
(THEi) was awarded funding of
HK$23 million by the Research
Grants Council for applied
research on sustainable living.

BEEDEHE MK E KHE)
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Graduation
Ceremony 2016
saAn

December +—H

THEI conferred Bachelor Degrees
on its first cohort of over 300
graduates from six programmes.

THEIi N EZRTE - A300 2 BB R
A EBREELTBA -

In the same month, some 20,000
graduates were conferred with
their academic awards from
Certificates to Higher Diplomas
at the VTC Graduation Ceremony,
with Professor K C CHAN,
Secretary for Financial Services
and the Treasury as Guest of
Honour.
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At the invitation of Hong Kong
Heritage Museum, the CCI
participated in the exhibition
‘Ceremony and Celebration —
The Grand Weddings of the Qing
Emperors’ to study and recreate
nine dishes from the Qing nuptial
dinner menu. Visitors had the
chance to view short videos
showcasing how the royal feast
was prepared.
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Hong Kong Design Institute

for the first time played host

to Cumulus Hong Kong, an
international conference which
brought together 300 design
experts from 40 countries around
the globe to explore the new
nature of design.
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2017/

VTC 35th Anniversary
Celebration Events

VTC 35 & & 5% B /& &)

\

LIC 35th Anniversary Kick-off Ceremony cum
GreggOpenineg f VIC Halls of Residence (Tsing Yi)
- T o

January — A

V The VTC’s 35th Anniversary celebrations
got under way at a memorable event graced
by President of the Legislative Council the
Honourable Andrew LEUNG Kwan-yuen as Guest
of Honour. The occasion brought together
over 200 distinguished guests including VTC
Council and Training Board members, Honorary
Fellows, alumni, teachers, students, parents,
representatives from the Government and
Consulates, industry and academia to celebrate
this significant milestone.

i H

Coinciding with the event, the VTC celebrated
the grand opening of its 12-storey Halls of
Residence, which have created a dynamic hub
of activity on campus.
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INTERNATIONAL
FORTNIGHT 2017
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Opening Ceremony of HealthTech Centre

February — A

Over 100 participants attended the Opening
Ceremony of the VTC'’s third International
Fortnight, aimed at nurturing cultural diversity
and an internationalised learning atmosphere.

VICERFE=-EERER REXRMN  &Hi&
BB ESE - FABREE100 A2 -

March = A

A new HealthTech Centre at IVE (Kwai
Chung) was officially opened. Through
teaching and learning, collaboration, and
knowledge and technology exchange, the
Centre is committed to raising awareness of
community health and promoting VPET.

IVE (258) M2 R O IEURUA - FRIRE -
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Exploring New Horizons

MR EEG

Since its establishment, the Vocational Training Council (VTC)

has progressed into a dynamic and full-fledged vocational and
professional education and training (VPET) provider, offering a
holistic education that nurtures the talents of young people while
equipping them with the skills to face the challenges ahead.

To ensure that our students will flourish, we have developed an
extensive range of programmes that enable them to discover their
strengths and talents. In the year under review, we continued to
enrich our offerings and deliver the highest levels of support to
learners of all ages and backgrounds.
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BROAD-BASED VPET
hEBEETHE

Our VPET programmes open up diverse
educational and career possibilities for
students. The range on offer continued to
grow as new programmes were introduced.

Offering wider VPET choices

Vibrant and outward-looking, VTC’s VPET

is keenly in touch with the industries’
needs for quality manpower. In response to
the current talent demands of the labour
market, the VTC launched a number of new
programmes in the past year, namely Vision
Health Care, Advertising and Marketing
Communications, Fashion Media Design,
Costume Design for Performance and
Fashion Design Menswear at the Higher
Diploma (HD) level; and Information and
Communications Technology at the Degree
level.

Dual-track learning in action

In line with our commitment to nurture
diverse talents and work-ready graduates to
meet social and economic needs, we have
introduced a dualtrack approach in Hong
Kong, referencing the successful dual-track
VPET models operating in several European
countries.

Two new dualtrack engineering Diploma
programmes in collaboration with industry
partners such as the Electrical and
Mechanical Services Department and
MTR Corporation were launched during
the year. Combining school-based and
workplace integrated learning, these four-
year parttime programmes equip students
with sufficient theoretical understanding
and practical skills for employment and
career development in the industry. To
ensure the courses are effective and
relevant to the local context, the VTC will
continue to actively engage the employers
in programme development and curriculum
design.

An extended industry attachment scheme
was also implemented in HD programmes
in the Information Technology (IT) Discipline.
Participating students were assigned to an
eight-month work attachment programme
under the format of two to three days’
workplace attachment and three days’
study each week. The Scheme enables
students to gain hands-on experience in the
IT industry while developing professional
network.
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VTC Earn & Learn Scheme

The VTC Earn & Learn Scheme is a
tripartite collaborative venture between the
Government, industry and the VTC, aimed at
providing clear career progression pathways
to attract and retain talent for specific
industries with a keen demand for labour.
The Scheme covers different industries,
namely the electrical and mechanical
engineering, construction, testing and
certification, medical centre operation,
watch and clock, printing, automobile and
retail sectors.

Following positive responses from both the
industry and society, the Scheme is further
extended, benefiting about 4,000 students
by 2017/18 academic year.

Moreover, the apprenticeship schemes
administered by the VTC continue to

offer school leavers valuable choices to
receive systematic workplace training and
theoretical knowledge, as well as build the
competence and skills needed for their

professional development. In 2016/17,
around 3,000 participants joined the
apprenticeship schemes.

Strengthening STEM and
technology training

In line with the Government’s direction

in promoting STEM (Science, Technology,
Engineering and Mathematics) education
and smart city developments, the VTC

is keen to nurture interest in science,
technology and engineering as students
continue on this pathway. During the year,
we actively enhanced students’ broad-
based learning support to generate creative,
experimental and pragmatic ideas for their
study, while applying virtual reality (VR)
and augmented reality (AR) more broadly
to enhance the learning experiences of
students.

For instance, Hong Kong Institute of
Vocational Education (IVE) has deployed
innovative teaching technologies developed
by the Engineering teaching team, whose
‘Learning and Teaching with Multiple AR/
VR Systems for Engineering’ won them the
silver prize in the Best Digjtal Entertainment
Award (Interaction Design Stream) category
in the Hong Kong ICT Awards 2017.
Through these AR/VR simulation systems,
students are taken through different
workplace environments and encouraged to
undertake tasks such as identifying safety
hazards or conducting machine inspections
in the environments of a virtual plant room
or aircraft hangar.

Meeting the special needs of
young people

The VTC provides equal access to VPET

for all students. In 2016/17, about 20
dedicated full-time and part-time VPET
programmes were offered for non-Chinese
speaking students and about 700 students
have been enrolled in these programmes.
Non-Chinese speaking students enrolled

into other VPET programmes also enjoyed
designated support services to help them
cope with their studies and adapt to
campus life.

For students with special educational needs
(SEN), we continued to offer some 570 full-
time and 400 parttime places through the
Shine Skills Centre. Around 1,300 SEN
students were enrolled in pre-employment
programmes such as Degree, HD, Diploma
of Foundation Studies (DFS) and Diploma of
Vocational Education programmes offered
by other VTC member institutions. Adapted
Applied Learning (ApL) courses were also
offered to 110 senior secondary students
with intellectual disabilities.

In addition, Vocational Development
Programmes were offered to young people
who might not otherwise receive the benefit
of training opportunities. About 500 non-
engaged youths participated in these
programmes, while some 600 training
places on tailor-made VPET programmes
in collaboration with the Social Welfare
Department were offered for residents of
the Tuen Mun Children and Juvenile Home.
We also joined hands with the Correctional
Services and Social Welfare Departments
to provide vocational training courses.
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Promoting VPET in the
secondary education sector

To facilitate self-exploration of multiple
pathways and assist students to plan ahead
for their future studies and careers, the
VTC actively promotes VPET to secondary
school students through a diversity of
community outreach programmes, including
ApL courses, taster and career planning
programmes, covering various areas of
studly.

In 2016/17, over 2,100 secondary 5
students were engaged in ApL courses,
giving them a useful glimpse into VPET
and their career aspirations. In addition,
some 410 talks were arranged in over
230 secondary schools during the year,
outlining a range of study opportunities for
secondary school students.

Supporting development of the
Qualifications Framework

The VTC continued to provide support

to the Government in the development
and implementation of the Qualifications
Framework (QF). Based on the seven-
level QF platform, the VTC has charted
the progression pathways for learners

of different backgrounds to upgrade
themselves from skills acquisition to
achieving professionalism through
continued education and training.

In 2016/17, some 15 new industry-specific
programmes based on Specification

of Competency Standards (SCS)

were developed and launched. These
programmes are provided at various QF
levels for a variety of industries including
the automotive, elderly care, electrical and
mechanical services, and information and
communications technology sectors.

The VTC also maintains its role as the
single Assessment Agency for conducting
the Recognition of Prior Learning
assessment under the QF for a total of 10
industries, namely printing and publishing,
watch and clock, hairdressing, property
management, automotive, jewellery,
Chinese catering, beauty, retail, and
electrical and mechanical services.
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Enhancing quality assurance
and programme accreditation

The past year saw the VTC building
momentum in upholding the quality
standards of its programmes through a
robust quality assurance (QA) system.
Based on a ‘fitness for purpose’
approach, the system helps ensure our
VPET programmes and services are
meeting the evolving needs of local
industries and our students.

In a bid to drive continuous improvement
of the QA system, overseas experts from
New Zealand and Australia were invited to
share their best practices and specialised
experience on the quality assurance of
VPET programmes.

The VTC proactively seeks recognition of
programmes from relevant accreditation
bodies as part of the QA process. In
2016/17, the DFS programme was
successfully re-accredited by the Hong Kong
Council for Accreditation of Academic
and Vocational Qualifications (HKCAAVQ).
Seven VTC Degree programmes and 12
non-local Degree programmes operated
by the VTC were also accredited or
re-accredited by the HKCAAVQ during

the year. Five of these are new Degree
programmes to be launched in 2017/18
academic year to meet the needs of
students and industry.
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SERVING INDUSTRY WITH
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Continuous ‘upskilling’ of the workforce
is key to ensuring the quality of local
manpower. Making reference to the SCS
or Generic Level Descriptors under the
QF, vocational assessment provides a
platform for enhancing the quality of the
local workforce and ascertaining that in-
service practitioners have attained the
specified competency level.

Cross-border certification

Building upon the vocational assessment
system, we introduced the ‘One
Examination, Multiple Certification’
System (OEMC) for Beauty Care and
Hairdressing in 2013. Candidates
passing the OEMC are awarded three
certificates, covering vocational
assessment in Hong Kong, the Mainland’s
National Occupational Qualification and

the International Professional Standards
Network. Over 900 candidates have now
taken these assessments either in Hong
Kong or the Mainland.

Occupation Dictionary

In the past year, the VTC has achieved
closer alignment between VPET

services and various industries with the
development of a comprehensive online
information services platform ‘Occupation
Dictionary’. The platform will be launched
in 2017 to assist students, alumni and
the general public to better understand
features and requirements of different
occupation for charting their professional
development.
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In-service and corporate training

The VTC has also delivered a wide variety
of corporate and in-service training
programmes for practitioners to upgrade
their skills and acquire work knowledge
for professional development through the
Institute of Professional Education And
Knowledge (PEAK). In August 2016, PEAK
and the VTC Insurance Training Board
jointhy organised the first Insurance
Summit, which attracted 300 insurance
and banking professionals to discuss
current legislation, regulatory issues

and market changes in the insurance
industry.

Entrusted by the Government, a three-
year pilot programme to enhance

talent development and training for the
insurance industry was launched during
the year. A series of activities under this
pilot programme have been put in place,
namely the Financial Incentive Scheme
for Professional Training, Work-and-
Learn Programme, Summer Internship
Programme and Public Education
Programme.

. i": £

Deeper industry engagement

During the year, we launched a
collaborative project with Alibaba.com
Hong Kong Limited on the development
of e-commerce in-service training
programmes. In addition, practical
Certificate in Contemporary French
Cuisine for professional chefs was
launched by the International Culinary
Institute (ICl) in collaboration with
Ferrandi Paris. Through these projects, we
aim to enhance the service standards of
industry practitioners in areas of needs.
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Through conducting practical social

and industrial research, the VTC’s staff
and students are further exposed to

the latest industry developments and
needs. Necessary infrastructure support
has been put in place including the
establishment of a Steering Committee
and Research Support Unit, as well as
the development of support schemes
such as the VTC Research Seed Funding
Scheme, Teaching Relief Scheme and
Research Fellow Scheme.

Enhanced funding support

IVE and Technological and Higher
Education Institute of Hong Kong (THEI)
successfully secured funding of over
HK$27.8 million for conducting applied
research. Major funding agencies include
the Research Grants Council (RGC), the
Quiality Education Fund and Environment
and Conservation Fund.

A Research Centre for Waste and
Resource Management was established
in THEi's Tsing Yi Campus in November
2016 with the RGC’s funding support.
The Centre endeavours to serve the local
community through research, technology
transfer and education on solid waste
management.

During the year, THEi participated in an
innovative teaching and research project
to carry out a comparative analysis of
European and Chinese building codes of
practice. Funded under the EU Erasmus+
programme, the project was co-ordinated
by Balthasar-Neumann-Technikum in
Trier, bringing together the University of
Luxembourg as well as the Riga Building
College for sharing of professional
practices.
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Fostering a research culture

In the year under review, the VTC
continued to support research excellence
through a number of capability building
programmes covering research skills
training workshops, and seminars on
innovation and entrepreneurship, and
cross-disciplinary networking events for
research collaboration.

Innovative projects developed by VTC
students and teachers were also
showcased at the InnoCarnival 2016 in
October, demonstrating how innovative
technologies can improve the quality of
people’s lives.
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SUSTAINABLE CAMPUSES

AND BEST-IN-CLASS
INFRASTRUCTURE

BEEERE RESFERE

The VTC endeavours to provide students
with a quality learning environment to
achieve their full potential. Through

new campus developments and green
initiatives, we have created a supportive
and sustainable environment in support
of teaching and learning.

Major capital projects

Major capital projects made good
progress during 2016/17. In January
2017, the new VTC Halls of Residence,
located next to THEI (Tsing Yi), were
officially opened. The 12-storey halls
provide students with modern residential
living space and create a dynamic
community.

Construction of the new THEi campus in
Chai Wan is under way with completion
expected by the end of 2017. With its
green architecture and state-of-the-art
teaching facilities, the modern campus
will provide students with a dynamic and
stimulating environment, facilitating their
learning outcomes.

Construction work for ICl is also underway
with planned completion in 2018,

aiming to provide world-class training

in European, Mediterranean, American,
Asian and Middle-Eastern cuisines.
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New facilities to nurture
tomorrow’s leaders

On top of these major capital projects,
several new facilities and infrastructural
developments are in the pipeline.

The establishment of STEM Education
Centres continued to move ahead during
the year, with Centres now located on the
campuses of IVE (Tsing Yi and Chai Wan)
and Youth College (Kowloon Bay). All are
equipped with advanced facilities making
use of VR and AR technologies, providing
VTC students with simulated workplace
training and facilitating the exchange

of knowledge and expertise between
academics and industry practitioners. The
Centres will also play host to workshops
and competitions to strengthen motivation
among the younger generation to learn
STEM-related subjects.

Training facilities will also be enhanced

to nurture creative talent and facilitate
industry collaboration. The Centre of
Innovative Material and Technology, a
comprehensive material archive and
interactive learning platform, has been
built at Hong Kong Design Institute (HKDI),
along with the HKDI Fashion Archive
housing around 1,500 fashion items
sourced from around the world.
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The Vocational Training Council (VTC) partners closely with
industry organisations and institutions locally, regionally
and globally to bring a wealth of learning opportunities

to students and create bigger impacts in manpower
development.

In acknowledgement of the continued support and
contributions to small and medium enterprises, the
Hong Kong General Chamber of Small and Medium
Business presented the VTC with its Best SME Partner
Award during the year.
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In 2016/17, 50 new and renewed
Memoranda of Understanding were signed
for joint programmes, exchanges or industry
attachments with local partners including
Sa Sa International Holdings and Hong Yip
Service Company.

Our students continued to benefit from
various joint industry initiatives. Under a
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collaborative effort between the Federation
of Hong Kong Industries and the VTC, the
Careers China Project enabled students to
gain a better understanding of the latest
industrial developments and employment
opportunities on the Mainland. In
December 2016, over 70 VTC students
joined a visit to Shenzhen organised by
Federation of Hong Kong Industries.
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As well as forging stronger industry
partnerships, the VTC was encouraged by
the staunch philanthropic support received
from various charitable foundations and
organisations. These brought in new
resources for the VTC Student Development
Foundation, which was established to
support the various development needs of
VTC’s full-time students.

During the year, the Hong Kong Jockey Club
Charities Trust set up full scholarships for
14 graduates to pursue further studies

in Higher Diploma (HD) programmes. The
Federation of Hong Kong Watch Trades and
Industries Charitable Trust also provided
scholarships for Diploma of Vocational
Education (DVE) students in relevant trades
to undergo industry attachments and
training in Switzerland, and to further their
studies in HD courses.

The Tin Ka Ping Foundation sponsored
Youth College students to participate in

an exchange programme with vocational
colleges in Guangxi, and a reciprocal visit
of their students to the Youth College. Also,
the Chinese General Chamber of Commerce
supported HD students’ participation in a
month-long industrial attachment on the
Mainland.

To better serve the increasing number of
electric vehicles and the demand for testing
and research on the latest EURO VI level
emissions, the Jockey Club Heavy Vehicles
Emissions Testing and Research Centre in
Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education
(IVE) (Tsing Yi) received a further grant

to upgrade its facilities and to promote
environmentally-friendly logistics and
cleaner air under a new Jockey Club Blue
Sky Education Programme.
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Since 2007, the VTC has conferred the
title of Honorary Fellow on a number of
outstanding individuals to recognise their
significant contributions to the VTC, the
development of vocational and professional
education and training (VPET) and the
community of Hong Kong. In 2016/17, we
celebrated the conferment of six Honorary
Fellows at the VTC Graduation Ceremony,
namely:

® Mr Arthur BOWRING
Managing Director, Hong Kong
Shipowners Association

® Dr Roy CHUNG Chi-ping, BBS, JP
Co-founder and Non-Executive Director,
Techtronic Industries Company Limited

® Mr Thomas HO On-sing, JP
Chief Executive, Gammon Construction

Limited

¢ Ms Monica LEE-MULLER

Managing Director, Hong Kong
Convention and Exhibition Centre
(Management) Limited

e Mr Steve LEUNG Chi-tien

Founder and Chairman, Steve Leung
Designers Limited

Mr William LEUNG Wing-cheung, SBS, JP

Chief Executive Officer, Sun Hung Kai
Financial Limited
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During the year, the VTC continued to
build new connections with national and
regional enterprises and institutions.
Further joint activities took place in
Ningbo and Shenzhen, while new
collaborations were established in
Guangxi, Qingyuan, Sichuan and
Zhongshan, covering training, exchanges
and joint events.

Following up the Memorandum of
Understanding (MoU) signed with Qingyuan
Municipal Government in 2015, a joint
committee involving Qingyuan Education
Bureau and Qingyuan Human Resources
and Social Security Bureau has been set
up to facilitate collaborations among all
parties. Under this arrangement, outbound
student exchanges and inbound teacher
training were arranged during the year.
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In October 2016, the VTC in collaboration
with Ningbo Education Bureau conducted
a one-month Ningbo Outstanding Teacher
Training Programme for 12 outstanding
technical and vocational education and
training teachers from Ningbo. Based

on the success of the previous ‘5+5+5
exchange project” whereby five inbound
and five outbound visits were organised
for VTC and Sichuan students from

five leading vocational institutes, an
enhanced two-year exchange project was
implemented.
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In November 2016, the VTC joined hands
with Guangxi Hong Kong Vocational
Education Development Alliance and
Guangxi Education Department to
organise the first Modern Vocational
Education Development Forum in
Nanning. Aimed at enhancing the quality
assurance structure of the Mainland
institutes and establishing pathways for
progression into foreign universities, the
Forum was well-received by 200 principals
and management staff of vocational
institutes in Guangxi.

The VTC also actively participated in
educational fairs, forums, seminars and
skills events on the Mainland during

the year. One example was the annual
Ningbo-Hong Kong Education Cooperation
Forum in which the VTC delegation met
educational and industrial counterparts
in Ningbo and shared insights on VPET

developments with Mainland and overseas
participants. During the forum, the VTC
signed an MoU with Ningbo Institute of
Education to facilitate collaboration on
staff and student exchange programmes.

Other examples included the International
Forum for Entrepreneurship and Innovation
in Shenzhen and the 4th Zhonghua Cup

Vocational Skills Competition in Shanghai.

In 2016/17, over 80 delegations
comprising over 1,860 Mainland officials
and teachers from various cities and
provinces were received in Hong Kong.
They participated in a wide range of
topical exchange sessions and had
fruitful sharing of professional experience
with local practitioners in vocational
education and public administration.
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Internationalisation is a priority in the
VTC’s strategic plan. In 2016/17, we
stepped up our efforts to build new
networks and entered collaboration
agreements with leading institutions
around the world.

These included Trier University of Applied
Sciences in Germany; HU University of
Applied Sciences Utrecht and Rotterdam
University of Applied Sciences in the
Netherlands; Ferrandi - L'Ecole Francaise
de Gastronomie in France; Mutfak

Santlari Akademisi Culinary Arts Academy

of Istanbul in Turkey; Basque Culinary
Center in Spain; Selandia Vocational
Education in Denmark; and Warsash

Maritime Academy of Southampton Solent

University (WMA) in the UK.
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ARTICULATION AGREEMENT SIGNING CEREMONY
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New collaborations were also developed,
including a strategic alliance between
the VTC and Japan’s Osaka Jikei College
aimed at facilitating collaboration on staff
and student exchange programmes in
elderly care and rehabilitation; and an
MoU signed between the Technological
and Higher Education Institute of

Hong Kong (THEIi) and National Taiwan
University to advance student exchanges
and strengthen education and training in
horticulture and landscape design.
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In February 2017, the VTC joined a
delegation visiting London and Hamburg
organised by the Hong Kong Maritime and
Port Board to meet representatives from
leading maritime organisations, institutes
and associations and exchange views

on the development of global maritime
services and opportunities arising from
the Belt and Road Initiative.

The following month, the VTC’s Chairman
led a delegation to explore collaborative
opportunities with VTC partner

universities in the UK, including WMG of

the University of Warwick, the University
of London, Coventry University and other
leading organisations.

We also hosted several overseas
delegations to Hong Kong, including

an 11-person group from Sweden
comprising HRH Princess Birgitta of
Sweden, representatives from the Royal
Sweden Hong Kong Business Council and
Stockholm School of Entrepreneurship of
Sweden. Another delegation came from
SkillsFuture Singapore. Such visits offered
a valuable way to exchange views on VPET
and learn from others around the world.
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The VTC also joined regional partners to
organise various types of event during the
year under review. A notable example was
Worlddidac Asia 2016, which showcased
the best of VPET in Hong Kong through
exhibitions of scientific research products,
an international forum, student exchanges
and guided campus tours. We also took
the opportunity to host a platform for
STEM (Science, Technology, Engineering
and Mathematics) students from partner
institutions in Australia, Singapore and
the UK. The event attracted over 4,000
attendees from 32 countries and regions.

.. A\

THEATRE

During the year, representatives of VTC
member institutions regularly hosted

and participated in industry-wide

events to keep abreast of industry
developments and global trends on VPET.
These included the 10th International
Symposium on Advances in Technology
Education (ISATE) in Sendai, Japan. The
VTC will host ISATE 2018, which will bring
together higher education institutions
from around the world to share their
knowledge and experience of STEM
education.
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The International Visiting Fellows/
Scholars Scheme continued to broaden
the horizons of both staff and students
and increase their exposure to other
cultures by bringing in talent and
expertise from abroad.

In 2016/17 the Scheme brought experts
from Argentina, Australia, Denmark,
Germany, Italy, Japan, South Korea, Spain,
Turkey and the US to Hong Kong. Through
their lectures, workshops, seminars

and demonstrations, they shared their
expertise and offered professional
insights in such areas as culinary arts,
craftsmanship, costume jewellery design,
civil engineering, mechanical engineering,

elderly care and gerontechnology, as well
as curriculum development for vocational
education and internationalisation of the
curriculum.

World-acclaimed chefs from around

the world were also invited to conduct
culinary demonstrations, which allowed
students to experience and learn a variety
of culinary styles from the best in the
industry.
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Empowering People for
Excellence

BEAZT BEXKE
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The Vocational Training Council’s (VTC) students, alumni
and staff are fully committed to making a positive
contribution to society. To help nurture their talents and
all-round capabilities, we strive to provide our people with
stimulating environments and rich learning opportunities.
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BUILDING 21ST CENTURY
SKILLS AND COMPETENCES
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We take a holistic approach to enhance
students’ competences and skills for the
21st century.

In addition to cultivating hard skills, we
emphasise interdisciplinary studies,
design thinking and entrepreneurial

spirit and encourage our students to
participate in extra-curricular learning
activities and experiential projects. For
example, a group of Product and Interior
Design students were invited by the
Windshield Charitable Foundation to
design a pendant holding emergency
contact information for the elderly. The
pendant they designed was well received,
and more than 10,000 pieces were
distributed to local elderly people through
the Social Welfare Department.
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In the past year, some 13,000 Diploma

of Vocational Education (DVE), Diploma

of Foundation Studies (DFS) and Higher
Diploma (HD) students joined different
projects according to their personal
interests and development needs. These
included a series of cross-campus projects
from IVElite, Wofoo Leaders’ Network, the
‘Speak for Success’ programme funded by
HSBC, to the ‘Road to Marathon’ sponsored
by Mr LAU Ming-wai and The Joseph Lau
Luen Hung Charitable Trust.
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Promoting cultural diversity on
campus

To cultivate a global perspective among
VTC students and enrich their exposure
to different cultures, we actively promote
an international campus and provide
opportunities for cultural exchange.

The VTC has admitted overseas
students since 2012/13. During the
past year, we further broadened non-
local recruitment, with students coming
from India, Indonesia, New Zealand,
Pakistan and Taiwan. We also continued
to internationalise the VTC learning
environment by bringing students from
different cultures to VTC campuses and
facilitating engagement between local and
international students.

During the year, the VTC received over 20
exchange students and 560 short-stay
students from Australia, France, Germany,
Japan, Latvia, Luxemburg, South Korea,

Netherlands, Singapore, the UK and the

US. Cultural activities were organised to
provide local and visiting students with a
platform for networking and exchanging

ideas, including activities with residents

of the VTC Halls of Residence.

We also hosted various cultural exchange
activities on campus, one example being
the International Fortnight 2017. With
the support and involvement of various
Consulates-General and international
bodies in Hong Kong, the two-week event
featured a series of cultural activities
including an opening ceremony, cultural
booths, international fun day, film
appreciation, talks and a basketball
competition. During the opening
ceremony, 18 new international student
ambassadors were appointed to promote
international initiatives.
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Outbound learning opportunities

Over 7,000 students also benefited from
exchanges, study tours, and summer
camps. Some 4,000 visited the Mainland
as part of outbound exchange activities
under different schemes, including the
Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for
post-secondary students.

Another 3,000 students participated

in exchange programmes overseas,
including some who spent a full semester
at their host institutions in Japan and

the UK. Other exchange destinations
included Germany, Spain, Singapore and
South Korea.

Extensive job attachment
opportunities

Industry attachment is a unique feature of
our HD and Degree programmes, through
which students are able to gain practical
experience and put what they have learnt
into action.

In 2016/17, more than 10,000 students
undertook industry attachments during
their studies. Among them, some took
part in overseas attachments in France,
Spain, Japan, Malaysia, the Philippines,
Singapore and Thailand.
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Student statistics Student achievements and awards

Bt ER B4R RIE
Number of students of the VTC member institutions in 2016/17: ,

2016/17 F/E VTC #IEBK 8 24 A8 :

Types of Programmes R &%
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Member Institutions

BB E

Technological and Higher Education

Pre-employment BBl

In-service Training FE B 1% 3

Applied Science
The Sixth Healthy Cooking Competition 2016 (Student Category)
- Champion

YANG Pei-yi and YU Chun-yan
Department of Applied Science, IVE (Kwai Chung)

|n5tit11_te of Hong Kong 2,780 320 The Hong Kong Flower Show 2016 Plant Exhibit Competition
BERSHRERXEMNR (Open Competition Section) J B
African Violet Section Overall Champion and Standard African FEFH ﬂ';h iy e
Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education, ) , EREREURRTZHELE (B4A)
. . Violet Champion -
Hong Kong Design Institute, . BE
. . LEE Joy—yln BE - 528
School of Business and Information Systems 33,850 97,590 Department of Applied Science, IVE (Sha Tin) ZINEE ~ RRE
EEEEYELR - BENERBRL ' IVE (367) EARE R
TrR&EMER Busi
usiness 2016 BB EHARE[EAREYVRMELE]
Youth College ACCA Hong Kong Business Competition 2016 (ABEA)
= frgmp= 7,740 My Favourite Team Award & Merit Award - ENERBEALTE R
9,760 CHAN Wai-shan, KWOK Sin-ling, MOK Kit-wa and NG Hoi-ue EEIENE R TEE
Pro-Act Training and Development Centres Department of Business Administration, IVE (Kwun Tong) 2R
e . 11,720
BBEIEE R A L WVE (D) fE RIS %
- -, i Hong Kong Polytechnic University Best Innovation Award 2017
Epl']e;; Eﬁ“gary R 280 1,140 CIM Marketing Award o
i TANG Kitman, TSE Fung-chun, POON Lokyung and LUI Tszshan B ADEHITAS [FHREE AL 2016
Hotel and Tourism Institute Department of Business Administration, IVE (Tsing Yi) SEASBARERE
TS B 930 2,650 BEW - BE% - BRE - RS
Beijing, Hong Kong and Macau College Student Forex Investment IVE (B THE |
International Culinary Institute Invitation Tournament (First Round)
o o s B 1,600 1,180 . . s e g
BIpR B2 2 Winner BERET REEHEEEKER
CHEUNG Sing-chau [BRERIZEARE2017]
Maritime Services Training Institute 100 4.700 Department of Business Administration, IVE (Chai Wan) HEBAMEESERS
5 =|| %5k EE (= 7 (1 \ET) = B 28 N =7 ==
BEIIRELR HRE  HEL OBLR - BIEM
, , , IVE(BFXK) TRERR
Institute of Professional Education And Knowledge
e e e e - 88,290
= I B B . e s e [
RERKBEIIEREREE (NE)
_ . . Bk
School for Higher and Professional Education
e 2,230 2,300 RES
TEEEHEER Yt T pE
IVE (58) TR BB R
Integrated Vocational Development Centre
- N 4,220 3,580
FEAL E R A O
Shine Skills Centres
_ . 630 380
EEREEERP O
Total #E 56,380 221,590
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Culinary
The 8th World Championship of Chinese Cuisines
+ Individual Gold Award (Cold Dishes)
Ronald LEUNG Ka-ho
Diploma in Chinese Cuisine, CCI
Individual Gold Award (Dessert & Pastry Art)
Derrick CHAN Chun-hin
Diploma in Chinese Cuisine, CCI

Chinese Cuisine World Championship 2016
Gold Award (Creative Appetiser) and Hot Dish
Group Bronze Award (Young Chefs Category)
KAN Chun-wai
Elementary, Intermediate and Advanced Certificates
in Chinese Cuisine, CCl

Alen Thong Young Chef Golden Coffee Pot Challenge
First Runner-up
Wallace LI
Diploma in Bakery, Pastry and Confectionery, ICI

ESEFERHAERAE
AR D R

REzHE

CCIFREREUR
MEASER 2 58
FRI&EF
CCIFREREIUR

2016 FEZHTRBESR
BIZ AT E MR INE (FFH)
&
CCI¥R ~ AR ~ MR EMEERE

Alen Thong B EFET S MBEE B E
nE
ESCEN
ICI A=\ B RIEESUR

THE

-
g ooy watch 8 Cock e 35, 2401 1 33pp

ONGRY

The 33" Hong A,
umhlmﬂt ’ .Jfﬂrlﬁﬁh

Design
Hong Kong Smart Gifts Design Awards 2016
Gold Award
Justina LAM Nga-wing
Bachelor of Arts (Honours) in Product Design, THEi

Urban Design Study for the Wan Chai North and North
Point Harbourfront Design Ideas Competition
Champion
CHAN Lok-wing and Oliver CHAN
Bachelor of Arts (Honours) in Landscape
Architecture, THEI

HKDA Design NextGen Awards 2016
- Gold Award
LAl Yiu-sing
Department of Communication Design and Digital
Media, HKDI

World Green Organisation (WGO) Social Innovation
Inventor - Elderly Retreat Hostel Design Competition
Champion (Tertiary Group)
LIU Ka-ming, WONG Pui-kin and CHENG Chin-pang
Department of Product and Interior Design, HKDI

skt
BREEEMRTAE 2016
i
MRHETK
THEI E MR (R8) X E+

[EFEREABENHRTHE]
MRt E

TE

PRELZE - PRESE

THEI BIREEE (BRE) B+

EARABE [ FERRTE 2016
i
R
HKDHE B AT RSB E R R

HtRGZEHBS LSRAFEH-RBRRER
Bﬁ%aﬁ—rttgj

e (KHAE)

J;%B)EJ‘BE. - PN

HKDI Em R EAZRTER
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The 33rd Hong Kong Watch & Clock Design
Competition

Champion (Student Group)

LEE Cheuk-chung

Department of Product and Interior Design, HKDI

DFA Hong Kong Young Design Talent Award 2016
CreateSmart Young Design Talent Special Award
Wilson CHOI Hung-shing and Gim WONG Lai-yu
Department of Fashion and Image Design, HKDI

The 9th ACM SIGGRAPH Conference and Exhibition on
Computer Graphics and Interactive Techniques in Asia
Official Selection of VR Showcase
Apple CHAN Ming-chun
Department of Communication Design and Digital
Media, HKDI

Seoul ICARUS Drone International Film Festival 2016
Director Award of VR Field
Apple CHAN Ming-chun
Department of Communication Design and Digital
Media, HKDI

L=

FI3EEBERRILE
TE (SEE)
ZER
HKDIEm M ERRFER

DFAE BB ERcr A £ %2016
BIEEETFERF A RERIER
ZOEPK - ERELD
HKDI B R REAER

% NJEACM SIGGRAPH TN ESE R B &
BEiiRES

ERIRE ABER

PREA(E

HKDHE B aT MBI 2R

BERFRETBEKRESH 2016
ERIREEREAE
PREA (L
HKDIE BT RS B K

Society of Motion Picture and Television Engineers -
Hollywood Professional Alliance Student Film Festival
2016 (SMPTE-HPA Student Film Festival 2016)
- Winner of Best Use of Virtual Reality in Storytelling
— Narrative and Audience Choice Award
Apple CHAN Ming-chun
Department of Communication Design and Digital
Media, HKDI

24th Asia Pacific Interior Design Awards
Gold Award (Student Category) and Judge’s Choice
Award
Winki LI Wan-ki
Department of Product and Interior Design, HKDI

A&D Trophy Awards 2016
Best of Category (Student Category - Interior
Design)
Gary CHEUNG Ka-ming
Department of Product and Interior Design, HKDI

The 18th Hong Kong Eyewear Desigh Competition
Champion (Student Group)
CHAN Wai-mau
Department of Product and Interior Design, HKDI

EHEYERIEMGS [ METEX£BKRE
B4 ¥E2016]
REEBRERBIBARRERERE
PRAAE
HKDIE BB AT R B HESE R

F24RETEREERNRFTALE
T (BAE) R [FEE] 8
278
HKDIEm Mk EANKRFTER

N+ R KE 2016
ErER R (BEEARTE)
R Eh
HKDI E @ M EANRFTER

F18EEBMRERLLE
TE (2448)
PRET2E
HKDI ZE m M EARFTER
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UN Orange Label Project 2016

1st place (Fashion Beauty Category)
FANG Su-jun and CHEUNG Sin-tung
Department of Fashion and Image Design, HKDI

Champion (Full Fur Category)
CHOI Chung-yan

——

HEERZEERTE 2016
FE—5 (A IRERAT/EH4R)
HERE  RER
HKDI B3 R RERET 2 H

HEH
HKDI B 2 S O S st 2

Information Technology
Best Smart Glass App Competition

B
BESERABARIMABAR

Champion, Practice Group (Tertiary Student Group) BRETE (KE4E)
CHAN Tsz-kwan, HO Wing-kit, WONG Yik-long, BRFE - EEG - ZWEA - BERR - %5
%

WONG Chun-yuen and SIN Ka-chun
Department of Information Technology, IVE (Sha Tin)

Hong Kong ICT Awards 2017

Best Student Invention (Tertiary or above)

Silver Award

LEUNG Shuk-ki, HUNG Hoi-ming, YIM Hong-shek
Department of Information Technology, IVE (Chai
Wan)

Best Student Invention (Tertiary or above)

Bronze Award

LAM Wai-kei, NG Man-yiu, ANG Yau-yu, LAl Kam-to,
LAM Ka-lok, NG Ka-yin

Department of Information Technology, IVE (Lee

JOS Innovation Awards 2016-17

Department of Fashion and Image Design, HKDI Gold Award
Champion (Fur Combination Category) ﬂ$ (RERMAE) LEUNG Ka-lung, Jeffrey HO Ying-wai and HO Pak-
LAU Hoiyan 2B cheung

Department of Design, THEI

THEI G2 X

Department of Information Technology, IVE (Sha Tin)

IVECHH) BB F

2017 BEBEARBARFE

- EESEBAECRES A LER)
Ficgiss
R - BUFEE - BURTE
IVE (5£)8) EFRHE R
BESAEFAR(KREHALAR])
4%
WER - REUE - b - BRE
B R

IVE (Z=38H]) BB FR

Hong Kong Fur Design Competition 2017 ERRERGLE2017 Wai Lee) JOS AI¥T K #€2016-17
. - BE(EKEME) g

REHE ~ MRME - B
IVECHH) BB F

RN

18th Hong Kong Jewellery Design Competition L] 1EE §jﬁfﬂi§%§ﬁ“ﬂ:t§
- Champion (Student Group) - EE(24£4)
KWONG Wai-shan B2 . - '
TG BRE (R t Stu-'ent Invention A ward Winners
Bachelor of Arts (Hons) Jewellery and Metalwork S\H?PEE%%%;E%@%&”“*%) = I INNovATION Awaros Beimigkﬂgm%ﬂgmm
programme, SHAPE NELRIE = -17 (Hg m.} 2816-17 BEB L PIES RIS+

Your Choice Nano-Movie Competition

72

Best Cinematography, Best Film Editing and Best

['Your Choice | #KES RI{ELL E
- REBY  REIENEER

Nano-movie — Merit (Secondary Division) <EP\%L%B) . Wrh s
TSANG Man-ching, LIU Chi-long, HO Suiing and KZE CEEE R =R
KEUNG To B F R (BBF3)
Youth College (Yeo Chei Man)

|
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Sports
Inter-University Archery Tournament 2016-17
Champion (Overall Team Championship)

VTC
\i ﬁEFt@i&E%fﬁHﬁé ﬁ‘ﬂ'ﬂ]ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ
Dr Ng Y’ t : : :

é

#E
E%k%ﬁ%’&% BT8R 2E 2016-2017
TEE (25K

VTC Archery Team VTC 51575
CHIU Pak-ming, MAN Kam-sing, WONG Cheuk-yin WAk - X2 - T1EN
Department of Engineering, IVE (Sha Tin) IVECPH) TIE%R
Ricky WONG Wai-kit =ERH
Department of Engineering, IVE (Tsing Yi) IVE(FXK) Ti2%
Juey CHIU HEE
i i i IVE (3008 ) FERRIZ R . . a
Department of Applied Science, IVE (Kwai Chung) (SR ERANER Dr Ng Tat-lun Memorial Outstanding Students Award (A ERELTLSGEHEEREE
. Scheme
The 28th Joint College Judo Competition FBEAERFER RS
==F (B /N
Champion (Male - 60kg Junior Grade) FEE (S FHIALAE 60 RTAL) BE=3S
HOO Hing:un R Applied Science VE () RS R
MR AT T =/ & TR
Department of Information Technology, IVE (Tsing Yi) IVE(F7K) ERfPHR R Karen HO Kiuyan - _
Department of Applied Science, IVE (Kwai Chung) -
NAE AR
Hong Kong Student Invitational Judo Competition 2017 BRBRREMHERE 2017 _ VE (Y e Rl E =
Champion (Male - 60kg Grade) BE (BT 60RTHR) Kate HUNG Chori
HOO Hing-lun {a] G pk Department of Applied Science, IVE (Chai Wan) —
3 B
Department of Information Technology, IVE (Tsing Yi) IVE (F7) A FH R . EeFE

Champion (Male - 73kg Grade)

BE(BFI32TH)

Business Administration

IVE (3%8) THERER

CHAN Ka-mun 5%%755 o Flora IP Ki-kwan
Department of Information Technology, IVE (Tsing Yi) IVE (BT ERBEE Department of Business Administration, IVE (Kwai Chung) —
IVE (PH) ITRHERR
©r s A . . .
Jockey Club Futsal Cup §%Taﬁ£ifzi§5 Eric TAM Wai-ming
Champion (Men’s Higher Education Division) ﬂiémﬁﬁnfgm%%ﬁ) Department of Business Administration, IVE (Sha Tin) T
VTC Men’s Football Team VIC 5 e 3 BiaE

North District Race for a Healthy and Rich Lifestyle

ITEERALERBERBEE(LOQE)

Engineering
LEUNG Wing-lung

IVE (EEEER L) EETIER

=y
(10K) %ﬁ;jj% BEA) Department of Construction, IVE (Morrison Hill) BESTAK
- Champion (Student Group / Men) %;ﬁﬁ?ﬁ@gﬁ) IVE (EEIREIL) BETIER
LAU Kwun-leung oo Kyle LUK Hin-shing
- £ 4
Youth College (Kwai Chung) Liiﬁ%%i"ﬂ) Department of Construction, IVE (Morrison Hill) BIE - RERIRES
Champion (Student Group / Women) HEe BIRZE
==/ g TR
LAl Hui-ling SR R Hotel, Service & Tourism Studies IVE (i) BE - IRE MRS R
Youth Coll Tin Shui Wai i ing-
outh College (Tin Shui Wai) B R 3 5 2017 Calvin CHOI Shing-fung L
HE(10AE 13- 17 BB F4) Department of Hotel, Service & Tourism Studies, ﬁﬁﬂﬂ\ﬁ
Centaline Charity Run 2017 P IVE (Haking Wong) ik N
Champion (10 km, 13 - 17 male Group) ;E&F (EF%) IVE (ZFEH) BABHE
B =T

CHENG Chi-shing
Youth College (Yeo Chei Man)

Information Technology
Jack WU Wing-hong
Department of Information Technology, IVE (Lee Wai Lee)

Diploma of Foundation Studies
Esther UY Wing-lam
Diploma of Foundation Studies (Business), IVE (Kwun Tong)

ERBEREYE
= kb
IVE (BR¥E) EMRECE -
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STRENGTHENING BONDS WITH ALUMNI
RERRDE

With the support of dedicated leaders, the number
of alumni associations has grown to 20, building a
bigger and stronger VTC alumni community. They
organised a series of leadership development
programmes during the year in partnership with the
VTC to strengthen the personal growth of alumni and
reinforce the VTC alumni network.

Lifelong support within the alumni
network

During the year, more than 400 alumni participated

in VTC events such as mentorship programmes and
professional seminars, as well as offering students
industrial attachments and job opportunities. Under
this ‘giving back’ culture, the alumni can help us build
a better community.

ERLREEWMHES T  VICRAEHED
BINZE 20 WAHBEAEAKR FA
ERAKEGEVICAH —BRAMERETE
HEFERE  UEBREBERE ZEE
VTC R #84% -

FA B 400 BRELEVICES - 21
MAFEIREEMTE  WASBERBTIE
EERRERE - —BREBHZEESRH
B85 HBMRMPEBE TR -

DEVELOPING A CULTURE OF EXCELLENCE

e VALY B |4

The success of the VTC stems from the quality of
its staff. As at 31 March 2017, there were 6,060
full-time staff in service, comprising 3,850 teaching
and administrative staff, and 2,210 technical and
supporting staff.

To enhance the professional and personal
competencies of VTC staff, a wide range of capability
building programmes was offered, including
management and supervisory training, teacher training
workshops, national studies, language courses and
wellness talks.

VTC staff also engaged actively in a number of
academic exchanges, international conferences,
exhibitions and familiarisation visits. This helps

us build a global network that strengthens our
connections with local and overseas partners for
experience-sharing and collaboration. For example,
a total of 40 staff joined the Tsinghua National Study
Tour in July 2016. During the one-week training
programme, participants learned more about the
latest political, economic and vocational education
developments in the Mainland.

To promote self-paced knowledge transfer and
facilitate knowledge sharing among staff, a new
Knowledge Management Platform was set up during
the year.

VIC % 8lFEE 2 BEFEBRNIEREEZHNE
1A ZE2017F3 A31H 'VIC &% 6,060
HEBMET - R eI 3,850 BHERITH
AB 2,210 BEITREHEHAE -

BMARIRREELNED  REEEIR
BERTSHE  RTEN TS  BEHE
EXRRREERES - BiFEAEER
A -

VIC E T MERSEEEM 2 RES
ez RERERGFTHE HBEORMEHER
BRABAE - ANod B A M A F IMA BRI B A 1R
DR B A0 BB T 20164F 7 A
2MBEHBH  FRAH—FANEIE
) TEHRBUA  SBEMBEHENANMN R
R -

FARRMARLTHONMBEE TS - @
BTRNRRNMERDF °
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Outstanding staff achievements
Long Service Awards

During the past year, Long Service Awards
were given to 51 staff members in
recognition of their 30 years of dedicated
service to the VTC, while a further 105
and 178 staff were commended for
having completed 25 and 20 years of
service respectively.

Staff Excellence Awards

The Staff Excellence Awards recognise
staff members and teams who have
made exceptional contributions to the
VTC through outstanding dedication,
competence, ingenuity and conscientious
performance. Recipients for 2016 were:

Ms CHAN Lai-chun
Attendant Il, Campus Secretariat,
IVE (Sha Tin)

Mr Mickey YU Ming-fai
Technician, HKDI Department of
Product and Interior Design,

IVE (Kwun Tong)

RHEAIRT%4E2016

Long Service Award

Teaching Excellence Awards

The Teaching Excellence Awards give
recognition to outstanding teachers while
promoting the sharing of best practices
in teaching. Recipients for 2016 were:

Individual Award

Mr WAN Cheung-kuen
Lecturer, Department of Applied
Science, IVE (Sha Tin)

Miss Courtney YUM Yuen-han
Lecturer, Student Development Office,
IVE (Haking Wong)

Group Award

Mr YIM Yiu-chung
Lecturer, Computing & Mathematics
Section, Youth College (Kowloon Bay)

Miss Kiki WAN Hoi-ki

Acting Lecturer, Computing &
Mathematics Section, Youth College
(Kowloon Bay)

Miss Gwyneth LEE Ka-yee

Teaching Associate, Computing &
Mathematics Section, Youth College
(Kowloon Bay)

BETREHEG

= B AR 75 12

EF - RMBEERPRSETFSLAUEVICE
LR EIOEWNE L R HL105( %178
MBI D RIRE M25F R20F » FIERXRS -

B B T 42
VICRYBHETHE  ZHAMEERE
FAEESE - oM mE A %ER - £19
BAIE BB AFEES AREKAM -
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REZ 2+

IVE(DH) E2RWER
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IVE (BB ) - HKDIEm N ERNRTER
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Promoting good corporate
citizenship

Promoting corporate social responsibility
and environmental awareness of our staff,
students and alumni is a core element of
the VTC's culture and strategy.

Driving environment protection

In 2016/17, our staff, students and
alumni contributed to society through
active participation in a range of
community and social programmes, such
as ‘Earth Hour’, ‘No Air Con Night’, ‘Waste
Check Charter’, ‘Charter on External
Lighting’ and the ‘Public Engagement

on Promoting Sustainable Use of
Biological Resources’. Environmentally-

friendly practices were also reinforced
through topical seminars, guest talks and
newsletters.

To promote greening, we co-organised

the ‘Hong Kong Green School Award
2016/17’, aimed at driving environmental
management and education in pre-
schools, primary and secondary schools
in Hong Kong.

In recognition of our corporate social
responsibility through caring for

the community, employees and the
environment, the VTC was recognised as
a ‘10 Year Plus Caring Organisation’ by
the Hong Kong Council of Social Services.

In addition, the Chinese Culinary Institute
(CCl) received the ‘Impressive Progress
Award’ under the FoodWise Eateries
Scheme organised by Hong Kong
Productivity Council for contributions
made in the reduction of food waste.

Volunteers in action

The VTC is a staunch supporter of the
Volunteer Movement initiated by the
Social Welfare Department. During the
year, over 12,000 VTC students and staff
took part in various volunteer services.
Among them, over 630 received individual
awards and 110 received group awards
for the highest service hours in 2016.
The VTC was also recognised with the
Merit of Highest Service Hours Award
2016 (Public Organisations), with over
241,000 service hours recorded.

RIFEELR

RABT  BEMRENWEEMLEEETRIR
REH - BEVICERRENZOLEE -

HEBRE

2016/17F * ZMME T « B4 KR EIER
2HEZASENLREMEEEE - ARED
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"B - BIETDHEE - (FINEX
HNEIRCEEARFETREMERIARZ
HE - FMTBEBATE  ZEEEEIRE
Bl EHRIRIERE

B X [ &G EERE2016/17 ] &5
| EEBHRERMP/NEHBRREE
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VIC—EHREBRERCEAREE  BHER
HE - BTRRE  BEEHEREM SR
AR T10F Plus RO REFIR | #5E -
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OVERVIEW OF OPERATING RESULTS

=ENR B

Consolidated Financial Statements

The Council has prepared Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year 2016-17 presenting the operating
results and financial position of the Council and its
subsidiaries (the Group) for the year. Total income of
HK$5,060.8M (2015-16: HK$4,912.3M) and total
expenditure of HK$4,761.7M (2015-16: HK$4,560.1M)
were reported.

Operating Results

Out of the total income of HK$5,060.8M, HK$3,035.5M
was government subventions, HK$1,790.3M was tuition
fees and training charges, HK$235.0M was interest income,
donation and other income. As compared with 2015-16, the
increase in income was mainly attributed to the increase in
Government subventions largely for pay adjustments and
increase in tuition fees income from Degree programmes.

Total expenditure of HK$4,761.7M incurred in the year
included staff expenses of HK$3,518.1M and other
operating expenses of HK$1,243.5M. The increase
in expenditure was mainly due to the increase in staff
expenses resulting from pay adjustments and ex-gratia
payment for Voluntary Retirement Scheme 2016, increase
in staff and other operating expenses for the provision
of additional student places in Degree programmes and
increase in trainee allowances for VTIC Earn & Learn
Scheme.

The Group as a whole achieved savings of HK$299.2M,
reported as surplus for the year 2016-17, of which
HK$189.5M was transferred to the Council’s Reserves for
implementation of new initiatives and other developments.

mEaMB®wRR

BHEBREREILRERENB AR (FHEA#
#)2016-17 FELK AV BRE  RAFRMHE
BRRMB AN « NIBERBRBRIWA BB
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UL AFEE 50 18 6,080 ETH - BUFHEBIE1G

B 3018 3,550 B0 - BENREERGEE
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BLEBRARHEAKITHIER M EMEREIR
B2F -

Building Programmes and Capital Items

For the year 2016-17, a total of HK$945.0M was incurred
on building programmes and capital items. These projects
included the construction of Technological and Higher
Education Institute of Hong Kong (THEi) campus in Chai
Wan, International Culinary Institute (ICI) in Pokfulam, VTC
Halls of Residence (Tsing Yi) as well as other improvement
projects.

Financial Statements

The Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 March 2017 and the Consolidated
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2017 are set out in the
following pages.

BEIRKEREH

201617 FERETIENERIBEA G RFEEBK
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
HE2017FE 331 HLEFENGESEZEHNWER

INCOME

Government Subventions

Tuition Fees and Training Charges
Interest Income

Donations

Other Income

Total Income
EXPENDITURE

Staff Expenses

Full-time Staff Expenses
Part-time Staff Expenses
Temporary Staff Expenses
Other Staff Expenses

Other Operating Expenses

Consumables, Equipment and Library Books
Accommodation and Related Maintenance Expenses
Hire of Services and Professional Fees
Student/Trainee Grants and Activities

Training Boards/General Committees’ Expenses
Staff Development and Visits

Interest Expenses

Other Expenses

Total Expenditure

SURPLUS AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR

TRANSFER TO:
Reserves
Specific and Other Funds

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
WA
BT & 3,035,485 2,921,811
BENREEA 1,790,254 1,770,599
FBUA 57,248 55,150
BN 31,597 29,081
Hiplg A 146,265 135,672
PNt 5,060,849 4,912,313
S H
ETHX
2RETRAY 3,057,306 2,866,290
FETHAY 119,843 114,762
PR B TR 315,827 302,076
HEMETR% 25,164 27,734
3,518,140 3,310,862
Hitt&gERX
SHEMY M - RELEE 300,341 317,017
REZBNEBRERL 533,992 565,338
BERKER 63,885 66,910
B4 /BEENEE 159,420 108,170
JmEEe/ —REEGRE 32,764 38,690
ETHEIINAH 19,471 19,030
FBERAX 18,964 19,913
HEtFY 114,703 114,123
1,243,540 1,249,191
T 4% 4,761,680 4,560,053
REERGBREEWEEEE 299,169 352,260
BT
ik 189,487 192,909
BERAELMHMES 109,682 159,351
299,169 352,260

The Group had no components of comprehensive income other than “surplus for the year” in either of the years presented. Therefore, the
Group’s “total comprehensive income” was the same as the “surplus for the year” in both years.

BT [REERH] I ARBERERFANLLEEMEENE - ARARERZEFEN [NEEARK] BER [2E KRG8 -

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2017
2017 3 A 31 HNEGEEEERER

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, Plant and Equipment

Loans to Staff

Deposits

Bank Deposits with Original Maturity over
Three Months

CURRENT ASSETS
Loans to Staff

Accounts Receivable, Prepayments and Other
Receivables

Bank Deposits with Original Maturity over
Three Months

Cash and Cash Equivalents

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable, Accruals and Other Payables

Provision for Employee Benefits
Loans Payable within One Year
Deferred Income

NET CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Provision for Employee Benefits
Loans Payable after One Year
Deferred Income

NET ASSETS

Represented by:
Reserves
Specific and Other Funds

TOTAL FUNDS

Approved and authorised for issue
by the Vocational Training Council

on 15 August 2017

720178 A 15 H
HEBXIIRESEESHREEER

Dr Clement CHEN Cheng-jen, SBS, JP
Chairman

Vocational Training Council
BEIRBDER

FREAICIH L, SBS, JP

FRBEE

W - e MR E

BTER

&

MAEHRBE=EAN
RITER

RBEE

BTEMR

FEURBRTE - FEATFIE & E A FE UK
BRIA

VA EIHA B BB =1 A RSR1T
=N

Be MR EEY

RBEE

FERRRIE - FERt SO R Bt FEAS
]

BERAMERS

REEERE
EERERRBAR

FRBEE

BB RAERE
—HFREEENER
HEFES

EEFE

FHFRRED S

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
3,723,260 3,029,721
480 1,205

6,849 5,835
605,683 -
4,336,272 3,036,761
556 894
118,787 85,426
4,348,237 4,510,147
211,124 785,900
4,678,704 5,382,367
1,259,501 1,248,619
438,737 400,071
1,082 2,185
290,927 276,369
1,990,247 1,927,244
2,688,457 3,455,123
7,024,729 6,491,884
14,550 8,765
427,148 427,148
1,660,125 1,432,234
2,101,823 1,868,147
4,922,906 4,623,737
324,765 330,286
4,598,141 4,293,451
4,922,906 4,623,737
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THE COUNCIL
BEINRDESE

As at 31 March 2017
HE2017F3 A31H

Chairman
Dr Clement CHEN Cheng-jen, SBS, JP
Deputy Chairmen

Ir Conrad WONG Tin-cheung, BBS, JP
Prof Eric YIM Chi-ming, JP

Members

Prof Philip CHAN Ching-ho, BBS

Ms Karen CHAN Ka-yin

Mr Victor CHAN Kok-wai

Mr Paul CHONG Kin-lit, MH

Dr Jacob KAM Chak-pui

Ir Alkin KWONG Ching-wai, JP

Mr Ronald LAM Siu-por

Mr LEUNG Kai-lik, MH

Mr Kennedy LIU Tat-yin

Ms LOW Khah-gek

Ms Winnie NG Wing-mui

Ms Samanta PONG Sum-yee

Mr Tony TAI Chark-tong

Ms Candy TAM Lai-chuen, MH

Mr Gary YEUNG Man-yui

Deputy Secretary for Education (or his representative)
Mr Brian LO Sai-hung, JP

Commissioner for Labour (or his representative)
Mr Carlson CHAN Ka-shun, JP

Director-General of Trade and Industry (or her representative)
Ms Salina YAN Mei-mei, JP

Executive Director, Vocational Training Council
Dr Carrie YAU, GBS, JP

*E
PREE{_1H L, SBS, JP
EESE

=AML TF2RM, BBS, JP
BUSRAZUR, JP

Z£8

PR IE 22445, BBS
BREE Lt
PR B B ST A
HEZUSE A, MH
IR+
BPIF /B TF2FM, P
MERR o4
Z2REN S E , MH
BEBLE
B R+
hAaexZ =+
RELVER T
BERELE
BRIt , MH
BRI AE

HEREIMER (HHRR)

Bt AE, JP
BIRER(HERRK)
RIS AL, P

TXESHEER(KERK)

EEMRL L, JP
BEJHBPRITHS

T EREE L, GBS, JP

COUNCIL AND ITS COMMITTEES
BEINFRREZERETEES

An Overview of Committees and Boards (as at 31 March 2017)

ZETRIIKREESHE (BE2017FE3H318)

VOCATIONAL TRAINING COUNCIL B ¥R B EEE

Standing Committee E % &
=|

= &

Administration Committee THZ E &

Audit Committee &% %
Estates Committee EXEIEELE
Finance Committee 81 1§Z&

==
5

Training Boards

dREE S

Accountancy Training Board

L RESIEEIE

Automobile Training Board
AEENREES

Banking and Finance Industry Training Board
RITReRFIIREES S

Beauty Care and Hairdressing Training Board
EREEIREZEG

Building and Civil Engineering Training Board
TARTRERBEXIREES

Chinese Culinary Institute Training Board
PEFESGIIREE S

Electrical and Mechanical Services Training Board
KETRXIIREES

Electronics and Telecommunications Training Board
BFEREARIREES

Hotel, Catering and Tourism Training Board
BIESE  RRERIREXIIREES
Import/Export/Wholesale Trades Training Board
HAQRMEENREES

Insurance Training Board

RERFEIRZESR

Maritime Services Training Board
BERBEIREE S

Mass Communications Training Board
AREREXIREZE S

Metals Training Board

CEFIREES

Plastics Training Board

BREIREES

Printing and Publishing Training Board

ENfl R W 3 IR B &

Real Estate Services Training Board
EiERGEIREE S

Retail Trade Training Board
TEFIREES

Security Services Training Board
RERBHEIREES

Textile and Clothing Training Board
PR R FNREES S

Transport Logistics Training Board
MnREERIREES

General Committees
—REE"

Committee on Apprenticeship and Trade Testing

SRR ERAEABREES

Committee on Information Technology Training and Development
AR IREREZE S

Committee on Management and Supervisory Training
ERRESIREAR

Committee on Technologist Training

FANFIRE B &

Committee on Vocational Training for People with Disabilities
BARATRFIIREES S
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COUNCIL AND ITS COMMITTEES
REINGRREZTRETEZES

Standing Committee
BAEZEY

Chairman
Dr Clement CHEN Cheng-jen, SBS, JP
Members

Ir Conrad WONG Tin-cheung, BBS, JP

Prof Eric YIM Chi-ming, JP

Ms Karen CHAN Ka-yin

Ms Winnie NG Wing-mui

Ms Samanta PONG Sum-yee

Mr Tony TAI Chark-tong

Dr Roy CHUNG Chi-ping, BBS, JP

Dr Joseph LEE, GBS, JP

Dr Carrie WILLIS, SBS, JP

Deputy Secretary for Education (or his representative)
Mr Brian LO Sai-hung, JP

Executive Director, Vocational Training Council
Dr Carrie YAU, GBS, JP

Elected Staff Member

Mr Kenneth WONG Lai-yin

FE
PREE(—EL, SBS, JP
ZB8

= AFETF2RM, BBS, JP

BUERAEGR, JP

BREE T

hagZ T

BevaZ

BZRTAE

EEFi8 L, BBS, JP
R{E{E L+, GBS, JP

ESFEEH 1, SBS, JP

#HE REMWER (HERRK)
EttHESAE, JP

BEJmBPNITHS
LTEBXEEL, GBS, JP

8I%8

==L

B¢
e

COUNCIL AND ITS COMMITTEES
BEINFRREZERETESS

Administration Committee
THZEE

Chairlady
Ms Karen CHAN Ka-yin
Members

Mr LEUNG Kai-lik, MH

Mr Kennedy LIU Tat-yin

Ms Samanta PONG Sum-yee

Ms Candy TAM Lai-chuen, MH

Deputy Secretary for Education (or his representative)
Mr Brian LO Sai-hung, JP

Executive Director, Vocational Training Council
Dr Carrie YAU, GBS, JP

Elected Staff Member

Dr William YIP Wing-tat

BeLVEZ

BRI, MH

#HE REMWER (HERRK)
Eif A, JP

BEJmBPNITHSE
LTEXEFEL, GBS, JP

BIRE
RoxESL
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COUNCIL AND ITS COMMITTEES
REINGRREZTRETEZES

Audit Committee
EREET

Chairman
Ir Conrad WONG Tin-cheung, BBS, JP
Members

Prof Eric YIM Chi-ming, JP
Mr Victor CHAN Kok-wai
Mr Kennedy LIU Tat-yin
Ms Winnie NG Wing-mui
Dr Stella KWAN Mun-yee

Estates Committee
EXEIEEET

Chairman
Ir Conrad WONG Tin-cheung, BBS, JP
Members

Prof Eric YIM Chi-ming, JP

Mr Victor CHAN Kok-wai

Prof Philip CHAN Ching-ho, BBS

Dr Jacob KAM Chak-pui

Mr Kevin O'BRIEN

Director of Architectural Services (or his representative)
Mr Anthony LEUNG Koon-kee, JP

Executive Director, Vocational Training Council
Dr Carrie YAU, GBS, JP

Elected Staff Member

Mr Kenneth YAM Chi-kin

E
= ALETF2RD |, BBS, JP
£8

BUERAEGR , JP
PBRE R A
hAatg L2+
AsaE L

EE
= AF£ TF2RM, BBS, JP
£8

BUERAEGR , JP

PR B Bk ST A

PR IE SR, BBS

IEEE L

B S SR A

EEREZER (HEARR)
REEISE, JP

BEJImBENTHE
T2 REEL, GBS, JP

BIXRE8
ERER 4

COUNCIL AND ITS COMMITTEES
BEINFREEZERETESS

Finance Committee
HEEEE

Chairman
Prof Eric YIM Chi-ming, JP
Members

Ir Conrad WONG Tin-cheung, BBS, JP

Mr Paul CHONG Kin-lit, MH

Ir Alkin KWONG Ching-wai, JP

Ms Samanta PONG Sum-yee

Mr Tony TAI Chark-tong

Deputy Secretary for Education (or his representative)
Mr Brian LO Sai-hung, JP

Executive Director, Vocational Training Council
Dr Carrie YAU, GBS, JP

Elected Staff Member

Miss Joyce YUEN Tszyin

ESE
BB, JP
Z8

=AML TT2AD, BBS, JP
HEZISE A MH
BRIF B TA2EM, JP
B MBI
BERLE
HERBEMER (HEREK)
B LA, IP
BEJIMEPNTHE
L2 REEL, GBS, JP

BIZXE8
T A% L
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TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES

REEGN—REST

Accountancy Training Board
gt XIREESG

Chairman
Mr Terence CHEUNG Kwong-tat
Members

Dr Eva CHAN Yee-wah

Mr Francis CHENG Man-piu

Prof Stella CHO LUNG Pui-lan

Mr CHOW Chun-keung

Dr Alice CHUI Pui-ling

Ms Faith DEL ROSARIO

Dr Sammy FUNG Lai-kin

Mr Nelson LAM Chi-yuen

Ms Lois LAM Lee-kwan

Ms Rhoda LIU Mei-ling

Mr Roy LO Wa-kei

Ms Brenda NG Wai-po

Ms Carmen TING

Ms Fanny WONG

Mr WONG Wai-hong

Mr Bernard WU Tak-lung

Ms Karmen YEUNG Ka-yin

Representative of the Director of Accounting Services

Representative of the Commissioner for Labour

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council

ESE
REESEE
Z8

RGEBL
XL

7 B R HIR
JEHR R o
RmEetsE L
B
HEEEL
MEETE
MFE 22+
BER LT
EERELE
REERL
Thexzt
FlaZ*

e e
RIBEERLE
BRI LT
EREERAR
B TRk =K
BEIRBATHERE

TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES

R EEGN—REET

Automobile Training Board
AEXIKREZEE

Chairman
Ir LEUNG Tat-ming
Members

Mr CHAN Hon-hung
Mr Frank CHEUNG Chun-hung (up to 14 July 2016)
Mr Frank FUNG Kwok-chu
Mr LAM Hing-cheong
Mr LAM Tin-fu
Mr LIU Keung
Mr MOU Yun-nin
Ir Madison TANG Wing-hong
Ir Dr TONG Kwok-kei
Mr Alen WONG
Representative of the Director of

Electrical and Mechanical Services
Representative of the Director of Environmental Protection
Representative of the Commissioner for Transport
Representative of the Commissioner for Labour
Representative of the Executive Director of

the Vocational Training Council

FE
RIERATIZED
=
BRZELE A

RIEESHE (E2016F7 A1481H)

B R A

MEE KL

SN e
Bt
BREFERE

BPoKOE TIZRD
BBEEBL - TiZhm
BERMITE
BEIREFEEFRAR

REREFEERNE
EEERNAR

BT Rk RAE
BEIRBATHERE
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TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES

REEGN—REST

Banking and Finance Industry Training Board

RIThEMENIREZES

Chairman
Mr David KWOK Sek-chi
Members

Mr Jeffrey CHAN Lap-tak

Ms Marianne CHUNG Lai-kuen

Mr Mark FAN Wai-man

Prof FONG Wai-ming

Mr Brian FUNG Wei-lung

Mr Ivan LAM Wai-hang

Mr Johnny LAU Ho-yin

Mr Patrick POON Mo-yiu

Mr Anthony Ward RUSHTON

Ms Jennifer SHUM Wan-ling

Mr Chris TSE Yue-hong

Ms Amy WONG Lai-wah

Representative of the Chief Executive of the Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited

Representative of the Chief Executive of the Hong Kong
Monetary Authority

Representative of the Chairman of the Securities and
Futures Commission

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council

eSS
BB SEE
Z8

BRI B4
ERIRT L
SBEX A
DARELEE 60
SRR &
BB E
BERKAE
BREESRLE
Mr Anthony Ward RUSHTON
LRRIR

AR

BEEELLT

B G MEEMBRAT
TTIAREA R

EheREERENNE

BERUEFHERE
EERE

BEDRBITHRERE
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TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES

R EEGN—REST

Beauty Care and Hairdressing Training Board

ERERIREEE

Chairman

Mr PANG Kam-chiu
Vice-Chairlady

Ms Juliana YANG Hui-chun
Members

Ms Sindy CHAN Mei-heung

Ms Angela CHAN Sau-yee

Ms Liza CHEUNG

Mr Orpheus CHOY

Ms Candy CHU Chi-ping

Mr Joseph HO Shiu-chung

Ms Amy HUI Wai-fung

Mr LAU Ka-lok

Ms April LAU Yuk-tong

Ms Fanny LEE Chun-fong

Ms LI Yuk-mei

Ms Shelly LUK Wai-fong

Mr Ray NG Koon-ting

Ms Ruby PONG Lai-hung

Ms Elsa PUN Pui-fun

Mr William TANG Wai

Mr Thomas WONG Kwok-wah

Ms Vajra WONG Siu-ying

Representative of the Consumer Council

Representative of the Commissioner for Labour

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council

ESE
ARSI
BERE
BEELL
Z8

BRERRZ L
PRI &+
SREERZ L
EBAIE E
RSERZ L
AR EE
HFEELL
BIRLE S E
B ERZL
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TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES

REEGN—REST

Building and Civil Engineering Training Board

IAIEKREBREZRIREZES

Chairman
Mr Eddie LAM Kin-wing
Members

Ir Kenneth CHAN Sheung-yan

Dr CHENG Yung-ming

Ir Wilson CHEUNG Yiu-sun

Ir Prof CHUA Hong

Cr Paul CHUNG Koon-man

Mr IP Kai-yin

Sr Raymond KAM Ka-fai

Mr KWOK Tung-keung

Ir MAK Shu-hei

Mr Peter NG Yau-yee

Ir Dr Derrick PANG Yat-bond

Mr Edward SHEN

Mr Kyran SZE

Mr Hermes WONG Kin-sun

Mr WONG Ping

Ir Andy YIU Chi-sang

Representative of the Secretary for Development

Representative of the Director of Buildings

Representative of the Director of Housing

Representative of the Commissioner for Labour

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council

EfE
ST
Zz8

PR == T2
S

SR BT TAZED
SERHIX ~ TIZHD
BT X E R
ERERE
HZEERIEEM
FBIRoR T
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thXBExE
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ILIRE L

MR STE
HEHTE
[

B A TAZRm
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EFEERNARX
FEEERAR
55 T haba i3k

BEIRBATHERE

TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES

R EEGN—REST

Chinese Culinary Institute Training Board
FEHFE2RIKREZEG

Chairlady

Ms Monica LEE-MULLER
Vice-Chairmen

Mr YEUNG Wai-sing, MH
Members

Mr CHAN Chun-kit

Dr CHAN Shou-ming

Mr Freddy CHEUNG Shing-fat

Mr Eric CHIU

Ms Mei CHOI

Mr Mason HUNG Chung-hing

Mr Sam IP

Mr Lawrence KOO Kin-yip

Mr KWOK Wang-hing

Mr LEE Man-sing

Mr LEUNG Fai-hung

Mr Michael LI Hon-shing, SBS, BBS, JP, KSJ

Mr James LI Kwok-yee

Mr MOK Ming-tak

Dr SU Jing

Representative of the Secretary for Labour and Welfare

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council

xE
WEEELLT
e
HAIEE e 4, MH
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BRIRGE T2
BREsigL
SRACE T
HERLE
SYRIE T
HA B
EEH/RIAE
HRERE
BRI E
FXESTLE
RERMESTAE

ZSSE I 454 | SBS, BBS, JP, KS)J

FERTE
REARSELE
FRemiS
BT RENBBRAE

BEIRBATHERE
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TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES

REEGN—REST

Electrical and Mechanical Services Training Board

BEIRRIGEEZEE

Chairman
Mr Paul CHONG Kin-lit, MH

Members

Ir CHAN Chi-ming

Ir Weller CHAN Kwok-wai

Ir Geoffrey CHAN Loong

Mr CHAN Yun-fu

Ir Dr CHUNG Wai-nang

Mr LAl Wah-hing

Prof David LAM Chuen-chun
Mr Fernando LEUNG Chung-fai
Ir Peter LO Kai-sang

Mr Brian NG

Ir Albert TO Wang-kam

Ir James TO Wing-ming

Ir Gilbert TSANG Hing-cheung
Ir WAI Yip-kin

Ir Dr WONG Chun-sing

Ir WU Chi-fai

Mr YIU Chow-leung

Mr YU Hing-wai
Representative of the Director of

Electrical and Mechanical Services
Representative of the Commissioner for Labour
Representative of the Executive Director of

the Vocational Training Council

EFE
FEEERUSEA , MH
Z8

PR ERA T 2R

PR B8 {2 T 2R

PR EE T A2
PR S E
EEAE L - TiR6
ZREE G S

R IREIR
DR E
EHE A TH2AD
RIRELE

MRS TR
MoK BE TARED
R R TAZAD
BERTIZAM
=iRBEL - TR
HAREE T A2ED
BRRKER S &
RERLE
BETREEERAR

B TRk =K
BEIRBATHERE

TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES

R EEGN—REET

Electronics and Telecommunications Training Board

EFEKRERXIREZET

Chairman

Mr Johnny YEUNG Chi-hung, MH
Vice-Chairman

Mr Christopher TSE Hung-keung
Members

Dr Lawrence CHEUNG Chi-chong
Mr Kenny CHEUNG Wai-kuen

Mr CHU Hon-chung

Mr Kelvin HO Kam-fai

Mr Sam HUI Kin-sang

Dr Measure HUNG Kim-fung

Mr KWAN Man-lung

Ir Ricky KIWONG Wai-chuen

Dr LAM Hiu-fung

Mr LAM Yam-sui

Dr LO Tai-chin

Mr MA Fung-on

Prof Philip MOK Kwok-tai

Ir Johnny POON Chung-yin

Mr William TSE Wing-nam
Representative of the Director of

Electrical and Mechanical Services
Representative of the Director-General of Trade and Industry
Representative of the Director-General of Communications
Representative of the Executive Director of

the Vocational Training Council
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TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES
dREEgN—RESS

Hotel, Catering and Tourism Training Board
BIEE - REERREXINIREZES

Chairman S

Mr Larry TCHOU Ming-kong KERELLE

Vice-Chairman BlEFE

Mr Michael LI Hon-shing, SBS, BBS, JP, KSJ Z5E W 4, SBS, BBS, JP, KSJ
Members £8

Mr Urs Viktor BESMER Mr Urs Viktor BESMER

Mr Victor CHAN Kok-wai PR B B ST A

Ms Sarah CHAN PR ST 20 &=

Mr Arnold CHENG Ka-kui (up to 31 July 2016)
Mr Marco CHEUNG Chi-fai

B A (220167 A31H1E)
R AE

Ms Cecilia HO CE-¥5%

Mr Lawrence KOO Kin-yip mEELE

Ms Rebecca KWAN B+

Mr Wallace LI Chin-hung TRBTE

Ms Cindy LUI Fung-kuen =EE L+

Prof Bob MCKERCHER Prof Bob MCKERCHER
Mr MOK Ming-tak RARELE

Mr Marco PELLIZZER Mr Marco PELLIZZER
Mr Cramond WONG Yiu-cheung IR A

Mr Joseph YUNG AR T E
Representative of the Commissioner for Labour BIRERRE
Representative of the Commissioner for Tourism IRPEEHEENREK

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council

BEIRBATHEAE

TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES

R EEGN—REST

Import/Export/Wholesale Trades Training Board

HAORMEXRNRES S

Chairman

Mr Benson PAU Kit-kwan

Vice-Chairman

Mr Joe CHAU Kwok-ming

Members

Mr CHAN Lap-tak

Mr CHEUNG Ching-fung

Dr Dominic CHU Chun-ho

Ms Debbie CHUNG Yuk-wah

Mr Raymond GOH

Mr Wilson LEE Kwong-ching

Mr LI Kin-man (up to 4 December 2016)

Mr Paul LO Kai-sing

Mr Vincent MA Wai-hung

Mr PAK Kwok-ming

Mr Byron WONG Tsz-wan

Mr Desmond YAU

Prof Christina YU Wai-mui

Representative of the Director-General of Trade and Industry

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES

REEGN—REST

Insurance Training Board
REXIREZEE

Chairlady
Mrs Agnes KOON WOO Kam-oi
Members

Ms Charity AU
Mr Patrick CHAN Chi-kong
Mr Herman CHEUNG Chi-fai
Mr CHEUNG Yiu-kwong
Ms May KEUNG Chor-gee
Mr Dominic LAM Wai-kuen, MH
Mr Clarence LAU Chun-pong
Mr Thomas LEE Mun-nang
Prof LI Jing-yuan
Mr Andy MA Chun-kei
Mr Jimmy POON Wing-fai
Mrs Michelle TEASEL
Mr James WONG Yuk-loi
Mr Allan YU Kin-nam
Representative of the Commissioner of Insurance
Representative of the Commissioner for Labour
Representative of the Managing Director of
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority
Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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BEELAE
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Mrs Michelle TEASEL
=R LA
RiEEELE
RERFEEREESREK
BIRERRE

BEIEATEEFTEIEIEBH

BEIRBATHERE

TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES

R EEGN—REST

Maritime Services Training Board
BERFREIREZES

Chairman
Mr Arthur BOWRING

Members

Mr Demen CHEUNG Kwok-wai

Mr FAN Keung

Mr Jackson LAU Wai-cheong

Capt LI Chi-wai

Mrs Doris LUK FUNG Yim-to

Dr Kelvin PANG Ka-liong

Ms TONG Ka-lee

Ms Ann WONG

Capt Ben WONG Kam-fai

Mr David WONG Yui-cheong

Capt WU Kwok-hau

Representative of the Commissioner for Labour

Representative of the Director of Marine

Representative of the Commissioner of Police

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES

REEGN—REST

Mass Communications Training Board

ARERRINIHKREZEES

Chairlady
Ms Bianca MA Kin-san
Members

Mr Rico CHAN Kai-to

Mr Gary CHEUNG Ka-wai

Ms Bonnie CHIU Lai-yu

Mr CHIU Wai-piu

Mr DAI Chi-kit

Dr FU King-wa

Ms Celine HO Ming-wai

Mr Keith KAM Woon-ting

Mr Jackson KWOK Yiu-fai (up to 16 May 2016)
Mr Ross LAl

Ms Winnie LAU

Dr Will MA Wai-kit

Ms SHAM Yee-lan

Mr Edgar SO Kai-chi

Prof Mike WONG Ka-fai

Mr WONG Wing-hang

Mr Patrick YU Kin-wah

Mr YUEN Chi-wai

Representative of the Director of Broadcasting

Representative of the Director of Information Services

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES

R EEGN—REST

Metals Training Board
ETBEIREZEG

Chairman
Dr Dennis NG Wang-pun, BBS, MH
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Mr HO Tak-ming
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Mr Alex LAI Chi-ho

Ir Thomas LEE Kwok-keung
Mr LEE Yuen-fat

Mr LEUNG Chun-sing

Ms Irene LEUNG Wing-yan
Dr Calvin OR Ka-lun

Mr SUEN Fai-chuen

Mr SZE Kam-shing
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Mr YU Tak-ming

Representative of the Director-General of Trade and Industry

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES
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Plastics Training Board
BREXININREZEST

Chairman
Mr Stanley CHEUNG Tat-choi
Members

Mr Alfred AU Kit-ho
Dr CHIN Kwai-sang
Mr Dave CHONG Chiu-ping
Mr John CHOW Hon-kong
Dr CHUNG Sai-wing
Mr Leton LEE Yuk-pui
Mr Eddie LEUNG Tin-fu
Prof Robin MA Lok-wang
Mr Andy NG Ka-ho
Mr NG Ping-hong
Ir Samson SUEN Kwok-wai
Mr Warren SUN Yung-liang
Mr Calvin TAN Che-keung
Mr Daniel WONG Ho-kar
Representative of the Director-General of Trade and Industry
Representative of the Commissioner for Labour
Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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Printing and Publishing Training Board
R KR BREINREZES

Chairman

Mr Alex YAN Tak-chung
Vice-Chairman

Dr Elvin LEE Ka-kui
Members

Mr Eric CHAN Tad-kin
Mr Dicky CHOY
Mr Percy FUNG Man-ching
Mr Corey HO Kin-wa
Mr Peter LAU Man-pong
Mr Clemence LEUNG Ka-kei
Mr Herman LO Kwok-ming
Ms Muriel MA Chun-mui
Ms NG Mei-mei
Mr Thomas NG Wang-kuen
Ms Brenda PANG On-kei
Dr Allen SHI Lop-tak, MH, JP
Mr Tom SIT Sai-yu
Mr Conrad SO Wah-sum
Mr Peter TSE Po-tak
Dr Sharon WONG Yin-yue
Representative of the Director of Government Logistics
Representative of the Director-General of Trade and Industry
Representative of the Commissioner for Labour
Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES
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Real Estate Services Training Board

BHMERBGRINKREZE S

Chairman FE

Ir Alkin KWONG Ching-wai, JP BEPIF (& T32R1, JP

Vice-Chairman BIEE

Mr Augustine WONG Ho-ming, JP =A% AE, JP

Members %8

Mr Henry CHAN Sai-lun PeR T B ST A

Sr Dr Lennon CHOY Hung-tat ZISEB T - A=

Mr Waillen CHUI Wai-lan ERfmrtt

Dr Lobo FUNG Kwok-hung RSB+

Sr Joseph HO Chin-choi AR R EAD

Mr Anthony KWOK Chong ghaa A

Mr Eric LEE Chun-ming IR A

Mr LEUNG Kam-leung AR A

Mr LOU Kuong-fai EtEEA

Ms Enid NG So-fun REHFLT

Mr Simon SHAM Sik-shing WMLl

Sr SUNG Shu-hung R 18098 B = b

Mr Alex YU Ka-ki REMETAE

Representative of the Director of Housing BEEEERAE

Representative of the Commissioner for Labour BIRERRE

Representative of the Chief Executive Officer of HMERIBET BITHARNKE
the Estate Agents Authority

Representative of the Executive Director of BEIIRBPATHERR

the Vocational Training Council
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Retail Trade Training Board
ZEXIKRZEST

Chairlady

Dr Stella KWAN Mun-yee
Vice-Chairman

Mr Angus WAI Yau-on

Members

Ms Ada CHAN

Mr Calvin CHAN

Ms Albe CHOI Pui-shan

Ms Winnie CHOW Wai-yee

Mr lan CHQY Jing-man

Mr Dennis LAU Hak-bun

Ms Carrie TSE Man-fung

Mr TSOI Chung-kin

Ms Alice WONG Nga-lai

Ms Ruth YU Lai-yiu

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES
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Security Services Training Board
RERBHRIREESG

Chairlady

Ms Jane Curzon LO, JP
Members

Mr Gary Peter BUKOWICKI

Dr Johnnie CHAN Chi-kau, BBS, JP

Ms Janna CHENG On-ki

Mr FUNG Ping-yan

Mr Eddie LAM Koon-fu

Mr Bruce LEE Yuyim

Mr John NG Sheung-lok

Ms Enid NG So-fun

Mr Douglas RENWICK

Mr Simon SHAM Sik-shing

Ms Dennis TANG Ming-tan

Mr Terence YAP Wing-khai

Representative of the Director of Housing

Representative of the Commissioner for Labour

Representative of the Commissioner of Police

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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Textile and Clothing Training Board
MERNKREINIREZES

Chairman
Mr Richard LOK Kee-loong
Members

Mr Sam CHEN Tong-sang

Ms Anne CHEUNG

Mr CHU Tse-kwan

Prof HU Jin-lian

Dr David HUI

Mr Matthew LAl

Mr Tony LAU Kim-on

Mr Benjamin LAU Man-tung

Mr Roger LEE Kuo-chuan

Dr Roger NG Keng-po

Mr Arkin NG Ping-kin

Mr Spike NGAI Chi-man

Mr TAM Chin-ming

Ms Linda TSANG Chi-man

Mr Terence WONG Kwok-sing

Mr Wallace WONG Pok-man

Mr William WONG Wai

Mr Andrew YU Yau-kuen

Representative of the Director-General of Trade and Industry

Representative of the Commissioner for Labour

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES
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Transport Logistics Training Board
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Chairman
Ir Dr David HO Chi-shing, JP

Members

Mr Roger CHAN Kwok-yuen

Dr Lewis CHEUNG Ting-on

Mr CHO Chi-cheong

Mr Terry CHU Lik-fei

Mr KUO Wen-jung

Mr Emil LAl Cheung-kwong

Mr Victor LAl Kong-ying

Ms Theresa LAl

Dr Francis LEUNG Kit-nam

Ms Alice LUI

Mr Eric WONG Man-sum

Mr Thomas WONG Tak-kwong

Mr Simon YAP Thian-chai

Mr YEUNG Lin-pik

Mr Thomas YIP Lung-sun

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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Committee on Apprenticeship and Trade Testing
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Chairman
Mr WONG Kit-loong
Members

Mr Jimmy CHAN Yiu-hung

Dr CHEUNG Wai-leung

Mr James CHIM Pun-ngon

Mr Daniel FUNG Man-kit

Ms Rachel LEE Wei

Mr LEUNG Ping-him

Mr Wrinky LEUNG Wing-kei

Mr David LEUNG Yiu-fai

Ms Polly PANG Ka-yi

Mr Joe TSUI Yan-cho

Ms Wenda WONG Wing-chi

Mr Henry YIP Cheuk-tak

Representative of the Secretary for Education

Representative of the Director of
Electrical and Mechanical Services

Representative of the Commissioner for Labour

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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Committee on Information Technology Training and Development
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Chairman

Ir Sunny LEE Wai-kwong, JP

Members

Mr Rocky CHENG Chung-ngam

Mr Raymond CHENG Siu-hong

Ms Barbara CHIU Cheuk-mun

Dr James FOK Ting-yeung

Dr Measure HUNG Kim-fung

Dr Alex KAI Sze-fai

Mr Dennis LEE Chun-keung

Mr Gordon LO Siu-chung
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Mr Tony TAI Chark-tong
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Dr WONG Chung-kiu, MH

Mr Cedric YEUNG Chun-lam

Representative of the Government Chief Information Officer

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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Committee on Management and Supervisory Training
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Chairman
Dr Kevin LAU Kin-wah, JP
Members

Mr Jimmy CHIU Chi-ming

Dr Stephen KO Chi-chung

Mr Wilson KWONG Wing-tsuen

Ms Connie LAM Tsui-wa

Mr LAU Kar-wah

Mr Gary LAU Sun-tao

Ms Eva LEUNG Yuk-ling

Mr David LI Chi-ming

Mr Peter LIU Sin-shing

Mr Peter MOK Wah-fun

Mr York MOK

Mr David TING Tit-cheung, MH

Dr Danny WAN Tak-fai

Representative of the Civil Service Training and
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the Vocational Training Council

ESE3

gfEER L, P

Z£8

SRR E
A ELT
BBk 82 e
MBELZ L
BIZERE
BIZBE s
REWRLL
FEHAKE
RER L
BikERE

TEPTE, MH

FEEE L

INGISESVISYNISE::
BEIRBATHERE



120

TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES
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Committee on Technologist Training
KREMNREEE

Chairman

Dr Edwin KWONG Kwok-wah

Members

Mr Raymond CHAN

Dr Stephen CHAN Wing-chi

Dr Lawrence CHEUNG Chi-chong

Mr Felix CHOI

Mr Hugh CHOW

Prof KI Wing-hung

Mr LEUNG Kam-man

Ir Simon LIU Sing-pang

Mr Dennis NG Kwok-on

Ir Dr Philip PONG Wing-tat

Ir Dr George SZE Lee-wah

Ir WAI Yip-kin

Mr Eric YEUNG Chuen-sing

Ir Dr YIU Hing-leung

Representative of the Secretary for Development

Representative of the Commissioner for
Innovation and Technology

Representative of the Vocational Training Council

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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Committee on Vocational Training for People with Disabilities
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Chairman
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Dr James Joseph LAM, JP

Members

Dr Doris CHONG Yin-kei
Mr Herman HUI Chung-shing SBS, MH, JP
Mr KUO Chun-chuen
Ms Connie LAM Tsui-wa
Mr Michael LIANG Chi-tsou
Mr Alan TAM Ming-tak
Mr Chester TSANG Wing-cheong
Mr Steven TSOI Wing-ming
Ms Elaine WU Siu-ling
Mr Nelson YIP Siu-hong, MH
Representative of the Secretary for Education
Representative of the Secretary for Labour and Welfare
Representative of the Director of Social Welfare
Representative of the Commissioner for Labour
Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council

ESE)

SRIEIES A, MH

BlERE

MERE A, P

Z8
HREE L

FFREX S SBS, MH, JP

&R FTE
MBELZ LT
RN A
EELEL G e
BKESTE
FOK#TE
B/ NS At

HAORREA, MH
HERBEARR
BIREMBERRRE
HERENEBERAE
BTREERRE
BEJImEATHERR

121



122

MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE OF
THE VOCATIONAL TRAINING COUNCIL

R R EERE

As at 31 March 2017
HZE 201743 A31H Council

BEg

Council Committees
BEgETIEED

Executive Director
HITErE

Deputy Executive Director (C)
BlHITERE ()

Deputy Executive Director (B)
BIBITEE (B)

Deputy Executive Director (A)
BIHITERE (A

Deputy Executive Director (D)

BI#ITHE (D)

Principal, School President, Head, Head, Senior Principals, Principals, Principal, Head, Senior Director, Director, General Project
for Higher and Technological Information Research Assistant IVEs & HKDI Youth College School of Estates, Assistant Maritime Institutional Manager, Manager,
Professional and Higher Technology Support Unit Executive = y /8 Business and Health Executive Services Advancement Qualifications Office of the
Education Education Services PSR Director, Information and Safety Director, Training Office Framework Director of
g Institute of Division -x Headquarters Systems Division Headquarters Institute = Secretariat Apprenticeship
Hong Kong B R (Academic = (Academic E| s Y =
ESE - Services) Development) - ER&E

Legend:

CCl: Chinese Culinary Institute FZERFEREA ST

HKDI: Hong Kong Design Institute &8 A H & 51263

HTI: Hotel and Tourism Institute ;& i & fik % 2 Fx

ICI: International Culinary Institute Bl EFEAE25%

IVE: Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education 77 B ¥ & £

Head,
Central
Services
Division

Head, Senior Principal, Director, Director, Director, Senior Head, Head, Head, Director,
Centre for Assistant HTI / CCl / ICI Vocational International Quality Assistant Finance and Human Internal Audit External
Learning Executive [E e Training for Development Assurance and Executive Supplies Resources Unit Relations

and Director, People with Office Accreditation Director, Division Division Office
Teaching Headquarters Disabilities Office Higher and B y y
(Industry B Professional i

Office

Education

Partnership)

Notes:
1) Pro-Act Training and Development Centres and Vocational Development Programme Office are under the purview of the Youth College.

2) Integrated Vocational Development Centres are under the purview of the Headquarters (Industry Partnership).
3) The Institute of Professional Education And Knowledge is under the purview of the Higher and Professional Education Office.
3) Shine Skills Centres are under the purview of Vocational Training for People with Disabilities Office.

o
1) SHEHIBET L RBEE R BN E RN T FRREE -
2) M H R AANFR (TRAM) B -

)
3) RIBEEERMTENEXHEREE -
4) REBEHERT O BERA TREREEE -
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Vocational Training Council
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OVERVIEW OF OPERATING RESULTS
= E R B

Consolidated Financial Statements

Following the prevailing accounting principles in Hong Kong, the
Council has prepared Consolidated Financial Statements for
the year 2016-17 presenting the operating results and financial
position of the Council and its subsidiaries (the Group) of the year.
A total income of HK$5,060.8M (2015-16: HK$4,912.3M) and
total expenditure of HK$4,761.7M (2015-16: HK$4,560.1M) were
reported.

Operating Results

As compared with 2015-16, the increase in the Group’s income was
mainly attributed to the increase in Government subventions largely
for pay adjustments and increase in tuition fees income from Degree
programmes.

The increase in expenditure was mainly due to the increase in staff
expenses resulting from pay adjustments and ex-gratia payment
for Voluntary Retirement Scheme 2016, increase in staff and other
operating expenses for the provision of additional student places in
Degree programmes and increase in trainee allowances for VTC Earn
& Learn Scheme.

The operating results of the major activities in 2016-17 are set out
in the paragraphs below.

Consolidated Income (2016-17)
2016-17FELHRE WA
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® (Government Subventions
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Consolidated Expenditure (2016-17)
2016-17TFEHREXH
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Activities Financed by Government Recurrent Subventions

Total income for the year 2016-17 amounted to HK$3,654.1M,
of which HK$2,620.4M was recurrent subventions from the
Government, HK$863.8M from tuition fees and training charges,
and HK$169.9M from bank interest and other income. Total
expenditure for 2016-17 amounted to HK$3,464.6M. The savings
of HK$189.5M was transferred to the Council’s Reserves for
implementation of new initiatives and other developments.

Activities Financed by Other Specific/Government Grants

In addition to the Government’s subventions, the Council
successfully obtained grants under a number of specific/
Government Funds. These mainly included the Manpower
Development Scheme, VTC Earn & Learn Scheme, Construction
Industry Council Incentive Programme to enhance the Apprenticeship
Scheme for Electrical and Mechanical Industry, Pilot Programme
on Enhancing Talent Promotion and Training for Insurance Sector
and Pilot Subsidy Scheme for Students of Professional Part-time
Programmes. Total income for the year amounted to HK$197.8M
and expenditure amounted to HK$196.0M.

Self-financing Activities

In 2016-17, the Group ran its self-financing activities mainly through
the operation of the VTC School of Business and Information
Systems, School for Higher and Professional Education (SHAPE),
Institute of Professional Education and Knowledge (PEAK),
Technological and Higher Education Institute of Hong Kong (THEI)
and Integrated Vocational Development Centre (IVDC). Total
income generated from the self-financing activities for the year was
HK$1,049.6M and total expenditure incurred was HK$939.0M.

Building Programmes and Capital Items

For the year 2016-17, a total of HK$945.0M was incurred on
building programmes and capital items. These projects included
the construction of THEi campus in Chai Wan, International Culinary
Institute (ICl) in Pokfulam, VTC Halls of Residence (Tsing Yi) as well
as other improvement projects.

Retirement Schemes

Other than the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (MPFS) set up
under the Hong Kong MPFS Ordinance, the Council’s retirement
schemes also included the VTC Provident Fund Scheme (1999). The
scheme was registered under the Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance and granted exemption pursuant to the MPFS Ordinance.

New Technology Training Fund

New Technology Training Fund (the Fund) was established by the
Government to finance the New Technology Training Scheme (the
Scheme). The Council administers the Scheme and holds the Fund
on trust for the Government. The balance of revenue fund as at 31
March 2017 was HK$3.8M.

Dr Clement CHEN Cheng-jen, SBS, JP
Chairman
15 August 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE COUNCIL MEMBERS

OF VOCATIONAL TRAINING COUNCIL

HEXIKRREFEZENRIKBMARS

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of the
Vocational Training Council (the Council) and its subsidiaries (the
Group) set out on pages 7 to 61, which comprise the consolidated
and Council balance sheets as at 31 March 2017, the consolidated
and Council statements of comprehensive income, the consolidated
and Council statements of changes in fund balances and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group and of
the financial position of the Council as at 31 March 2017 and of
the Group’s consolidated financial performance and the Council’s
financial performance and the Group’s consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRSs) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (HKSAs) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Responsibilities of the Council Members for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Council members are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and for such internal
control as the Council members determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Council
members are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Council members either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to
do so.
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Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 18 of the Vocational
Training Council Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or
the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the trustee of the Council members.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the Council members’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Council members regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

15 August 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
BHE2017TF3A3IBLFENFEELAKER

Note 2017 2016
BEE HK$’000 HK$’000
INCOME WA
Government Subventions BE@EE 3 3,035,485 2,921,811
Tuition Fees and Training Charges ZERAEEM 4 1,790,254 1,770,599
Interest Income FIEUA 57,248 55,150
Donations B 5 31,597 29,081
Other Income Hetwlgr A 6 146,265 135,672
Total Income A% 5,060,849 4,912,313
EXPENDITURE X
Staff Expenses ETHX 7
Full-time Staff Expenses 2HETIRY 3,057,306 2,866,290
Part-time Staff Expenses REBEIMX 119,843 114,762
Temporary Staff Expenses ERFETRY 315,827 302,076
Other Staff Expenses HtETIHX 25,164 27,734
3,518,140 3,310,862
Other Operating Expenses Hi&Emx
Consumables, Equipment and Library Books SHEMY M RENEE 300,341 317,017
Accommodation and Related Maintenance RERERBEBREMS
Expenses 533,992 565,338
Hire of Services and Professional Fees BHERKER 63,885 66,910
Student/Trainee Grants and Activities B4 BEEENEE 159,420 108,170
Training Boards/General Committees’ Expenses JIREES, —REEEHX 32,764 38,690
Staff Development and Visits BITER N 19,471 19,030
Interest Expenses FEBEX 18,964 19,913
Other Expenses Hiipixk 114,703 114,123
1,243,540 1,249,191
Total Expenditure S HiEEE 4,761,680 4,560,053
SURPLUS AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE FEERBREZHENREE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR 8 299,169 352,260
TRANSFER TO: ERE
Reserves HiEE 10 189,487 192,909
Specific and Other Funds BEAEKEMES 11 109,682 159,351
299,169 352,260

The Group had no components of comprehensive income other than “surplus for the year” in either of the years presented. Therefore,
the Group’s “total comprehensive income” was the same as the “surplus for the year” in both years.

BRT I AFERR N AEERERFALREEMBE2ENE BRI ERZEFENAFERK | BERN2EHWSLE] -

The notes on page 14 to page 60 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

BHE2017F3RA31HELEENE2ERER

Note 2017 2016
(i HK$'000 HK$'000
INCOME A
Government Subventions BB 3 3,026,682 2,916,051
Tuition Fees and Training Charges ZERREEN 4 944,663 938,435
Interest Income FIEUA 50,039 48,408
Donations B 5 213,635 32,730
Other Income Hibg A 6 326,112 326,720
Total Income Nt 4,561,131 4,262,344
EXPENDITURE X
Staff Expenses BTIM% 7
Full-time Staff Expenses TREIRX 2,645,396 2,470,538
Parttime Staff Expenses REBEIRX 43,074 41,041
Temporary Staff Expenses GEETHY 291,846 284,846
Other Staff Expenses HtETHX 23,116 25,457
3,003,432 2,821,882
Other Operating Expenses Hir& @M
Consumables, Equipment and Library Books SEHEMY M RENEE 278,020 292,584
Accommodation and Related Maintenance RERERBBREMS
Expenses 525,465 556,504
Hire of Services and Professional Fees HERKER 46,418 58,243
Student/Trainee Grants and Activities B4 BEHNEE 145,236 101,479
Training Boards/General Committees’ Expenses JIREEE—-RESEHX 32,716 38,616
Staff Development and Visits BTER AR 16,475 16,203
Interest Expenses MEBHX 18,964 19,913
Other Expenses Hitpas 90,415 92,728
1,153,709 1,176,270
Total Expenditure A% 4,157,141 3,998,152
SURPLUS AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME TEERBR
FOR THE YEAR 2HUN AT 8 403,990 264,192
TRANSFER TO: BEZE
Reserves FHEE 10 189,487 192,909
Specific and Other Funds BEAZRRHMES 11 214,503 71,283
403,990 264,192

The Council had no components of comprehensive income other than “surplus for the year” in either of the years presented. Therefore,
the Council’s “total comprehensive income” was the same as the “surplus for the year” in both years.

BRTY IRAFERSIN BARERFRLREHMEZENE  AUBRARZEFENAFERR ] AN [2EKSRHE] -

The notes on page 14 to page 60 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 MARCH 2017
2017¥3R31HNRAREERER

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, Plant and Equipment

Loans to Staff

Deposits

Bank Deposits with Original Maturity
Over Three Months

CURRENT ASSETS

Loans to Staff

Accounts Receivable, Prepayments and
Other Receivables

Bank Deposits with Original Maturity
Over Three Months

Cash and Cash Equivalents

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable, Accruals and Other Payables

Provision for Employee Benefits
Loans Payable within One Year
Deferred Income

NET CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Provision for Employee Benefits
Loans Payable after One Year
Deferred Income

NET ASSETS

Represented by:
Reserves
Specific and Other Funds

TOTAL FUNDS

Approved and authorised for issue
by the Vocational Training Council

on 15 August 2017
R2017F8H15H
HEEIREGESEMIRBERR

Dr Clement CHEN Cheng-jen, SBS, JP
Chairman

Vocational Training Council
BEGNREDEE

PREEZ{_E L, SBS, JP

ERBEE
Wi - BT RE
BIEX

BE

MREHRBB=EA

MBITEH

RBEE

ETEX

FEWRERTE ~ FAITRIE
R H b e BRIE

N RBB=1EA

BRITERR
RERREEEY

RBAE
FEABRIE « FERT X
REAEAIRIE

BERAER
—FRREENER
EEW 3R

RBEEFE
EERERABAE
ERBEE
BEERERE

—FREBRENER
EEW 3R

EERE
FHHES R
Gl
RBERBRHMES

e85

Note
BiEE

12
14

14

15

16

17(a)
17(d)
18
19

17(d)
18
19

10
11

The notes on page 14 to page 60 form an integral part of these financial statements.
JIHENE14EEL 0B 2 M AARMBHT 2 —3Bo -

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
3,723,260 3,029,721
480 1,205
6,849 5,835
605,683 -
4,336,272 3,036,761
556 894
118,787 85,426
4,348,237 4,510,147
211,124 785,900
4,678,704 5,382,367
1,259,501 1,248,619
438,737 400,071
1,082 2,185
290,927 276,369
1,990,247 1,927,244
2,688,457 3,455,123
7,024,729 6,491,884
14,550 8,765
427,148 427,148
1,660,125 1,432,234
2,101,823 1,868,147
4,922,906 4,623,737
324,765 330,286
4,598,141 4,293,451
4,922,906 4,623,737




BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 MARCH 2017

2017 3A31AMEERRAX

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, Plant and Equipment

Investments in Subsidiaries

Loans to Staff

Deposits

Bank Deposits with Original Maturity
Over Three Months

CURRENT ASSETS

Loans to Staff

Accounts Receivable, Prepayments
and Other Receivables

Bank Deposits with Original Maturity
Over Three Months

Cash and Cash Equivalents

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable, Accruals and Other Payables

Provision for Employee Benefits
Loans Payable within One Year
Deferred Income

NET CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Provision for Employee Benefits
Loans Payable after One Year
Deferred Income

NET ASSETS

Represented by:
Reserves
Specific and Other Funds

TOTAL FUNDS

Approved and authorised for issue
by the Vocational Training Council

on 15 August 2017

R2017F8H 15 H B
HEXIREESEMIRBEREE

Dr Clement CHEN Cheng-jen, SBS, JP
Chairman

Vocational Training Council
BRI ERE

PREZ{_E L, SBS, JP

The notes on page 14 to page 60 form an integ|
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Note
BiEE

12
13
14

14

15

16

17(a)
17(d)
18
19

17(d)
18
19

10
11

ral part of these financial statements.
paN

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
3,714,670 3,019,728
480 1,205

6,849 5,835
605,683 -
4,327,682 3,026,768
556 894
101,435 72,298
4,348,237 4,510,147
194,532 778,487
4,644,760 5,361,826
1,700,468 1,791,723
424,796 390,187
1,082 2,185
272,105 267,435
2,398,451 2,451,530
2,246,309 2,910,296
6,573,991 5,937,064
6,713 1,667
427,148 427,148
1,660,125 1,432,234
2,093,986 1,861,049
4,480,005 4,076,015
324,765 330,286
4,155,240 3,745,729
4,480,005 4,076,015




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
BE2017F3A31HLELFENKREETEHRR

Balance as at 1 April 2015
Inter-fund Transfers

Surplus and Total Comprehensive Income
for the Year

Balance as at 31 March 2016
Balance as at 1 April 2016
Inter-fund Transfers

Surplus and Total Comprehensive Income
for the Year

Balance as at 31 March 2017

2015 4 B 1 A&
REE SR

AEERE
REEREAEE

2016 F3 B 31 B&&
2016 F4 A1 B&&
AEESER

AEERR
REEREAE

2017 £3 A 31 H#EER

Specific and

Other Funds

Reserves (Note 11)

(Note 10) HER®
ES REMES Total
(M¥EE 10) (MiEE11) Fob]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
264,499 4,006,978 4.271,477
(127,122) 127,122 -
192,909 159,351 352,260
330,286 4,293,451 4,623,737
330,286 4,293,451 4,623,737
(195,008) 195,008 -
189,487 109,682 299,169
324,765 4,598,141 4,922,906

The notes on page 14 to page 60 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
BE2017TF3R831BLELFENELEFHRX

Specific and
Other Funds
Reserves (Note 11)
(Note 10) BERR
wE: REMES Total
(KizE10) (MfzE11) k]
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Balance as at 1 April 2015 2015 4 B 1 B4 264,499 3,547,324 3,811,823
Inter-fund Transfers REE SR (127,122) 127,122 -
Surplus and Total Comprehensive Income KEEER
for the Year REEWEEEE 192,909 71,283 264,192
Balance as at 31 March 2016 2016 % 3 B 31 H&EER 330,286 3,745,729 4,076,015
Balance as at 1 April 2016 2016 F 4 A 1 H& & 330,286 3,745,729 4,076,015
Inter-fund Transfers RPESEE (195,008) 195,008 -
Surplus and Total Comprehensive Income KEEER
for the Year REEWZEE 189,487 214,503 403,990
Balance as at 31 March 2017 2017 F3 A 31 A&t 324,765 4,155,240 4,480,005

The notes on page 14 to page 60 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
BHE2017TF3A3IBLFENRFEEHRERER

Note 2017 2016
Bzt HK$'000 HK$’000
Operating Activities RETEH
Surplus Btk 299,169 352,260
Adjustments for: FEIER
Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment M - WBERFEITE 8 253,818 262,300
Gain on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment HENE - BEkRE2 W 8 (7 (156)
Interest Income FEWA (57,248) (55,150)
Operating Surplus before Changes in Working Capital BEELRHRI 2 RERR 495,722 559,254
(Increase)/Decrease in Deposits and Accounts RITEHER  EUERE »
Receivable, Prepayments and Other Receivables BARER M ERRE
2 ($8m) /md (34,375) 45,895
Increase in Accounts Payable, Accruals FEfTERIE » FESH R
and Other Payables HitEAERIB 218 M 10,882 99,414
Increase in Provision for Employee Benefits EERFIEE2EM 44,451 20,867
Increase/(Decrease) in Deferred Income EREWE 220,/ (D) 242,449 (35,656)
Net Decrease in Bank Loan for On-lending to Staff BETEINRITERZFED (1,103) (560)
Decrease in Loans to Staff EIEHZEYD 1,063 565
Cash Generated from Operating Activities RezypEE2R 759,089 689,779
Cash Flows from Investing Activities RETHZHASR
Payment of Capital Expenditure EARXHAH (947,557) (866,871)
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment HENE « BRRREMEHE 217 265
Interest Received S HHE 57,248 55,150
(Increase)/Decrease in Placement of Fixed Deposits NiREBBBRE=1ANRT
with Banks with Original Maturity over Three Months Tz (Em /md (443,773) 201,160
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities RETHFERANREEE (1,333,865) (610,296)
Net (Decrease)/Increase in Cash ReRHSEBYZF
and Cash Equivalents (H2),/ % (574,776) 79,483
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at 1 April RAB1BNBEERELEEY 785,900 706,417
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at 31 March RIAMLANRERELSEEY 16 211,124 785,900

The notes on page 14 to page 60 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 o R M 5E
1. BACKGROUND
BHR

(a)

(b)

14

The Vocational Training Council (the Council) was established in Hong Kong under the Vocational Training Council Ordinance
(the Ordinance). Under Section 17(3) of the Ordinance, the Council has to cause to be prepared, after the end of each financial
year, a statement of comprehensive income of the Council during that financial year and a balance sheet of the Council on the
last day thereof.

BB (ABEEIE ) 2R ECHR N R B R (B ZEO) EE BRI - ZEBIFL7S)IRKRE - BIBENSEI K
FEALRE  GEBZMHRFELELALNZAWRER  URREEBNEEARERK

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
FEGHER

Statement of Compliance
EREH

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(HKFRSs), which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (HKASs) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA)
and accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the
Council and its subsidiaries (collectively the Group) is set out below.
AEBHRRDIRBEBSTHTMASLAMABEANEBMBREER) (BEABERZENKEBHBRELEL) - (BB
BIEADKRZRE > UREBARSHER) MAERN - BIIBREMB LR (RBAKE) RANTESTBRMENT -

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting period of the Group
and the Council. None of these developments have had a material effect on how the Group’s and the Council’s results and
financial position for the current or prior periods have been prepared or presented.
ERSMASAME THIEREEITICEBMBREER)  HEEREAEBRBIIBEA 2SHHBERER - Z
ZEIRBHARBREBIBEAPIBENBENEERMBEMRRBENERLE -

The Group has not applied any new standards or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current accounting period (see
Note 24).
B S ARAEAEARARSTHHBERNWIERLZE B2HME24) ©

Basis of Preparation of the Financial Statements
MBRRNVmREE

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 comprise the Council and its subsidiaries.

BE2017F3 A3 ALFENGREMNBBRREFBIRBREMBLR -

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is the historical cost basis.

Y BHRREANBLRANERTEER -

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
EEBERENS(ERMBREEA) 2V BRRE  EFHSHSHERZEARYEE 868  WARIHZIHS
BB EELHAE - A RER - ZEATREBBRRIRBBE2KBRAGEEEEBATESENEMEEMIE
H o HERHAEEBAEEIRHEHMBRRTHAEEREBENRABHEAHENER - BMERTEBRINZSMHET -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 ¥ &R M 5E

(b)

(c)

(d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
EEGEEER (8

Basis of Preparation of the Financial Statements (Cont’d)
B mR AR BERE ()

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

:Zﬁ1$‘+&$ﬁ%%1€i:ﬁ§ﬁ.; @Et o BETHESTETEN > BRI RFEIEFHNENE SEEFNESTHARIER
18] 5 ST EEMR AR - AIEERRARABABRREREIET ©

Subsidiaries
Ff /B 2 B

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group control an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and the parties) are considered.
MBARRESAEBEFNER - EXARBEBZ2HERENSRNEBEEMAERZR IS @#&M&Lﬁﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁ%&%@
A AIAKBESIZER - EEAEBRESHEAE LB N  EZE (AMBREMSEE) BEER -

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences
until the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

HB A RNRESHIGHEFERBBEIAGEMBRERA  EELHELLERLE - BBARTAZBNERRRS @ U
REBRARARZEERZMEENRERER » SR F%&r/\ﬁﬂs’?#&%@ﬂf%uéﬁ?&fé BEBARRIZEERZMEEN
REBEBESNSERETRKNERT » IKERSRREWER S EF UK -

In the Council’s balance sheet, investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impairment losses (see Note
2(f)).
ERIBEzEEEERA BB A RNKREURNNRREEERES R (FSEME2()

Property, Plant and Equipment
Wz > HBRRE

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see Note 2(f)).

M - BRRRBURSBRRTHTERRERBESR F2HEME2()

Land and/or buildings owned or held under a leasehold interest by the Council which are leased to subsidiaries are classified
as campus used by a subsidiary in the Council’s balance sheet. Such assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (see Note 2(f)).

BIREESUEERERFE 2L K REF - AUEE %m%@a , %E’\\\H%EEJII%,‘ZﬁEEJ KPS BERAWELBER
ZRE - ZEEEUMAK R ETITE RBEBESIR G2 R 2(f
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 75 ¥R 2% Mt 5
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
FEGHBER (8)
(d) Property, Plant and Equipment (Cont’d)
Y% - W R R (R
The Group estimates the useful lives of various categories of property, plant and equipment on the basis of their designed life,
planned asset maintenance programme and actual usage experience. Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if any, using the straight line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:
ABBRIZETBYR MBERRE R FH > BETARBRERGER  REAETTEAERFE - 95X - HBERBHBOFT
EREEANRERMATREERE (WER)  BUBRFUEAZFRUESETE  UBHEKAR - FHEUOT :
- Interests in leasehold land held for own use are depreciated over the unexpired term of lease.
RERHEELh o ERBRATHNHEBHERE -
- Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their estimated
useful lives, being no more than 50 years after the date of completion.
VAEELH F2ETF  BEHTWHEBRFEFIFERER  EFRZHAERBHES0F (EREE) RTETE -
- Improvements works shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their estimated useful lives of 5-7 years
BFRETE BT WHEESBH AEAFR (5-7F) » UBREERE
- Furniture and equipment shorter of the duration of the project and their estimated useful lives of 4-7 years
HRARKE BHWFERERFETAIFEAFER (4-7F)  UBEER%E
- Computer equipment shorter of the duration of the project and their estimated useful lives of 4-7 years
ES B BHWFERERFETAIFEAFER (4-7F)  UBEER%E
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, each part is depreciated separately. Both
the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
3 - WERBENEHDNAEAFRTE  SHONMESERHE - EEZTRFRRAFRER (WEH) 9
REFETRE -
Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income on the date of retirement or disposal.
WMEEHEY - MBERRBZWARNEEDNRBEENSRAFHEEEEERAB2EEREE  YRBERLHEE
HIAZEWRZHERA °
(e) Construction in Progress

16

EEIR

Construction in progress is stated at cost, which comprises accumulated costs of construction, professional fees and interest
expenses, if any, capitalised prior to the completion of the respective projects, less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the construction in progress is transferred to the appropriate category
of property, plant and equipment when the construction is completed and the asset is ready for its intended use.
EREIREUNSHBRBEEBYER  BERFTEAFE HASREEFREER EXEBEARIBTRAIMERLWRE
SH(MER) EIRTHK  EECHUFEEAZE UERAESELEERL MEERIBRGCEEAYE - HEBREK
BREENERF -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 ¥ &R M 5E

()

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
EEGEEER (8

Impairment of Assets
EERE

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify indications that the following
assets may be impaired, or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:
THEEESELERSZEALNIRNES  UBEUTEERSHBRETNR A2 UFRRANBEEETBEEES
BEHD :

Property, plant and equipment (including campus used by a subsidiary);

M - HBERFRE (BEMEBARERZRE) |

Construction in progress; and
FEIR K

Investments in subsidiaries.

HMBATRIRE ©

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income whenever the carrying amount of such an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
MEHBRRESR  FEEHEENTRESENGE cBEEENRESESRTREISER  ESE2HRERERR
EE518 -

(i)

(ii)

Calculation of Recoverable Amount

AR E HEETE

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely independent of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
EENATNEHEREARBHREENAEEREEMEFNRSHE - RFMEEREER  AFHNARRRSRE
DRIARERMBEKETSTHESKHEREECRERBHATMAR  MREZHRE BEEFTEBEYREMEE
ELXREeRER  BURBUELRENENGT)—HEE(TELERSEN) ABNEBETREIEEE -

Recoghnition of Impairment Losses

BRRESR

An impairment loss is recognised in statement of comprehensive income if the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if determinable).
EEERHEHMBNRSLEEEVNREERBAUKREEER  HESEESTWRERTER - REEEBNNWREE
BEARLAIREZEN (RZAEN) WEEREE  EEENEEETSHEEAEER D RERE SN (40
AJEtE) e AEE (WEEE) -

17



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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()

(8

18

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
ETEGEER (&

Impairment of Assets (Cont’d)
BEERE (&)

(iii) Reversal of Impairment Losses

HERRERD

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are credited to the
statement of comprehensive income in the year in which the reversals are recognised.
EREREATRESENGTTHRENEEHE  EENESESHRED - MELNHESBURRENTFERE
RBEEENEERESHERR - FEENRESEEREIBEENFEANTAZEKESR -

Accounts and Other Receivables

FEUK BRI R EL At B RR IR

Accounts and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts, except where the receivables are interest-free loans made
to related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the
receivables are stated at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

FEWERIER i ERIE SRR A A BERR - HRERERAREEERAS - WNBREBERBRNBEERSIER - HERE
WREREBETHESLEERRZEEEFERMNERIITREETI A » BRFERSREANBREBERZRNEERSE
D8R o

Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts are recognised when there is objective evidence of impairment and are
measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate where the effect of discounting is material. Objective evidence of
impairment includes observable data that comes to the attention of the Group about events that have an impact on the asset’s
estimated future cash flows such as significant financial difficulty of the debtor.

ERHENEERER  RERNEAESEESHER - RERNAESERENEENRABEEMATRRRAERENE
B OMTRNEEER AEFR - BENTERBEERE - LURNEE  BErE4EBRERELARBEENMFTRRR
TRE  MEBABHBRE -

Impairment losses for accounts receivable included within accounts, prepayments and other receivables whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote are recorded using an allowance account. When the Group is satisfied that the recovery is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written off against accounts receivable directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged to the allowance
account are reversed against the allowance account. Other changes in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off directly are recognised in statement of comprehensive income.

REWERE « ANRIEREMERRIES » BLEREHE/ME  BEXFAAOYEZBURENRESESCHENREZRE
B BEAKBRAATEREMNEE +oME  RESHEEREBUIRIEGRHK  FEEBREFNEEISISERD - WEERE
BREBRREPHRESNZRERERD - HtREZRRE cBENKOC EEERRIEENZH KA R PR



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 ¥ &R M 5E

(h)

(i)

1)

(k)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
EEGEEER (8

Cash and Cash Equivalents
ReRRELEEY

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
RERRELZEYEERTEFRRREE - FRARITNEHMBBERENZTHER  UREPHSREBMENRE - ELRET]
LR MEACHNNREHEE  EEEHNRERTR  YEBAR=EARNEIE -

Accounts and Other Payables
PEBRIA R H A FE A FRIE

Accounts and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

BAREREMENFENGREZ A ABERR - HEUBHENATIR - EEITRZENK IR

Loans and Borrowings
ERREE

Loans and borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference between the amount initially recognised and redemption
value being recognised in the statements of comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings, together with any
interest and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

ERREENREAABENREEZRZ NAER - HE > ERREENHERATIR - rEIEEHELEEZE
HERMEAEIMANAMERER  RE2EWREXRPUBRAZRTE  UiREEFHER -

Employee Benefits
EEEA

(i) Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, leave passage and the cost to the Group of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered by employees of the Group. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

e FERE - E%Eﬁ\ﬁﬁmﬁiﬁﬁﬂﬁ# SHEBARA > EAKBESREBBERENFERALR © fd
MENXNHENFLEEREEESEBEA  AIRESESUHRESIR -

(i) Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds as required under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance are recognised as an expense in the statement of comprehensive income as incurred.

REFBCRFE 2B EMRIDAREFEHAVEFIE LIRS HR > WMIFKE2EARERAEIR/MAZ -

(iii) Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to terminate
employment or to provide benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed formal plan which is without
realistic possibility of withdrawal.

BRRLIBEREEAEBEEEN - ARBRHE FTEREREMNEZETRMN)  TERRRTERLESEAE
HEREMGT MR LEESNMEF LMERTER -
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
ETEGEER (&

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
EBERIEAEE

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the Council has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

EAKBERBI B ERERENSHRELEIETERL  MBTZEKEHNEERZERBERNENERING  EOE
EEJ%EJ’?{E%;H%  AMBEENZEHRRNYEIENEETIREE - MREXEBEEEAR » AIREEITREMEXE
HIRESH P o

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
MESERENZNERIRNTRLERK  IRELHEEREELETENMGST  EFEZIRBEEARETEE ) BR
MEBERMRNAREEBRERIRI c MRTEBHNEBERTFERIZRARELHRERESEREFETES  FEK
EAZEEE  BRUOSEERINRIN AT/ AIBRI

Income Recognition
WA TR

Income is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group or the Council and the income and expenditure, if applicable, can be measured reliably, income
is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as follows:

WA ZREWRERREZ AABETE - MRLERRTESRATEESRIGE - MBRAFIRAR (MNER) XN %
WETER > WAFERETIHEEEZEARZRAER

(i) Government Subventions

Government subventions consist of recurrent subventions, non-recurrent subventions and other specific grants
received from the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (the Government). Recurrent
subventions are recognised as income in the statement of comprehensive income when there is reasonable assurance
that the Group or the Council will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that the subventions will be
received. Non-recurrent subventions are recognised as income to the extent of the related expenditure incurred during
the year.

BB EEREREEERITHRBUNT (BHEBUF) WEEHY - kKERDRAEMBSERRRER - EAUEE
BEARBIABIREETERNTRERESRICEFYSRRE  CELHDEESEEREREIBK
A REFHYLUFABENTRAIHEERREIRBWA -

Subventions and grants earmarked for capital expenditure purpose are initially accounted for as deferred income (see
Note 2(n)) and are subsequently recognised as income over the useful life of the related assets when the assets are
put into use, to the extent of the related depreciation expenses incurred for that period.
EEARERIENEDEREBERVESEWIIAREL R F2HMTE2n)  HEEZEEREAR > #heRk
BREREBEEEZTATFHRUZHABNEENES LS EAMRBEIR/UEA -
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(m)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
EEGEEER (8

Income Recognition (Cont’d)
WA ()

(i)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Government Subventions (Cont’d)

B % (&)

Other specific grants without a condition for refund of any unspent balances are recognised as income in the statement
of comprehensive income when received, while for those specific grants that contain a condition for refund of any
unspent balances are recognised as income to the extent of the related expenditure incurred during the year.
REMTEHERBNFERRERN  BERUEREZZAKRER LEIR/BA - BEERERENSEAREBR
BUFABRENEERZISHERRAFRERRBWA

Tuition Fees and Training Charges

BENREER

Tuitions fees and training charges are recognised as income on an accrual basis over the duration of the courses and
unearned fees and charges are treated as receipts in advance.
BERREEASRRABEERBUETHAR  HAHEERKBARIRFEARTIE -

Interest Income

FMEWA

Interest income from bank deposits is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest method.

RITEFAERE WA RAER R REFE LR o

Donations
B

Donations are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income when the Group or the Council becomes entitled
to the donations and it is probable that they will be received, which is generally upon receipt of cash.

SNRBMR AR BB ER TREWHZIAREE  BERUBBRESHEZARER LBIBEA -

Hire of Accommodation/Facilities under Operating Leases

REBENES RitZHEBRA

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease term.
REMFENRBESWATHENFORENSFTHEA - USBEE2EHKERER -

Services Income

BRAEULA

Services income is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income when the related services are rendered.

BBVRAEEERBREUREZEREREIBEA
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
ETEGEER (&

Deferred Income
ERE W 2

Government subventions earmarked for specific purposes are initially recorded as deferred income which is subsequently
recognised as income to the extent of the related expenditure or depreciation expenses charged to related assets are incurred.

BERZRNBAHEBENRERIARELEYRS  EEUEBERXIEREENTEIHESRAMRBIBLA -

Operating Lease Expenses
REHEX W

Where the Group or the Council has the use of assets held under operating leases which do not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group or the Council, payments made under the leases are charged to the statement
of comprehensive income in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to statement of comprehensive income in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.
AHRBIBIFEERLEHE (REHEENEEHENEY  REBB Iy EEEEEHE 2 B KR RMEZE T KIS
RBINE)EREE  ARFERHEEECEENEEAEARRMEZS —E%  RASRKREBEEFEENAR - £HE
FIRENETHER  UEEEZEKRERNR - FIENHEEEE  DEAERBTFHESREN—X2  E2ERERE
ReoHBEHENEEE2STHHRE  E2EWERPER -

Borrowing Costs

BERA

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Wig - BRESEEEE (M E—BRRNHREEZHETAZRI TUHEENEE) FEEANEERBEZ2BERARITT AZE
BEEZHAN  -HifBENTIREEZHBEEZ A E -

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or
sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities necessary
to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

MEEERBAX  FENARETREARIXTFUHENEEMENTE  EELNEERASHREACEREENE
DHEA - BREEERRLETHLAMEERTARKEER  NEEIEFELEZBERLEEL
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B 75 8 R M 5E

(a)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
EEGEEER (8

Related Parties

BES

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the Group if that person:

HEBAT AL BIRZALTRERENTRKERLEBERE

(@)

(b)

has control or joint control over the Group;

P e L E R I A A

has significant influence over the Group; or

HAKBEEAZE X

is a member of the key management personnel of the Group.

AARBNEIEEEAS -

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the foIIowing Conditions applies:

i fF & T IUEM —IRIRG - BIXEREREEERHE

(@)

The entity and the Group are members of the same group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

ZEREAKBER -HEBRE (AZFQE WBARARBRKMEBEQDRULEEE)

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group of which the other entity is a member).

R-ERAS ERNHMERNASIGELEX (RS ERANE AR ZHBIETHEZHERAREEDR
%)

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

MEEERIRR-—F=T28&tE -

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity.
RBAF=HERBZRELE ME—ERAF=FERBZHELR -

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

ZERATHEBREAKBEERERNESENMRNBERRENTE -

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (i).

ZERE ()R T EH R HEES -

A person identified in (i)(a) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

R(i)a) BEATAIHERBEALENIBLER (FZEREIRF) TEEEAR -

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management personnel services to the
Group.

ZERIEEANEMAL - AREBRERBREERS -

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by,
that person in their dealings with the entity.

BRATHREARKERIEHEERETRE N  RPTRFEZENA LRI ZERIATHENRERS -
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Bt 75 3R &R Mt 5
3. GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS
B#BE
Consolidated
=)
2017 2016
HK$’'000 HK$’000
Recurrent Subventions KEMYE 2,620,427 2,528,065
Non-recurrent Subventions FEEmBE
— Capital Works Reserve Fund - IEREES
Major Capital Projects REEETRE 236,979 27,692
Minor Building Projects NRURER TR 99,864 105,280
Non-recurrent Subventions 'a'F,?é‘é wEE
— Capital Accounts EREEHE
Major Capital Items ﬁﬂ@%ﬁlﬁ B 28,660 14,077
Plant, Vehicles and Equipment HE -~ BEE&REE 32,155 32,538
Capital Items for Skills Centres e RPOERER 5,140 3,966
Grants from Government Agencies BT RR 210,062 151,645
Matching Grants (Note 3(a)) BB & (FIEE 3(a)) 3,027 2,709
Other Capital Projects Fund * HERITRES * (219,793) 35,926
Interest Subsidy on Loan from Government BRAER 2R 228, 18,964 19,913
3,035,485 2,921,811
The Council
B E
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
Recurrent Subventions REmEE 2,620,427 2,528,038
Non-recurrent Subventions R ﬁ‘ﬂﬂé
— Capital Works Reserve Fund RIEREES
Major Capital Projects jtﬂ'ls_ L T2 236,979 27,692
Minor Building Projects NEIRBER TR 99,864 105,280
Non-recurrent Subventions FRERYE
— Capital Accounts — 2B
Major Capital ltems REGZERIER 28,660 14,077
Plant, Vehicles and Equipment BE - B KE 1% 32,155 32,538
Capital Items for Skills Centres EEE R OERIER 5,140 3,966
Grants from Government Agencies BUR BB R 201,259 145,912
Matching Grants (Note 3(a)) ¥t #Br & (Mt 3(a 3,027 2,709
Other Capital Projects Fund * Hib@ZRTRES * (219,793) 35,926
Interest Subsidy on Loan from Government BUREFZF SE8, 18,964 19,913
3,026,682 2,916,051
* Included in the balance are HK$181 million (2016: HK$198 million) being depreciation of capital expenditure during the year which

24

is released from deferred income and HK$401 million (2016: HK$162 million) being capital expenditure recognised as deferred

income (see Note 19).

i —

EHEEAFENER B 1/58,100E T (20165 : B#51{59,8008 7)1
F B 16,2008 ) WEAREZAIMEBABELEWRE (FBF2HME19) -

EIEWEERAWA - ME4EL100ETT

(2016



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 ¥ &R M 5E

(a)

GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont’d)

KB (48)
Matching Grants
[TESEC
The matching grants comprise:
BHHBEEE:
Consolidated and the Council
e REsIE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for H FBE AR LERE
Post-secondary Students (Note 3(a)(i)) (FffEE 3(a)(i)) 3,027 2,709
Sixth Matching Grant Scheme FEREWOE S ETE
(Note 3(a)(ii) (MFEE 3(a)(ii)) - -
3,027 2,709
(i) Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary Students

EFBLRBEREETE

A Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary Students (the Scheme) was launched from the 2011/12
academic year to subsidise post-secondary students participating in short-term internship or learning programmes
in Mainland China on a matching basis. The Government matching grants and the related donations are separately
disclosed below in compliance with the requirement of the Scheme.

H2011/128F % BAFETHNE LSERRREETS(BRTE)  URHEXERDE EE242PEABZ2M
EHEEREEEH c BNREEEREEENESEHREFENERER BIBERIBHERER -

The portion of the grants received which has not been utilised was recorded as government subventions under deferred
income. The grants are recognised as income upon utilisation to the extent of the amount of related expenditure
actually incurred. During the financial year 2016-17, HK$3,027,000 (2015-16, HK$2,709,000) was recognised
as the grants income and as at 31 March 2017, the balance of deferred income was HK$13,578,000 (2015-16:
HK$10,944,000).

HoeWzBRMERERAIABEERE THBFHPE - ZBRAERAEUERBENERAXHESEARE
RBWA ©2016-17THHEFEER T HRA R B 302.787T(2015-16F : B¥270.987T) » MMR2017F3A31
B ELEWRMERREA B 1,357.8 8T (2015-16 F : B 1,094.4&7T) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 o R M 5E

3. GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont'd)
BUTHEBhE ()

(a) Matching Grants (Cont’d)
BHHEBE (&)
(i) Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary Students (Cont’d)
EFS8ERMERESHE (&)

Consolidated

=
Matching Matched
Grants Donations
[Nk [iREEE=EN
HK$’'000 HK$’000
Balance as at 1 April 2015 2015%F 4 B 1 B 248k 13,519 3,208
Income g

Grants Received/Matched Donations S 1: - - -
Interest Income FEUWA 134 17
134 17

Expenditure met from Grants/Donations KHFEe BRI

AR E A

Students Exchange Activities BAERED 2,533 -
Students Competitions BAE 22 -
Students Industrial Attachments BATHEEY 58 -
Students Study Programmes BHERLTE 61 -
Students Training Activities BAINHES 35 -
Scholarships and Prizes RBERRS -~ 1,459
Other Student Development Activities Hih B4 B RIEE) - 24
Other Expenses HihE A - 3
2,709 1,486
Balance as at 31 March 2016 2016 £ 3 A 31 Az &tk 10,944 1,739
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 ¥ &R M 5E

3. GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont'd)
KB E (48)

(a) Matching Grants (Cont’d)
BB & ()

)] Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary Students (Cont’d)

LS4 R RS ()

Balance as at 1 April 2016

Income
Grants Received/Matched Donations
Interest Income

Expenditure met from Grants/Donations

Students Exchange Activities
Students Competitions

Students Industrial Attachments
Students Study Programmes
Students Training Activities
Scholarships and Prizes

Other Student Development Activities
Other Expenses

Balance as at 31 March 2017

2016 F 4 B 1 H 2 &8k
Wz

AL ) o Ei=E N
FEUTEA

KEmBE IBRATEAS
HEREE A
BEITRED
BALLE
BAETHED
BLBETE
B4 ERES
RBSRES
HitnB L BRI
HtBA

2017 F 3 B 31 H 2484

Consolidated

o=
Matching Matched
Grants Donations
[NEagEEnka B REIB X
HK$’000 HK$’000
10,944 1,739
5,529 11,058
132 68
5,661 11,126
2,507 -
112 -
214 -
29 -
165 -
- 6,465
- 1,933
- 368
3,027 8,766
13,578 4,099
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3 R M 5E

3. GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont'd)
BUTHEBhE ()

(a) Matching Grants (Cont’d)
BHHEBE (&)

(i) Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary Students (Cont’d)
EFS8ERMERESHE (&)

28

The Council
BFNE
Matching Matched
Grants Donations
[Nk [iREEE=EN
HK$’'000 HK$’000
Balance as at 1 April 2015 2015%F 4 B 1 B 248k 13,519 2,901
Income g

Grants Received/Matched Donations S 1: - - -
Interest Income FEUWA 134 17
134 17

Expenditure met from Grants/Donations KHFEe BRI

AR E A

Students Exchange Activities BERES 2,533 -
Students Competitions BAE 22 -
Students Industrial Attachments BATHEEY 58 -
Students Study Programme BHERLTE 61 -
Students Training Activities BAINHES 35 -
Scholarships and Prizes RBERRS -~ 1,368
Other Student Development Activities Hih B4 B RIEE) - 6
Other Expenses HihE A - 3
2,709 1,377
Balance as at 31 March 2016 2016 £3 A 31 Az &6k 10,944 1,541




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 8 &} M 5E

(a)

GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont’d)
KB (48)

Matching Grants (Cont’d)
BB & ()

(i)

(i)

Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary Students (Cont’d)

LS4 R RS ()

The Council
55311 5
Matching Matched
Grants Donations
[iNESE B REIB X
HK$’000 HK$’000
Balance as at 1 April 2016 2016 F 4 B 1 Az 458k 10,944 1,541
Income &

Grants Received/Matched Donations AL ) o Ei=E N 5,529 10,983
Interest Income FIE WA 132 68
5,661 11,051

Expenditure met from Grants/Donations KEmBE IBRATEAS

MIEEEE A

Students Exchange Activities BAEMNES 2,507 -
Students Competitions BALLE 112 -
Students Industrial Attachments BAETHEE 214 -
Students Study Programme BHBETE 29 -
Students Training Activities BAIJIHES 165 -
Scholarships and Prizes BEBERRES - 6,370
Other Student Development Activities HihEB A RRITE - 1,800
Other Expenses HiwEH - 368
3,027 8,538
Balance as at 31 March 2017 20173 A 31 Az &k 13,578 4,054

Sixth Matching Grant Scheme
FRWEH W& T E

A 6th Matching Grant Scheme was launched from the 2012/13 academic year and covers both operations funded by
the Education Bureau (EDB) and self-financing operations of the Council on a matching basis. The private donations
and government matching grants are segregated in respect of EDB funded and self-financing operations in compliance
with the requirement of the 6th Mathing Grant Scheme.

H2012/1328F i » BN HTHE A WEHHDEHE  URHEEXRERINIEHHEREYRBELENIE - FA
ABREBAREHBSRETIANEEER  UHEREWEEFAKRBELEF NS HIENUBHRERR ©
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(a)

30

Matching Grants (Cont’d)
[TEagc A )

GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont’'d)
EUrTHEBhE ()

Sixth Matching Grant Scheme (Cont’d)

SERWMEHHB S8 (F)

Balance as at 1 April 2015

Transfer between Operations upon Actual

Usage of Grants/Donations

Income
Grants Received (Note 3(a)(ii)(1))

Interest Income

Expenditure met from Grants/Donations

Teaching and Research Enhancement

Intemationalisation and Student
Exchange Activities

Scholarships and Prizes

Bursaries

Student Development

Capital Projects (Note 3(a)(ii)(2))

Others

Balance as at 31 March 2016

Expenditure by Level of Study
Sub-degree Operations
Degree and Above

01554 B 1258

RE#YS /B
ERERERMER

s
e
(Ft3E 3(a)ii(1)
FBBA

e/ B3
FxNOREER
YEAERTZ
BREREERRED

REcRRE
hes
SLRR

BRIEE (W 3(a)i2)

At

2016F 331 BER

Xt (AEBEEDE)
HELRE
B LRE

Consolidated

st BRI
HKS'000 HK$'000

st [
HK$'000 HK$'000

nv‘\é
EDB-fun;jed Operatiqn Self—finqncing Opeyation Total
BERENEER HEEERT it
Matching Matched Matching Matched Matching Matched
Grants Donations Grants Donations Grants Donations

st BREH
HK$'000 HKS'000

38,789 16,457 19,375 11,578 58,164 28,035
56 60 (56) (60) - -
38,845 16,517 19,319 11,518 58,164 28,035
425 162 210 112 635 274
425 162 210 112 635 274
1,825 - 2,374 - 4199 -
- 1,538 - 1,009 - 2,547

/A - NA - VA :
197 224 142 170 339 39%
N/A (19) - - - (19)
200 905 113 1,163 313 2,068
2222 2,648 2,629 2,342 4851 4,990
37,048 14,031 16,900 9,288 53,948 23,319
2222 2,648 1,626 2,331 3,848 4979
- - 1,003 11 1,003 1
2,222 2,648 2,629 2,342 4851 4990




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 ¥ R M 5E

3. GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont'd)
KB (48)

(a) Matching Grants (Cont’d)
EHHYE ()
(i) Sixth Matching Grant Scheme (Cont’d)
EXRBEHHE S E (8

Consolidated

A
Uy =|
EDB-fungied Qperatiqn Self—finqncing Opeyation Total
BEREMEERT HEEEAA At
Matching Matched Matching Matched Matching Matched
Qrants Donations Qrants Donations Qrants Donations
kst RER [ Tiga RER R3S RERH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Balance as at 1 April 2016 016F 4B 1B ER 37,048 14,031 16,900 9,288 53,948 23,319
Transfer between Operations upon Actual ~ RIEEENS /BH2
Usage of Grants/Donations ERERERmER 92 230 (92) (230) = -
37,140 14,261 16,808 9,058 53,948 23,319
Income W&
Interest Income IELON 3091 136 158 73 549 209
391 136 158 73 549 209
Expenditure met from Grants/Donations & ei#EnS /B85
i ANEEER
Teaching and Research Enhancement YERERHR - - - - - -
Intemationalisation and Student BB REERRED
Exchange Activities 4,431 - 3,809 - 8,240 -
Scholarships and Prizes RELRES - 1,636 - 760 - 2,396
Bursaries e N/A - N/A - N/A -
Student Development SRR 325 25 212 5 537 30
Capital Projects (Note 3(a)(ii)(2)) BROER (FEE3()i2) N/A - - - - -
Others = - 9% - 23 - 119
4,756 1,757 4,021 788 8,111 2,545
Balance as at 31 March 2017 017F 3B AL 32,175 12,640 12,945 8,343 45,120 20,983
Expenditure by Level of Study T (AEEREDE)
Sub-degree Operations AELEE 4,756 1,757 2,362 788 7118 2,545
Degree and Above SRR = = 1,659 = 1,659 =
4,756 1,757 4,021 788 8,177 2,545

(1) The 6th Matching Grant Scheme covered donations from 1 August 2012 to 31 July 2014 which had been fully matched and

received in 2014/15. There was no grant received in 2015/16 and 2016/17.
BERWOEHEEHEREH2012F8A1BE2014F7A31HMNER  WEHE2014/15 B FTREH KUK
2015/16 & 2016/17 BFRIA R BMBIE WA

(2) Being adjustment relating to improvement works capitalised based on contractors’ claimed values of which was adjusted

upon finalisation of contract values.

BTREAPHERNTEREERENENAZIRE  CRERSNEEREE -
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(a)

32

Matching Grants (Cont’d)
BHHEBE (&)

GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont'd)
BUTHEBhE ()

Sixth Matching Grant Scheme (Cont’d)

BRWMEHHB S8 (F)

Balance as at 1 April 2015

Transfer between Operations upon Actual

Usage of Grants/Donations
Transfer to Subsidiary

Income
Grants Received (Note 3(a)(ii)(1))

Interest Income

Expenditure met from Grants/Donations

Teaching and Research Enhancement

Intemationalisation and Student
Exchange Activities

Scholarships and Prizes

Bursaries

Student Development

Capital Projects (Note 3(a)(ii)(2))

Others

Balance as at 31 March 2016

Expenditure by Level of Study
Sub-degree Operations
Degree and Above

015F4 B 1B &S

RE#YS /B
ERERERMER
ERZHELT

1S
ElzES
(H3E 3(a)i) 1))
FEWA

Eamne/B1
e REER
YEASRHE
AR REETRED

REGRES

nES

BLEE

ER0A (W& 3(a)i2)
Hh

016F 3031 H2ER

Xit (UEBEEDE)
AS1RE
Ll LRE

The Council
BillR

EDB-funded Operation Selffinancing Operation Total

HEREYEERL BEEER ait
Matching Matched Matching Matched Matching Matched
Grants Donations Grants Donations Grants Donations
stk REER  Eofhe REER  EHEye REER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
38,789 16,457 17179 11,567 55,968 28,024
56 60 (56) (60) - -
- - (2,152) - (2,152) -
38,845 16,517 14,971 11,507 53,816 28,024
425 162 210 112 635 274
425 162 210 112 635 274
1,825 - 1,480 - 3,305 -
- 1,538 - 1,009 - 2,547
N/A - N/A - N/A -
197 224 113 169 310 393
N/A (19) - - - (19
200 905 33 1,153 233 2,058
2,222 2,648 1,626 2,331 3,848 4979
37,048 14,031 13,555 9,288 50,603 23319
2,222 2,648 1,626 2,331 3,848 4979
2222 2,648 1,626 2331 3,848 4979




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 8 &} M 5E

3. GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont'd)
KB (48)

(a) Matching Grants (Cont’d)
BB & ()

(i) Sixth Matching Grant Scheme (Cont’d)
FmEE BT E (&)

The Council
BilR
EDB-fungied Qperatiqn Self—fingncing Opeyation Total
BEREMEER HEEEAA At
Matching Matched Matching Matched Matching Matched
Qrants Donations Qrants Donations Qrants Donations
[ksptE RERS [ iga BRI [TR3peT RERH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Balance as at 1 April 2016 2016%F4 A1A2ER 37,048 14,031 13555 9,288 50,603 23319
Transfer between Operations upon Actual ~ RIERENS /1B52
Usage of Grants/Donations ERERERmER 9 230 (92) (230) - -
Net Transfer from Subsidiary HHBATFER - - 411 - 41 -
37,140 14,261 13,874 9,058 51,014 23,319
Income s
Interest Income HERA 391 136 158 73 549 209
391 136 158 73 549 209
Expenditure met from Grants/Donations & eiBn% /B85
FixfAtEEER
Teaching and Research Enhancement YEHERHR - - - - - -
Interationalisation and Student ARt REERAED
Exchange Activities 4431 - 2,150 - 6,581 -
Scholarships and Prizes RELRKS - 1,636 = 760 = 2,396
Bursaries S N/A - N/A = N/A -
Student Development BIRE 325 25 212 5 537 30
Capital Projects (Note 3(a)(ii)(2)) R2eaR (W 3(a)i2) N/A - - - - -
Others 2 - 9 - 23 - 119
4,756 1,757 2,362 788 7118 2,545
Balance as at 31 March 2017 017E3A 3 AL 32,775 12,640 11,670 8,343 44,445 20,983
Expenditure by Level of Stuy T (AEEREDE)
Sub-degree Operations AELERE 4,756 1,757 2,362 788 7118 2,545
Degree and Above Bt LEE - - - - - -
4,756 1,757 2,362 788 7,118 2,545

(1) The 6th Matching Grant Scheme covered donations from 1 August 2012 to 31 July 2014 which had been fully matched and

received in 2014/15. There was no grant received in 2015/16 and 2016/17.
BAMEEE ST ERER2012F8A1AZE2014F 7 A31 BB - WEE2014/15 2 F R A E KUK o
2015/16 % 2016/17 FAIM R EREI UL A ©

(2) Being adjustment relating to improvement works capitalised based on contractors’ claimed values of which was adjusted

upon finalisation of contract values.

BTREAPHERNIREERERENAZIRE  CRERSNEERFE -
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B 75 3 R M 5E

4. TUITION FEES AND TRAINING CHARGES

BERRIZER

Government-funded Programmes BN &BRE
Tuition Fees BE
Training Charges RIEZEHA
Non Government-funded Programmes B EBRTE
Tuition Fees BE
Training Charges RIEZEHA
Government-funded Programmes BNERE
Tuition Fees B8
Training Charges REEA
Non Government-funded Programmes B ERRE
Tuition Fees BE
Training Charges RIEZERA
5. DONATIONS
B
Designated to Student Development Foundation BLERRES
Scholarships and Prizes BEBEREE
Other Student Activities Hh B4R E)

34

Consolidated

o=
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$’000
824,011 816,132
40,244 37,545
875,599 868,510
50,400 48,412
1,790,254 1,770,599
The Council
BN E
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
824,011 816,195
40,305 37,545
35,955 36,217
44 392 48,478
944,663 938,435
Consolidated
=)
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$’000
6,728 10,195
19,513 18,449
5,356 437
31,597 29,081




DONATIONS (Cont’d)

Designated to Student Development Foundation

Capital Projects
Scholarships and Prizes
Other Student Activities

OTHER INCOME
Hthir A

Application and Sundry Fees
Examination and Trade Test Fees
Sales of Goods

Hire of Accommodation/Facilities
Services Income

Miscellaneous Income

Application and Sundry Fees
Examination and Trade Test Fees
Sales of Goods

Hire of Accommodation/Facilities
Services Income

Miscellaneous Income

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 8 &} M 5E

BLrRRES
ZIEE

RESNRS
HtEE RS

FRRE AR E
ZHARKEEREBRILE
EEmBA
BE/RiEEEWA
ARFSUT A

HpgA

RRERANEENE
ZR R BN E
HEERWA
BEREESRA
ARFEULA

HAWA

The Council
5 /=

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
6,728 10,195
180,000 -
19,303 18,372
7,604 4,163
213,635 32,730

Consolidated

=)
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
25,385 24,185
43,392 39,749
19,109 18,052
14,585 10,689
24,808 26,694
18,986 16,303
146,265 135,672
The Council
5 /=

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
22,314 20,795
43,207 39,589
19,115 18,055
80,649 75,744
142,178 158,402
18,649 14,135
326,112 326,720
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B 75 3 R M 5E

7. STAFF EXPENSES

BETHRX%
Consolidated
=)

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
Salaries and Other Benefits FrekHMER 3,299,179 3,094,511
Contributions to Retirement Schemes RIRETEHRR 218,961 216,351
3,518,140 3,310,862

The Council

B 5 =

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$’'000
Salaries and Other Benefits FekEMBR 2,793,108 2,612,800
Contributions to Retirement Schemes RIRETEIHFR 210,324 209,082
3,003,432 2,821,882

8.  SURPLUS AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR
FEERFREENmARER

Surplus is arrived at after charging/(crediting) :

BERE MR (FTA) BUTIERE -

Consolidated

=a

2017 2016

HK$’'000 HK$’000

Interest Expense (Note 18) FMEXZH (FigE18) 18,964 19,913
Depreciation TE 253,818 262,300
Rental Expenses Hed 57,653 50,938
Auditor’'s Remuneration ZEETEN & 782 736
Net Foreign Exchange Gain HPEE R U ER (988) (2,428)
Gain on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment HEMZE - MBERZEZWE (A7) (156)
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B 75 8 &} M 5E

10.

SURPLUS AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR (Cont'd)
FEERFREEWDEEE (B)

The Council
BN
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$’000
Interest Expense (Note 18) FMEZ i (FisE18) 18,964 19,913
Depreciation TE 248,824 257,879
Rental Expenses He 55,835 49,831
Auditor's Remuneration ZEETEN & 569 544
Net Foreign Exchange Loss SNE RSB 8 119
Gain on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment &Y% - R BE 2 IkE (16) (160)
TAXATION
I8

Apart from VTC Enterprises Limited (VTCEL), the Council and its other subsidiaries are exempted from Hong Kong Profits Tax
by virtue of Section 88 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance. VTCEL did not generate any assessable profit during the year.
MRBZEIRBEEBRLTIN  BIEREMB A AIRBEEBRERMIE 881%  BHARHMEBRED - BEIIRB L
BRABERFERLBEAIEIBAE -

RESERVES
ftfEE
Consolidated and the Council
fre R
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
Balance at the Beginning of the Financial Year BB E S A 45 6k 330,286 264,499
Amount Transferred to Specific and Other REEEZFERR
Funds During the Year (Note 11) REMES (FFE11) (195,008) (127,122)
Surplus Transferred from Statement of HEZ2HIKNERNELR
Comprehensive Income 189,487 192,909
Balance at the End of the Financial Year B EFREAERR 324,765 330,286

Reserves are any savings from the recurrent government subventions for activities (other than those in respect of the Shine
Skills Centres) arising from any reasons other than a curtailment or cessation of activity in the Annual Plan, a surplus in tuition
fee income where the fee levels are approved by the Government and which is required to be returned to the Government, or
reduction in remuneration for its staff as a direct consequence of changes in the civil service. The level of reserves shall not, at
any one point in time, exceed 15% of its annual recurrent subvention in the financial year. Amount in excess of the limit should
be returned to the Government in the following financial year.

RETREIFEEHBAKSEMEY S (REREZRRPORMN) NEMBEHB (HREF IT(EEIME T/EBE B BUES
ERMEEMNRERE  CBARKEZZBERANBHRMXFERERANBAIETEZRRLABEE ARG HE
FIR D NBEERIN) o TREEARRE  FESHEBITSEEBRIEFELEHY M 15% - BERIEEET —EH
BEFERETBUF
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B 5 3 &R M 5

11.

(a)

38

SPECIFIC AND OTHER FUNDS
BERBRAMES

Fund Balances
Boate

Non-recurrent Subventions (Note 2(m)(i))
- Capital Works Reserve Fund

Non-recurrent Subventions (Note 2(m)(i))
- Capital Accounts

Other Capital Projects Fund

Projects Funded by Government Agencies
(Note 14(d))

Projects Funded by Reserves

Self-financing Activities

Donations

Other Specific Funds

Non-recurrent Subventions (Note 2(m)(i))
- Capital Works Reserve Fund

Non-recurrent Subventions (Note 2(m)(i))
- Capital Accounts

Other Capital Projects Fund

Projects Funded by Government Agencies
(Note 11(d))

Projects Funded by Reserves

Self-financing Activities

Donations

Other Specific Funds

FEERBIE (KIEE2(m)()

-ERIRMREES

FEERBIE (FFEE2(m)()

- ERRE
HiEREEES
BRKEBEBEE

(FffEE 11(d))
ESE8ER
BEREEE
B
HitsERigEs

FEERBIE (FIEE2(m)()

-ERIBREES

FEERBIE (KL 2m)()

—-ERRE
HiiEREEES
BKEEBEE

(FffEE 11(d))
rhESE8ER
BEREBEE
B
HitsERigEs

Consolidated

&8
Transfer from/
(to) Statement of Inter-Fund
Balance asat ~ Comprehensive Transfers Balance as at
1.4.2015 Income (Note 10) 31.3.2016
2015 % E8/(%) REE S EE 2016 %
4R1B#R 2EMER (fEE10)  3A3LAKH
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- (2,071) - (2,071)
778,419 470,865 - 1,249,284
61,185 (6,350) 3,056 57,891
1,007,852 (303,008) 141,880 846,724
2,066,036 (20,047) (3,056) 2,042,933
81,768 5,458 - 87,226
11,718 14,504 (14,758) 11,464
4,006,978 159,351 127,122 4,293,451
Consolidated
&8
Transfer from/
(to) Statement of Inter-Fund
Balance asat ~ Comprehensive Transfers Balance as at
1.4.2016 Income (Note 10) 31.3.2017
2016 E8/(%) REPE S ER 2017
4R1B&& 2ERER (fzE10)  3B31B&H
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(2,071) 1,793 - (278)
- (745) - (745)
1,249,284 199,461 - 1,448,745
57,891 1,790 14,803 74,484
846,724 (143,621) 210,880 913,983
2,042,933 34,824 (14,803) 2,062,954
87,226 453 - 87,679
11,464 15,727 (15,872) 11,319
4,293,451 109,682 195,008 4,598,141




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 ¥ R M 5E

11.

(a)

SPECIFIC AND OTHER FUNDS (Cont’d)

BHERRREMES (8)
Fund Balances (Cont’d)
B (&)

Non-recurrent Subventions (Note 2(m)(i))
- Capital Works Reserve Fund

Non-recurrent Subventions (Note 2(m)(i))
- Capital Accounts

Other Capital Projects Fund

Projects Funded by Government Agencies
(Note 11(d))

Projects Funded by Reserves

Selffinancing Activities

Donations

Other Specific Funds

Non-recurrent Subventions (Note 2(m)(i))
- Capital Works Reserve Fund

Non-recurrent Subventions (Note 2(m)(i))
- Capital Accounts

Other Capital Projects Fund

Projects Funded by Government Agencies
(Note 11(d))

Projects Funded by Reserves

Selffinancing Activities

Donations

Other Specific Funds

FEEBBE (WE2m))

-ERIEREES

FEEBBE (WE2m)()

—-E%RA
HiEREEES
BKBEBIER

(FffEE 11(d))
rESEER
BEREBEE
B

HitEREES

FEEHEBE (HEE2(m)()

-ERIEFEES

FEEHEBE (HEE2(m)(i)

—-ERRA
HiEREEES
BKBEBIER

(FffEE 11(d))
ESEER
BEREBEE
B

HitEREES

The Council
BAl=
Transfer from/
(to) Statement of Inter-Fund
Balance asat ~ Comprehensive Transfers Balance as at
1.4.2015 Income (Note 10) 31.3.2016
2015 % #8/(%) REESHER 2016 %
4R1A#ER 2ERER GEF)) 3R 31 B&E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
- (2,071) - (2,071)
778,419 470,865 - 1,249,284
61,185 (6,350) 3,056 57,891
1,007,852 (303,008) 141,880 846,724
1,606,382 (108,115) (3,056) 1,495,211
81,768 5,458 - 87,226
11,718 14,504 (14,758) 11,464
3,547,324 71,283 127,122 3,745,729
The Council
BiAl=
Transfer from/
(to) Statement of Inter-Fund

Balance asat ~ Comprehensive Transfers Balance as at
1.4.2016 Income (Note 10) 31.3.2017
2016 % #8/(%) REE SR 2017 %
4R 1RER 2ERER GEF)) 3R 31 B&E
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
(2,071) 1,793 - (278)

- (745) - (745)
1,249,284 199,461 - 1,448,745
57,891 1,790 14,803 74,484
846,724 (143,621) 210,880 913,983
1,495,211 139,645 (14,803) 1,620,053
87,226 453 - 87,679
11,464 15,727 (15,872) 11,319
3,745,729 214,503 195,008 4,155,240
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11.

(b)

40

SPECIFIC AND OTHER FUNDS (Cont'd)
BERGBRAMES (&)

Nature and Purpose of Specific and Other Funds

BRERBRRAMES  MEREN

(M)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Non-recurrent Subventions
FRERYBE

The non-recurrent subventions are one-off funds approved by the Government earmarked for capital expenditure
purposes relating to building projects, capital projects and capital items.

FEEMPERBF —AMENERR  ZRPSAEEFIRE ERIENERBEMNELIH -

Other Capital Projects Fund
HitZREEES

Other capital projects fund represents the balance of net book value of property, plant and equipment that are financed
by various fundings.

Htt 2R EES DX - #BERREBREFENGS  LEEERTRNESRRED -

Projects Funded by Government Agencies
BUN#BEBEE

In addition to the Government subventions, specific Government grants have been obtained to support the
development of specific education projects.

BRTBUFMEBIES  THERERARNBNFERUAXEREREHE ZBE -

Projects Funded by Reserves
REEEYEE

Projects funded by reserves are projects financed by the Council’s reserves, which are savings from the recurrent
subventions (see Note 10).

RETERERARIIBNRESEDN  ZRFEREELED SN RELE F2HAME10) -

Self-financing Activities
BEREEE

Selffinancing activities fund represents accumulated surpluses generated from the self-financed programmes and
activities.

BERERENERREZT AR P REMNRER -

Donations
BX

Donations fund is used to support the operations of the Council and for general education purposes.

BRENESANIERIIBNEEN—RBBRE -
Other Specific Funds
HitnsERRES

Other specific funds are subsidies obtained from organisations other than Government bodies designated for specific
purposes.

HttBEMRES RHAFBUTAFINABAERN  ZEESHANEEEEN -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 ¥ R M 5E

11.

(c)

(d)

SPEClFlC AND OTHER FUNDS (Cont’d)

Capital Management
EXREHE

The Group is a not-for-profit organisation aiming to provide vocational education and training in the region. The Group defines
capital as including reserves and specific and other funds. These funds, including inter-fund transfers, are managed in
accordance with the Group’s financial management policies and procedures and the relevant funding conditions, where
applicable. The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital is to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain a strong financial base to support the development of the Group.

THBRHELEAEE  SERUHEABRANZEEHEEI - AEBENECTEEREEREEARKHEMES - ELES (B
EANESER) RREBETIHEBNVREERRX - BFREBEESHMERSE (WER) REEN - AEBEEEBRERE £
EHERRRTIHERERFENKER ) RESERENVHER U FARBNEE -

There has been no change in the Group’s capital management practices as compared to prior year. The Group is not subject
to any externally imposed capital requirement.

HEFERE  ARBIRAERBERAEENME - IRBEFETEMIIMENELRRE -

Pilot Subsidy Scheme for Students of Professional Part-time Programmes
EHEEREEEEHATTE

Projects funded by Government Agencies included balance of Pilot Subsidy Scheme for Students of Professional Part-time
Programmes.

BFHBERER T EERETEXRERLEEYRITTE 2 A8k

The Pilot Subsidy Scheme for Students of Professional Part-time Programmes is to provide tuition fee reimbursement for
students pursuing relevant self-financing part-time programmes within areas of study/training in “Architecture and Town
Planning” or “Engineering and Technology” under classification of the Hong Kong Qualifications Register, offered by Vocational
Training Council (VTC). 60% of the tuition fees of eligible programmes, subject to a maximum of $45,000 per person, will be
refunded to successful applicants. The tuition fee will be refunded by instalments at the end of each term of the programme
upon successful completion. Each applicant may apply for fee refund for not more than two programmes under the Pilot
Scheme.
RENEEREEEEYRATHEANERRII B RUENREBEREMMNELE EYEETE [ ZERFHRE IR ITE
kB | ERHEENEE “ﬁ&kikﬁ%%ﬁ% Bt EMMNRBATEREZESERFERECOVEE  LIRAGABK
45,0007C o ERATFEIT  HBARZUHRFRENEARENZE  MEBESHSHNRBARNBE—EAS2HNRERR
}E o
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11.  SPECIFIC AND OTHER FUNDS (Cont'd)
BERGRRAMER (&)

(d) Pilot Subsidy Scheme for Students of Professional Part-time Programmes (Cont’d)
G EEREEEEBATE (E)

The financial position in respect of Pilot Subsidy Scheme for Students of Professional Part-time Programmes as at 31 March
is disclosed below:

BE3 AL ARBFNIEXREELEEYHITHENPBARROT ¢

Consolidated and the Council

= )

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$’000
Balance as at 1 April 4 B 1 B48k - -
Government Subventions Received B Wz BT &R
— Tuition Fees Subsidy -EBEH 6,300 -
— Administrative Fees —-1THE 1,000 -
7,300 -
Less : Expenditure "=
-B X445 934 11
— Fees Disbursed to 934 (2016: Nil) (2016 F : |)TH
Beneficiaries HERENER (3,951) -
— Administrative Cost —1TBUR A (566) -
(4517) -
Balance as at 31 March 3 A 31 B&eR 2,783 -
Represented by: LFERESE -
Tuition Fees Subsidy EBEEE 2,349 _
Administrative Fees THE 434 —
2,783 -
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12.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

M ~ ekt

Cost

At 1 April 2015

Additions

Capitalisation Adjustment (Note 12(a))

Transfer to Buildings/Improvement
Works upon Completion of Projects

Disposals

At 31 March 2016

Accumulated Depreciation
At 1 April 2015

Charge for the Year
Written Back on Disposals

At 31 March 2016

Net Book Value
At 31 March 2016

Cost

At 1 April 2016

Additions

Transfer to Buildings/Improvement
Works upon Completion of Projects

Disposals

At 31 March 2017

Accumulated Depreciation
At 1 April 2016

Charge for the Year
Written Back on Disposals

At 31 March 2017

Net Book Value
At 31 March 2017

A
201564810
wE

ER{LAEZ (K 120)

RETRIERBRE
BF/MEIR
&

2016538 31H

ZiE
201564810
KEERE
HERDE

20163 31H

REFE
20163 31H

A

2016 %4810
BE
BETHAIEREEE
BR/HEIR

HE
2017538 31H

ZiE
2016%F481H
KEERE
HEZDE

2017%F 38 31H

REFE
2017538 31H

Consolidated
Ga

Construction Improvement  Furniture and Computer
Buildings in Progress Works Equipment Equipment Total
¥ EEIR ¥EIR  HARRH E R @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1,742,953 344,504 1,450,763 305,367 312,155 4,155,742
526,663 230,920 40,727 35,771 33,212 867,293
- - (416) - (6) (422)
115,420 (115,420) - - - -
- - - (3,326) (11,652) (14,978)
2,385,036 460,004 1,491,074 337,812 333,709 5,007,635
237,219 - 1,024,173 215,696 253,395 1,730,483
53,310 - 147,981 32,140 28,869 262,300
- - - (3,217) (11,652) (14,869)
290,529 - 1,172,154 244,619 270,612 1,977,914
2,094,507 460,004 318,920 93,193 63,097 3,029,721
Consolidated
e
Construction Improvement  Furniture and Computer
Buildings in Progress Works Equipment Equipment Total
BT EEIE ¥EIR  GARRHE ElRE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2,385,036 460,004 1,491,074 337,812 333,709 5,007,635
2,974 819,201 47,268 32,551 45,563 947,557
= (46,304) 46,304 = - -
= - - (5,434) (10,815) (16,249
2,388,010 1,232,901 1,584,646 364,929 368,457 5,938,943
290,529 - 1,172,154 244,619 270,612 1,977,914
69,826 - 123,149 30,711 30,132 253,818
- - - (5,310) (10,739) (16,049)
360,355 - 1,295,303 270,020 290,005 2,215,683
2,027,655 1,232,901 289,343 94,909 78,452 3,723,260
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)

M~ B RERE (B)

Cost A&

At 1 April 2015 2015% 4818

Additions BE

Transfer to Buildings/ BETHRIER EH2
Improvement Works upon BT/ MEIR
Completion of Projects

Disposals L&

At 31 March 2016 2016538 31H

Accumulated Depreciation 2itE

At 1 April 2015 2015548 1H

Charge for the Year rEERE

Written Back on Disposals HEBDE

At 31 March 2016 2016 3A31H

Net Book Value BEHFE

At 31 March 2016 2016 3A31H

44

The Council
BiFlR
Campus
used by a
Subsidiary
(Note 12(b))
WEAH Construction  Improvement  Furniture and Computer
ERZRE Buildings in Progress Works ~ Equipment  Equipment Total
(FzE12(0)) BT ERIR HEIR HEREMA EL- B @3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
207,242 1,535,711 344,504 1,448,186 302,598 297,483 4,135,724
- 526,663 230,920 39,021 35,648 29,455 861,707
- 115,420 (115,420) - - - -
- - - - (3,289 (11,505) (14,794)
207,242 2,177,794 460,004 1,487,207 334,957 315,433 4,982,637
49,038 188,181 - 1,022,977 213,783 245,743 1,719,722
4,905 48,405 - 147,086 31,693 25,790 257,879
- - - - (3,187) (11,505) (14,692)
53,943 236,586 - 1,170,063 242,289 260,028 1,962,909
153,299 1,941,208 460,004 317,144 92,668 55,405 3,019,728
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12.

(a)

(b)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)

M2 ~ s Rk tE ()
The Council
BB
Campus
used by a
Subsidiary
(Note 12(0))
WEAF Construction  Improvement  Furniture and Computer
FRzRE Buildings in Progress Works ~ Equipment  Equipment Total
(MEE12(b)) BF EEIR BEIR HBARRE BB H)
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Cost A&
At 1 April 2016 2016F4 A 1H 207,242 2,177,794 460,004 1,487,207 334,957 315,433 4,982,637
Additions #E - 2,974 819,201 46,222 31,302 44,253 943,952
Transfer to Buildings/ BERMNEREEE
Improvement Works upon BT/ MEIR
Completion of Projects - - (46,304) 46,304 - - -
Disposals e - - = = (5,407) (10,594) (16,001)
At 31 March 2017 2017F3A31H 207,242 2,180,768 1,232,901 1,579,733 360,852 349,092 5,910,588
Accumulated Depreciation 2iHiE
At 1 April 2016 2016F4 A 18 53,943 236,586 - 1,170,063 242,289 260,028 1,962,909
Charge for the Year KEEIE 4,905 64,921 - 122,052 30,300 26,646 248,824
Written Back on Disposals HEBME & - - - - (5,283) (10,532) (15,815)
At 31 March 2017 201738318 58,848 301,507 - 1,292,115 267,306 276,142 2,195,918
Net Book Value REFE
At 31 March 2017 201738318 148,394 1,879,261 1,232,901 287,618 93,546 72,950 3,714,670

Capitalisation Adjustments
ER{LAR

Capitalisation adjustments relate to the building projects capitalised based on contractors’ claimed values which have been
adjusted following finalisation of contract values.

EXMCARRENRLEBORBEARBERNIREEREMNEBFTIRE  RFARKKENEEZ

ny

F R o

Campus Used by a Subsidiary
MEBARERAZRE

Use of the campus located at Tsing Yi is shared among the Council and the Technological and Higher Education Institute of
Hong Kong. The land on which the building erected is granted under Private Treaty by the Government for a term of 50 years
from 16 April 1991 to 30 June 2047 for the provision of education and training services. Because of the special restricted
purpose including specific uses and absolute prohibition against alienations, comparable market transaction and alternative
reliable estimate of fair value are not available and hence no reliable fair value of the property could be obtained.
URBXNREHBIBEEBSEHERNEERARER - ZL M UFMABALNABTHE - HEIS50F > H1991F4
A16 BE2047F6 83010 ' AFREAFRERZIRE - HRBRENRF (BEREFERRRELER)  BEEEZ
TSRS REMAZZAFTARBEHERER  BEREUENARE -
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12.

(c)

46

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)
I3 ~ as Rkt (8)

Interests in Leasehold Land
HEL 2R

The Council holds interests in leasehold land and buildings associated with the following properties, the costs of which were
financed by government subventions or other sources of fundings, and were fully written off in prior years.

BIREEUATMREHELHREFNES - HRAHABFENEREMESRKFMEDY  YERUEFETREH -

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Campuses completed prior to the setting up of the Council and taken over from the Government by the Council at nil
value which include the four campuses of the Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education (Morrison Hill, Kwai Chung,
Kwun Tong and Haking Wong), Haking Wong Seafront Complex and Shine Skills Centre (Kwun Tong).
BRREATHRIBRABIIBRIAMESERNRBEE  NEEBEXERELER (BBEHR) 2 RE-BEE
28 BENERGR ERhBE R EERERRESREERF O (BE) -

The VTC Tower, four campuses of the Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education (Tsing Yi, Chai Wan, Tuen Mun and
Sha Tin), the VTC Kowloon Bay Complex, VTC Kwai Chung Complex, VTC Pokfulam Complex, Maritime Services Training
Institute and Shine Skills Centre (Pokfulam and Tuen Mun) which were constructed after the setting up of the Council
and financed by government subventions.

BEINRBAE  MEEHER2RE-BK ~ 2 - HPIADH - BXIIRENEERE - BEIRBZRBAE

Hﬁ%‘ﬁ%j;%)ﬂﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬂ% BEIIRERERESEEZRRPO CEHRMRERERM) IRBEIE R #ER I HB AR E
i% o

The staff quarters at Chai Wan and the premises at Billion Plaza | which were financed by loan facilities, donations, and
other funds.

VAKRENBEBEERERES —HHNYE  JHER  BRREMESEY -

Most of the interests in leasehold land are restricted to own use by the Council.

Ao HELHNESIEBIRER -
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13. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

HBABRIRE
The Council
EElS
2017 2016
HK$ HK$
Unlisted shares, at cost LR - AR 100 100
The particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows:
MBARMFRET ¢
Proportion of
Ownership Interest
FERRZILE
Place of
Incorporation Particulars of Issued Held by Held by
Name of Company and Operation and Paid Up Capital the Council Subsidiary ~ Principal Activity
AR AMRIRSERE  CRORBERAS BilRNE WEATNE TEEB
VTC School of Business and Hong Kong Limited by Guarantee 100% - Provision of vocational education and
Information Systems & ERERAT training
BXIRRIHERER RUBZELRIRRS
% Yeo Chei Man Senior Secondary School School  Hong Kong Limited by Guarantee 100% - Provision of education at senior
Management Committee Limited & ERERAT secondary level
BEXEPERRESERAT RUSTRENERE
Technological and Higher Education Institute ~ Hong Kong Limited by Guarantee 100% - Provision of career-oriented degree
of Hong Kong &k ERERLT programmes
BRRSHEREER RUNEERARNELEMRE
VTC Enterprises Limited Hong Kong 100 shares 100% - Investment holding
BEIGRLEARLR &k R 100k REZR
VTC School for Higher and Professional Hong Kong Limited by Guarantee - 100%  Provision of continuing education and
Education (SHAPE) &k ERBRARA training
ER%HEER RIBEEE R RRH
The Institute of Professional Educational Hong Kong Limited by Guarantee - 100%  Provision of continuing education and
And Knowledge (PEAK) i ERERAT training
REEEER RIBEEERA RS
% VTC Training Company Limited Hong Kong 100 shares - 100%  Provision of vocational education,
BEEIERAA A B3 100 professional training and development
services
RUEBRES  EXIRREREH
* VTC Training Company Limited became dormant as from 1 April 2014. By virtue of Section 447 of the Companies Ordinance, a

dormant company is exempted from the annual audit of its financial statements.

H2014F 4810 BEEIERARDBTEH AR - REQTRAIE 447 1% - TEBLAEREFEMBRRNFS -

Hk Yeo Chei Man Senior Secondary School School Management Committee Limited was deregistered on 15 April 2016.
BFXESHERRESER AT N 2016 F 4 A 15 BHsHEM -
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14.  LOANS TO STAFF
BTEM

15.

48

In conjunction with Hang Seng Bank Limited (Bank), the Council launched in April 1996 a Staff Loan Scheme to provide
financial assistance to members of the Council’s Provident Fund Scheme, part of which has subsequently been restructured
by setting up a new scheme called Vocational Training Council Provident Fund Scheme (1999) (collectively known as
the Schemes). An unsecured loan facility of HK$30 million has been arranged with the Bank for on-lending to qualified
staff members. The loans to staff are repayable in accordance with repayment schedules of which HK$555,200 (2016:
HK$894,400) is repayable within 1 year.

BAREBERTAERAR (BBIRIT) G R1996F4 A ABINBEAESFTE(ERIEAL  BTRAL THEIRE A
BEFE(—Ahh) SR ARSTE) ANERLEETERGE  RUMBED - RITSRMEESATEERE3,0008TH
%i&?ﬁﬂﬁfk  HBIIEBEEETEERET - ZETEREARNEE MHEP B 55528 T (2016 F  BH#89.448 T)
BR—FRBE °

The loan granted to each staff member is limited to 60% of the individual’s provident fund benefit entitlement at the time of
application. In case of default on repayment, the Council can exercise its right to request the Trustees of the Schemes to retain
an amount equivalent to such indebtedness out of any benefits payable to the individual under the Schemes.
BEEIENERE  RMEERERITZEABELHENGCO% - EETREMABMER  BIFERERAESTEN
ZREA REBEIELARLSEESHNEANF  HREEREENEEE -

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
FEWARTE ~ TRIRIE R H thEURARIA

Consolidated

o A
=]

2017 2016

HK$’'000 HK$’000

Accounts Receivable (Note 15(b)) FEUWBRTE (BEE 15(b)) 4,899 8,363
Other Receivables Hfib YR BR1E 68,614 41,048
Prepayments FEFRIE 44,345 35,743
Utilities and Other Deposits KERHMES 929 272
118,787 85,426

The Council
il

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$’000

Accounts Receivable (Note 15(b)) FEUR BRIE (FIEE 150)) 3,308 5,592
Other Receivables H b pE i BR1E 65,202 39,318
Prepayments JEFFIE 32,925 27,388
101,435 72,298

Accounts receivable, other receivables, prepayments, utilities and other deposits are expected to be recovered or recognised
as expenses within one year.

FEWERE ~ EMABWIRE - FENFUE - KEREMERE @ BHER -—FRAKREDRERRFZ



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 ¥ &R M 5E

15.

(a)

(b)

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)
FEURERIR ~ TAMTRIE R E A AEURERIE (1)

Impairment of Accounts Receivable
FEWR BRIE Z BB

Impairment losses in respect of accounts receivable are recorded using an allowance account unless the Group and the
Council are satisfied that the recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is written off against
accounts receivable directly (see Note 2(f)).

EWARIRRRMERXSTHEMEERS - REFAEBERBIRRARDERRANEE T 0BT - AREBRASEERLRE
W BRIE SR (R 2 BARYRE 2(F)

At 31 March 2017, none of the Group’s and the Council’s accounts receivable (2016: Nil) were individually determined to be
impaired.

R2017F3 8310 @ AEBRBIIBNEWRKENEERSERE (2016 F : &) o
Accounts Receivable that are Not Impaired

TMERE 2 B AR IR

Accounts receivable are generally due within 30 days from the date of billing. Further details on the Group’s and the Council’s
credit policy are set out in Note 20(a).

FEWBRTE — AR 3¢ B A BAAE5H 30 B M EIH - AR REBIREEBRFBC HIINHEE 20(a)
The ageing analysis of accounts receivable that are neither individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are as
follows:

FEWARIRE R BB R B MERE - AREDHTUT

Consolidated

2 A

wh 3
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
Neither Past Due nor Impaired RAEBHNRE 2,346 4,405
Less than 1 Month Past Due BHLN—EA 1,381 2,525
More than or Equal to 1 Month Past Due ERBBEZR—EA 1,172 1,433
4,899 8,363

The Council
Sl

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
Neither Past Due nor Impaired REBHNRE 1,923 2,374
Less than 1 Month Past Due BN —EA 731 2,096
More than or Equal to 1 Month Past Due ERBEZHR—EA 654 1,122
3,308 5,592
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15.

(b)

16.

50

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)
FEURERIE ~ TRfRIR R A EURERIE (48)

Accounts Receivable that are Not Impaired (Cont’'d)
TERE 2 FEUR BRE (&)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide range of individuals for whom there was no recent history
of default.
BRAERBMBENERFERE —FLERNEXELNENALTER -

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of independent individuals and organisations that have

a good track record with the Group and the Council. Based on past experience, management believes that no impairment

allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the

balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group and the Council does not hold any collateral over these balances.

EBRMERERENERRERE —FEAKBERBIISERFTCHENBE ZERNATFASERN - RIBBELEE B8

E%%i’iﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂ@%g cHAREEZREEANE  BEEERANEBEUUZHKE - XEERBIFIERRIERS
R m o

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

RERIREEEY
Consolidated
me
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
Deposits with Banks with Original Maturity BB A L R={E@R
less than Three Months IRITERFER 628 400,000
Cash at Bank and On Hand RITEREE® 201,496 385,900
Cash and Cash Equivalents HeRIRESEEY 211,124 785,900
The Council
)=
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
Deposits with Banks with Original Maturity VBB LR=EAN
less than Three Months IRITEHER 628 400,000
Cash at Bank and On Hand RITERKRBRE 193,904 378,487
Cash and Cash Equivalents RERBEEEY 194,532 778,487
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17.

(a)

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES, AND PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

FEATRRIA ~ FEST S ~ B IIRIER(ES & 2H

Accounts Payable, Accruals and Other Payables

FERRIR BT H R H A FE AT ARIR

Accounts Payable

Accruals

Deposits and Retentions Withheld

Receipts in Advance

Subventions Repayable to Government
(Note 17(c))

Accounts Payable

Accruals

Deposits and Retentions Withheld

Receipts in Advance

Amounts Due to Subsidiaries

Subventions Repayable to Government
(Note 17(c))

P BRIR

FEET <

BERREE

AR

RREBFOME
(FfEE17(c))

FEFBRIE

st

ke RkRES

FEUWFRIE

FERHEB A TR IE

ESRZERANEE S
(FFEEL7(c))

Consolidated

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
186,420 198,541
406,365 355,112

45,165 48,608
617,173 644,574
4,378 1,784
1,259,501 1,248,619
The Council
B3I

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
163,825 172,548
400,064 349,239

45,165 48,608
333,080 341,217
753,956 878,327

4,378 1,784
1,700,468 1,791,723

Accounts payable, accruals and other payables are expected to be settled within one year. The contractual undiscounted
values of accounts payable, accruals and other payables as at 31 March 2017 and 2016 were the same as their respective

carrying values.

FEAIRRIE ~ BBt STH R A bR BRIATR

REMBEMIRES A ZREERZHRERFTEEME -

AR —FRL - R2017FE3H31HK 201653 8318 » FE{IERIE -~ FEFT X H

Accounts payable included balance of government subventions for Fee Assistance to Below Sub-degree Students (see Note

17(b)).

BAREEEEFORIZ2TUTRESERUNBEED F2HMEL7() °
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17.

(b)

52

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES, AND PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Cont'd)
FEATERIE ~ FBStIH ~ EMEMERERESEH M (&)

Government Subventions for Fee Assistance to Below Sub-degree Students
BRNOEZ2tEENATBERENBEER

The Fee Assistance to Below Sub-degree Students is to provide tuition fee reimbursement and flat-rate academic expenses
grant for needy students pursuing programmes below sub-degree level. Full or half level of tuition fee reimbursement will be
granted to students assessed to be eligible to receive full or half grant under the students means-test mechanism of the
Working Family and Student Financial Assistance Agency respectively. If students pursue programmes of duration at one year
or above, they may also receive full or half level of the flat-rate academic expenses grant.
EEEANBRIZ I UTREEN FER A RUEEEY R EEM I TR RN A NBRERIERZBEENEBEN
AEREEEE  UHEIHIFEEDER  BURELESFHRERE - BERENRERE—FHU L TAHE
PHERNFENE TR ERRE -

Balance as at 31 March is disclosed below:

3A31 BT :

Consolidated and the Council

FARBHIE

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
Balance as at 1 April 4 F 1 B&& 9,864 6,983
Government Subventions Received BRZBAES 50,000 52,000
Less : Fees Disbursed to Beneficiaries B EXHGRZEHENEL
Tuition Fees Reimbursement BEEY
— Full-rate for 1,733 (2016: 1,752) Beneficiaries —1,73311 (2016 % : 1,752 1)
2HEZEHR (34,260) (33,611)
— Half-rate for 938 (2016: 1,086) Beneficiaries - 93811 (2016 £ : 1,086 1)
YLETEHGR (9,451) (10,704)
(43,711) (44,315)
Flat-rate Academic Expenses Grant SEMS T2
— Full-rate for 1,700 (2016: 1,636) Beneficiaries -1,7001% (2016 : 1,63611)
FHETEHR (3,887) (3,643)
- Halfrate for 937 (2016: 1,042) Beneficiaries - 93712 (2016 % : 1,042 1)
YETEHGR (1,072) (1,161)
(4,959) (4,804)
Balance as at 31 March 3B 31 8% 11,194 9,864
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17.

(c)

(d)

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES, AND PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Cont’d)
FEAIERIR ~ St ~ EEERIEREEREM 2R (8)

Subventions Repayable to Government

FESRERFHMEIE

Balance as at 1 April

Less : Amount Refunded to Government
during the Year

Subventions Refundable to Labour and
Welfare Bureau
— Recurrent Subventions
— Capital Accounts

Balance as at 31 March

Provision for Employee Benefits

BERAER

4 B 1 B%8k

W AEEERERUT
GOE€:E

FESRBEYE T REBFE
MBI E
-~ KEEDE
—ERIRE

3 A 31 B&eR

Consolidated and the Council

makBiE

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
1,784 3,405
(1,784) (3,405)
3,522 -
856 1,784
4,378 1,784
4,378 1,784

Provision for employee benefits relates to various allowances and benefits, mainly unutilised annual leave and performance

pay, payable to employees.

BERANEFRETRRENZEREN  TEZEERAAZFBEREMNE -
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18. LOANS

£

Balance as at 1 April

Add: Loans Drawn Down During
the Year

Unamortised Deferred
Interest Expenses

Adjustment to the
Amortised Cost

Amortisation of Deferred

Interest Expenses for
the Year

Less: Loans Repaid During
the Year

Balance as at 31 March
Represented by :

Loans Payable Within One Year
Normal Value

Loans Payable After One Year
Normal Value
Deferred Interest Expense

Total Balance

54

Consolidated and the Council

GRkBIR
2017 2016
Bank Loan for
On-lending
to Staff Loan from
(Note 18(a)) Government
ESTEIN (Note 18(b))
RITER BRER Total Total
(HizE18(a)) (MiZE18(0)) ek a5
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
4R 1BEH 2,185 427,148 429,333 429,893
m: EREANER
- - - 420
REH 2 BELENEX
HECHEEE
- (18,964) (18,964) (19,913
KEEEE BT
FEXH
- 18,964 18,964 19,913
2,185 427,148 429,333 430,313
B EREENER
(1,103) - (1,103) (980)
3R 31 A& 1,082 427,148 428,230 429,333
TRAZELE
- FRERENER
HE 1,082 - 1,082 2,185
- FRERBNEN
HE - 560,000 560,000 560,000
EEFEZH - (132,852) (132,852) (132,852)
- 427,148 427,148 427,148
iken 1,082 427,148 429,230 429,333
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18.

(@)

(b)

LOANS (Cont’d)

£/ 46))

The loan relates to a revolving credit facility for on-lending to staff and is unsecured and bears interest at 2.15% per annum
(2016: 3% per annum). The interest expenses incurred are fully borne by the staff. The loan is repayable on 28 February 2018
and renewable annually subject to the Bank’s consent. The amount of the facility is HK$30 million (2016: HK$30 million). The
contractual undiscounted value of the loan as at 31 March 2017 was HK$1.1 million (2016: HK$2.2 million).
EEFEIMAEHERBRIEFER  RENEFEE2.15% (2016 F : 3%) - IEFNEXHIIHERETHAE - EXR
AR2018F 2828 HIFE Y AIRELRITERTEFEY - BAEREEA B 3,0008 7T (2016 F : BH3,0008
JT) c 20173 B 31 HNRZHNBREZARINRERBE 1108 T (2016 F : BHE2208T) °

Loan from the Government (the Loan) was an interest-free loan under the Start-up Loan Scheme. The Loan is for the
construction of campus in Chai Wan to operate self-financing full-time post-secondary programmes by the Technological and
Higher Education Institute of Hong Kong. The Loan is secured by income generated from the operation and management of the
courses and programmes in respect of which the Loan is granted.

BRER(BBLER) REBMNREERTEIOBAERNREER - LERBFERZURKENRS  UHEBSS
HEREERKEBEREN 2 AFELRE - LEFULEREEZE LREZIMAERA -

Drawdown of the Loan will be disbursed in three instalments. First and second instalments of HK$220 million and HK$340
million were received in March 2014 and February 2015 respectively. The Loan is repayable in equal annual instalments over
a period of 10 years and the first repayment shall become due on the first anniversary of the date of final drawdown. As final
drawdown is deferred from 2017 to 2018 during the year, adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the Loan, which is
stated at amortised cost, using effective interest method.

LERED ZRZMN - BRAREZRERBE 282,000 8 TR B 3/84,0008 T2 251N 2014F 3 AR 2015F 2 A
o WERDTH  S8FFHEE F-AEREERBRRBESE—BEFHZIE - HREZXERH2017 FH#HIEZ
2018 %F » CHE v REEBETNCIRERFREETHE o

Total contractual undiscounted value of the Loan as at 31 March 2017 was HK$560 million (2016: HK$560 million) and was
repayable after one year. The unamortised deferred interest expenses represented the difference between the carrying value
and the redemption value of the interest-free loan using effective interest method at a discount rate of 5%.

R2017F 3 AL AMBANREZRINEBEABHESE6,000E 7T (2016 F : BH¥ESE6,0008 L) * WER—FEEERE -
R EEN EZH AR EERNIRAERR 5% TR REAERNRETEBEBEZEH -
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19.

56

DEFERRED INCOME
IESEY o

Balance as at 1 April
Subventions Received/Receivable
Recognised as Income in the Year (Note 3)

Balance as at 31 March

To Be Recognised as Income
Within One Year
After One Year

Balance as at 1 April
Subventions Received/Receivable
Recognised as Income in the Year (Note 3)

Balance as at 31 March

To Be Recognised as Income
Within One Year
After One Year

4 A1 B4
B FEWE B
RERNEZHUWA (FHFE3)

3 A 31 A#ER

R B
— 4y
— ik

4 B 1 B#8R
B U, FEUE B
RERXNEZHWA (HEE3)

3 A 31 B&eR
SR AW

—FR
—F#&

Consolidated

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$’000
1,708,603 1,744,259
3,277,934 2,886,155
(3,035,485) (2,921,811)
1,951,052 1,708,603
290,927 276,369
1,660,125 1,432,234
1,951,052 1,708,603
The Council
BaE

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
1,699,669 1,743,369
3,259,243 2,872,351
(3,026,682) (2,916,051)
1,932,230 1,699,669
272,105 267,435
1,660,125 1,432,234
1,932,230 1,699,669

Note:  Government subventions earmarked for specific purposes are initially recorded as deferred income which is subsequently
recognised as revenue to the extent of the related expenditure or depreciation expenses charged to related assets incurred (see

Note 2(m)(i)).

MiEE - HERZRNBUFHEBIEMEERIIARELYE - ARUEEMXIEBREENTEXHSBRRRER/BA GESRME 2(m)())
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20.

(a)

(b)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
ERREREERANEE

Exposure to credit, liquidity, foreign currency and interest rate risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s operations. The
Group manages and minimises these financial risks through its financial risk management policies and practices described
below:

THBNRBEELEBREFIREE  RBES  IMNERFEER - AEBEB T U BRAREBIRREB IE » £Z%
ZRREUAEERED

Credit Risk
EEAR

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in full when due. The Group’s credit risk is
primarily attributable to cash and deposits at banks, tuition fees and training charges receivable from individual students or
sponsoring organisations. Management manages this risk as follows:

FERBRESENFEREZEFEINNE AEBE2CERRIERBFHMNRITHRERTFR  BEMHARHER
HEFANHNEERREER SEECEEERRNT -

Regarding the credit risk on cash and deposits at banks, the Group reviews credit ratings of banks based on approved credit
rating agencies on a regular basis. There is an investment guideline set out the selection criteria and exposure limits to
investment counterparties.

HERRBTNREREFRZEERR  AHESEHRMABRTNEETAEBERHHBRITNEETR - MIREESITF
B HERERZHFNEERENREREE -

In respect of tuition fees and training charges receivables, individual credit evaluations are performed on all students requiring
credit over a certain amount. These take into account the students’ past payment history, financial position and other factors.
Tuition fees and training charges receivable are generally due within 30 days from the date of billing. Normally, the Group does
not obtain collateral from students.

REENREEAIE SHBEBEEEESENBLETEAGENML ZETLSTRBLEBENTRICE - BIEM
MEEMEEZ BERFEEA - ROEREAEFT30EAEH - AEE—RISEREBAREMIERR -

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s exposure arising from accounts receivable and other receivables are
set out in Note 15.

REBHRUIRER HMERRBENE(CIRBC I HNME 15 -
Liquidity Risk
REE < ER

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that funds are not available to meet liabilities as they fall due. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor current and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserve of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term. The Group invests surplus cash in bank deposits not exceeding an average horizon
of three years.

NBECREBRIERIEEHESRENEBNERE - ARBHNERATHERRRRFAH2RBESE R » UBRERSRE
MINEFEE AUBNEHAERARBESER - AEBREFKNEEFRRARITEEHITZR=ZGNERENR °

The remaining contractual maturities of the financial liabilities at the balance sheet date of the Group and the Council are
disclosed in Notes 17 and 18. The contractual maturities are calculated based on contractual undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the balance sheet date)
and the earliest date the Group and the Council are required to pay.
THBRBIIBREEANMEEE2RORENHRTRHA  SRMFEL7THI8HFHE - RUFEMNEAT ZIH B 2RER
HWREATRZRER (BEUZOREZRNZINEE AN RMEIBHERMAFEZRELZ L) » URAEBENBIE W
BERERBRITEN -
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20.

(c)

(d)

(e)

21.

58

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Cont'd)
TREAREERAAEE (&)

Foreign Currency Risk

NS LB

The Group has no significant exposure to foreign currency risk as substantially all of the Group’s transactions are denominated
in Hong Kong dollars.

FHBRZHLUBETE  BARINEREEREMR

Interest Rate Risk
F == 2 B

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from its borrowing activities. The Group considers that it is not exposed to any
significant interest rate risk arising from its borrowings as at 31 March 2017. The bank loan obtained is for on-lending to staff
who will reimburse the same amount of interest to the Group.

AHEBNANZERTIEREEEEE AMEIRLEFTEAN2017F3A3LBNEEREETERNFREAR - RITERR
UAKBIAENRENESHEEETET -

Fair Values
AREE

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially different from their fair values as at 31 March 2017 and 2016.

FrE4mIENR2017F3A31BK 2016 F3 A3 HNREEEEAARBEIEEREE

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
BRIES 5%

Due to the nature of the Group’s operations and the composition of the Council members of the Vocational Training Council
(being drawn from private and public operations), it is inevitable that transactions may take place with organisations in
which a Council member may have an interest. All transactions involving organisations in which a Council member or senior
management of the Group may have an interest are conducted at an arm’s length basis and in accordance with the Group’s
financial regulations and normal procurement procedure. Donations received from Council members, senior management or
companies controlled or significantly influenced by them had been approved and reported in accordance with the Group’s
financial regulations.

HARKENEEEN  RBIIRNESEREMWAR (R ERAEHEBRE)  AEBEETRAHESENEGHEE
BHRBETRS - IESRESENERIRBEESENRZUIRBEAFRAURARBIHEHREBRESHRBEFE
ToRESENE EESENZHEFHIBELEN AR FMBENBRIIREARBITER AU ZR|RE -
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21.

22,

(a)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

EnRS ()

Remuneration for key management personnel is as follows:

TREEENENMEFHRBNT

Short-term Employee Benefits

Short-term Employee Benefits

Consolidated

RS ER

EHEERER

we
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
45,230 44,244
The Council
]

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
42,006 41,354

The above remuneration is included in “staff expenses” (see Note 7). The Group’s contributions to retirement schemes are

also set out in Note 7.

L EEFATETR A (

COMMITMENTS
AR

BIFRE7) o MR 2 RINGH BRI S E R HRE 7 -

Capital Commitments in Respect of Property, Plant and Equipment Outstanding at 31 March 2017 and 2016 Not

Provided for in the Financial Statements were as follows:

M2017F 3831 HK2016 F3A31 A2 ¥ » BB RREARARUBRRBE2ERREWNT !

Contracted for

Authorised but not Contracted for

Total

Consolidated and the Council

maRBIE

EREEIRETH

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
643,466 1,358,366
577,631 453,754

1,221,097 1,812,120
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22,

(b)

23.

24,

60

COMMITMENTS (Cont’d)
EHE ()

As at 31 March 2017 and 2016, the Total Future Minimum Lease Payments under Operating Leases in respect of
Properties are Payable as follows:

MR2017F3H831HK 2016 F3 A31 A » MEURLHEHACENREEENREENOT

Consolidated and the Council

e REHE

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$’000

Within 1 Year —FR 8,077 821
After 1 Year but Within 5 Years —FEZETLZNAFE 8,758 -
16,835 821

The Group leases a number of properties under operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of two to three
years, with an option to renew the leases when all terms are negotiated. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

AEBUKEHEHER Y% - —RIEVEHNFRBRIBAZZ=F EMEKRIEEEE  BEBEEHEBZYE -8
HETEEIEAS -

COMPARATIVE FIGURES
EEH S

Certain comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to the current year’'s presentation.

ETHHEFKERE  UREAFEN2HAN -

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
B E 2017 F 3 A 31 HIEFEBAMERAREMBVEERT « MG ER K2R AERRNEE

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and new standards
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2017 and which have not been adopted in these financial statements.
These include the following which may be relevant to the Group.

BEAMBRETIEL > BSOS E AMBIBRKEIT RMIGEL - ERBE2017F3A3LIBLEZFEHREN &
WARRAREFEIRFPERA AR ABERAMNESIT M ER T -

Effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after

LT et HEmaR A REBER

HKFRS 16, Leases 1st January 2019
(BBYBREERNE 165 /HE/ 20195181H

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these amendments and new standards is expected
to be in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact
on the Group’s financial statements.

AERBIRIE RS L REFT RINGEAHDRERAPBNTEELTM c ESBHNERBERAB LT - REAREB KA
BRREEEATE -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE TRUSTEES OF VOCATIONAL
TRAINING COUNCIL PROVIDENT FUND SCHEME (1999) (THE SCHEME)

HEXIEBLABEFAE (—Ahh) (BBFE) RRANBILIKHEMEK S

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the Scheme, which
comprise the statement of net assets available for benefits as at 31
March 2017, and the statement of changes in net assets available
for benefits and the cash flow statement for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the financial disposition of the assets and liabilities of the Scheme
as at 31 March 2017 and of its financial transactions and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRSs) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (HKSAs) and with reference to Practice Note 860.1
(Revised), The Audit of Retirement Schemes issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Scheme
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Trustees for the Financial Statements

The trustees are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the provisions of the Hong
Kong Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance and for such
internal control as the trustees determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible
for assessing the Scheme’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the trustees either
intend to liquidate the Scheme or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

=R

AZBEN (LT EBERMA) SFT U SN REHEE - &
ER2017 53 A 31 H A @R RNFEERK » B
REBZZAEFERATHENTRENFEEZERERM
RERERURTESHHEME -

BMHRR  ZEUBHRRERESZBSHA LS HMAH
(BERMBHREZEINNEEM A Fib MR T 5 EIR 2017
FIA HWYBEERAGERARBEZA LFENY
BRERBEERE -

SRAEMR
HMERETBEMASEMN(EBEFER) I
S R(EHBH ) 860.1 5% (BT [RGB ZFET
ETET RPEZSEATRENSFICEARS
[ E P RRBARENSE | B HEE—F
Bl - REBEBEAMASEMIKEXSTMERT
A1) (TR <A - RMBINEE  XEEITT
AP EMEREREE - HMERE  BPTESHE
AAREEZENEERARMNEFTEREMHER -

ZREARI B RERBARIENSE
ZRAANAEERBEE BSOS EMAN(EBIBR
HEEAD R & B R A ET BMRPI ) B9 1R E s BB 75
xR USHBHRRELEEMAFHRREEZEERS
AV IR LR ARBIES] - UEMHRERAFHE
FH R ERFE S8 85 R 1T 8 B A9 B KSR ER R ©

HREBMBHRRE  SRABTMETESELCENEE
B WHEERABRTRERISESERENER - UK
ERAFESERSTER  BREZTABREEER
FFLEE  FHBEEGERNERTR -

BB E T B RRARENSE

BFNER  RUMBRREERE N FEHRRTFER
ERMERMNEABRRANSSERE » Y HABE
BMAZRNREMBRE - ARSEQZTEARS @ KRt
ZHIRBERERLMEN - RMFERABRENARE
EAEMA LB ERREEMEE -
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Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

62

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Scheme’s internal
control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the trustees.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the trustees’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Scheme’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Scheme to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

SERABRSKFHNRE  ETERBERB(TBET
ERVETHETRERRE —FACFENERERR
il o $EERPRAM AT LA BRFF R SR AR 518 - MR SEFAME
18 B [ 488 2R A9 5 SR ORI T RE S B B B 3R AR (£ AR R AR
Eﬁ%’%j&%ﬁ)ﬂ’ﬁ& HYAEFRTE - BRI B BIRY SRR BRIL AT 4 4R
1 o

ERB(EBENEETENNERED  RPEAT
ERHE - RIS T EREREE o BALF

- ARl M A AN RFRERMER Y B HRERT

EERERRANER - RETRATETREF
LIRSS L E - AR ENZ RANEE N EFT
BE FEREMERNER - ARG
REH -RE - E2ER ERRL - EE
RAEES 2 £ - E IR a3 R E BFF 8 %
B AR E RSN RERBEIERM
BHNERERBRLAVER -

- THREETHENANSES  URFTEENE

T2 0 BB R IR E S B B E H AV Rk
BRER -

- TESEAFMRASHBERNREERFHS
sHEFHRMERR BN SN -

- HEAARASECLE ST ERNREMEFR
i o RIBMENMNETBRRE BEREEFHE
HEEEYBERAEENEARTHEEN - A&
EYHFINGBEEERNELEEANRE - W
REMARB/EFEEATEEN  AALEER
BEREPRBEAEIRMBRRPAEEE
WE - BEABENKETE  IRMAEERRK
FERFSR  c RANEWREERLBAEHRE
AIEFrES M ERTBE - A RERSBERE

A REEHGT I T RESELE -

- HEMBRERNVBES®RIN EBARNE
BERE URVBHRRESAFHRRRS
MZEIE -



We communicate with the trustees regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

30 June 2017

BREAMSIES  WAEITABR T EINEHE
REZH EXFTHRRE  BRAMESFPHEEE
BB B A AR T EE KRB o

EEHETESEKA
HESTTED
BEABPIR

EITE 1058

KT RESHE
20176 A30H
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INDEPENDENCE AUDITOR'S ASSURANCE REPORT TO THE TRUSTEES OF
VOCATIONAL TRAINING COUNCIL PROVIDENT FUND SCHEME (1999) (THE SCHEME)

HEXIGERLABHFE (—Anh) (B RRXRANBIKBMEZERS

We have audited the financial statements of the Scheme for the year
ended 31 March 2017 in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing and with reference to Practice Note 860.1 (Revised), The
Audit of Retirement Schemes (PN860.1 (Revised)) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA), and
have issued an unqualified auditor’s report thereon dated 30 June
2017.

Pursuant to section 20 of the Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance (ORSO), we are required to report whether the Scheme
complied with certain requirements of the ORSO.

Trustees’ Responsibilities
The ORSO requires the trustees to ensure that:

(a) proper accounts and records are kept as regards all assets,
liabilities and financial transactions of the Scheme;

(b) contributions are made in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme;
(c) the assets of the Scheme are not subject to any assignment,

charge, pledge or other encumbrance except for those
specified in section 20(3)(b)(iii) of the ORSO; and

(d) the requirements of section 27(2) of the ORSO are complied
with.

Our Independence and Quality Control

We have complied with the independence and other ethical
requirements of the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
issued by the HKICPA, which is founded on fundamental principles
of integrity, objectivity, professional competence and due care,
confidentiality and professional behaviour.

The firm applies Hong Kong Standard on Quality Control 1 and
accordingly maintains a comprehensive system of quality control
including documented policies and procedures regarding compliance
with ethical requirements, professional standards and applicable
legal and regulatory requirements.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities

Our responsibility is to report solely to you, as a body, on the
Scheme’s compliance with the above requirements based on the
results of the procedures performed by us and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our engagement in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised), Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information and with reference to PN 860.1 (Revised) issued by
the HKICPA. We have planned and performed our work to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the Scheme has complied with
the above requirements.
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We have planned and performed such procedures as we considered
necessary with reference to the procedures recommended on PN
860.1 (Revised), which included reviewing, on a test basis, evidence
obtained from the Trustees regarding the Scheme’s compliance with
the above requirements.

We believe that the evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Opinion
Based on the foregoing, in our opinion:

(1) proper accounts and records have been kept during the year
ended 31 March 2017 as regards all assets, liabilities and
financial transactions of the Scheme;

(2) contributions have been made in accordance with the terms
of the Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2017;
and at 31 March 2017, there was no shortfall between
the Scheme’s assets and the Scheme’s aggregate vested
liability;

(3) at 31 March 2017, the assets of the Scheme were
not subject to any assignment, charge, pledge or other
encumbrance except for those specified in section 20(3)(b)
(iii) of the ORSO; and

(4) at 30 June 2016, 30 September 2016 and 31 March 2017,
the requirements of section 27(2) of the ORSO have been
complied with.

Intended Users and Purpose

This report is intended solely for submission by the trustees to the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority and is not intended to
be, and should not be, used by anyone for any other purpose.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

30 June 2017
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STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR BENEFITS
AS AT 31 MARCH 2017
R2017TF3A3IAAEENNTRNBEERR

Note 2017 2016
Mk HK$’000 HK$’000

CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Investments Managed by Investment Managers REKIBEIENIREIER 2(c) &3 4,119,454 3,840,409
Cash and Cash Equivalents RERKRESZEEY 2(i) 12,936 17,476
4,132,390 3,857,885

CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Accounts and Other Payables P & E At FE A BRFX 50 50
Benefits Payable SRR 2(g) 4,940 2,712
4,990 2,762
NET ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR BENEFITS AREINTRNFEEE 4,127,400 3,855,123

Represented by: FHRFIESE -

CAPITAL ACCOUNT BEARRE 6 4,127,400 3,855,123

Approved and authorised for issue
by the Board of Trustees

on 30 June 2017

M2017F6 A30H
HETZESRRRERE

Mr Kennedy LIU Tat-yin
Chairman

Board of Trustees
BEBLE
EEEEEXE
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR BENEFITS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

BE2017F3R3IHEFETHEMNCRNBZEESEHRR

INVESTMENT RETURN

Interest Income

Net Realised Gain on Investments

Net Movement in Unrealised Gain/(Loss)
on Investments

INVESTMENT EXPENSES

Investment Management Fees

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Administrator’s Fees
Accountancy Fees

Audit Fees

Miscellaneous Expenses

NET GAIN/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR
CONTRIBUTIONS

Contributions from the Council
Contributions from Members
BENEFIT PAYMENTS

Benefits on Termination of Service
Retirement Benefits

Death Benefits

FORFEITURES

FORFEITURES RE-INVESTED

INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS

AVAILABLE FOR BENEFITS FOR THE YEAR

RERER

FE WA
C2ENREFRE

ABRWREWR(FE)

T 4k

REEH
REEHEH

THER
THEEER
25ER

EZER

HMIER Y
FERWE,(FE) B8
EN

e Fe ST e
REH

BRI H

BB A

EBIRER

M 43 R
FO#&esg s
FO#&#RWBRER

REAEBRAKE
FEEEMORD)

1(b) & 2(f)

2017 2016
HK$ 000 HK$’000
1,665 1,533
119,688 108,195
215,303 (318,378)
336,656 (208,650)
450 456

450 456

784 816

104 106

50 50

32 159

970 1,131
335,236 (210,237)
146,597 147,962
48,152 48,562
194,749 196,524
7,881 24,957
241,862 252,018
7,965 -
257,708 276,975
- 72

- (72)
272,277 (290,688)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE VOCATIONAL TRAINING COUNCIL
AS THE SOLE TRUSTEE OF NEW TECHNOLOGY TRAINING FUND (THE FUND)

HBEXIGREEAFHEEIEZEE (BRES) BH—RRXANBIKBMKS

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the Fund, which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2017,
the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in
trust funds and cash flow statement for the year then ended and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the financial position of the Fund as at 31 March 2017 and of its
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRSs)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(HKICPA) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
terms of the trust deed dated 22 May 1992 (the Trust Deed).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (HKSAs) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Fund in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Trustee’s Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The trustee of the Fund is responsible for the preparation of financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the terms of the Trust Deed and for such
internal control as the trustee determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the trustee of the Fund
is responsible for assessing the Fund’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
trustee of the Fund either intends to liquidate the Fund or to ceases
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely
to you, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the
override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund’s internal
control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the trustee of the Fund.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the trustee of the
Fund’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Fund’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Fund to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the trustee of the Fund regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

Use of This Report

This report is intended solely for the information of and use by the
trustee of the Fund and is not intended for any other purpose. This
report should not be disclosed, referred to or quoted in whole or in
part without out prior written consent.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

15 August 2017
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
BE2017TF3A3IALFENL2EKRER

Note
B
INCOME WA
Interest Income FE YA 3(c)
EXPENDITURE -3
Training Grants SRR, 3(d)
Auditor's Remuneration ZEETEN &

DEFICITS AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME REEFREREZEWZREEE
FOR THE YEAR

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
1,308 1,263
(2,312) (2,0086)
(20) (20)
(2,332) (2,026)
(1,024) (763)

The Fund had no components of comprehensive income other than “deficits for the year” in either of the periods presented. Therefore,

the Fund’s “total comprehensive income” was the same as the “deficits for the year” in both periods.

BRTY AFERFIN ESREKPB[ILRBEEMEERA - ALESRZEHREN AFERFT I BER[2EKE] -
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 MARCH 2017
2017F3A31BMNBHBRAR

NON-CURRENT ASSET
Bank Deposits with Maturity over One Year
CURRENT ASSETS

Bank Deposits with Maturity over Three Months
and Within One Year

Accounts Receivable

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Less:
CURRENT LIABILITY

Accounts Payable

NET CURRENT ASSETS
NET ASSETS
Represented by:
TRUST FUNDS

Capital Fund
Revenue Fund

Approved and authorised for issue

by the Vocational Training Council

as Trustee of the Fund

on 15 August 2017

R2017568 A15H
HEBEINIRBUZITABREMZRITEER

Dr Clement CHEN Cheng-jen, SBS, JP
Chairman

Vocational Training Council
BEINRBDEE

BREE{—fE L, SBS, JP
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EERE
LHFES S
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Note 2017 2016
B EE HK$’'000 HK$’000
13,600 27,000

94,700 82,300

4 408 29
5 485 585
95,593 82,914

6 (371) (68)
95,222 82,846

108,822 109,846

105,000 105,000

3,822 4,846

108,822 109,846
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Vocational Training Council
B RBINEE

Address it VTC Tower, 27 Wood Road
Wan Chai, Hong Kong
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